[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

CITY or Pensions Board
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL 17 October 2023
Time 2.00 pm Public Meeting? NO Type of meeting Pensions

Venue West Midlands Pension Fund, i9 Offices, Wolverhampton Interchange, Railway
Drive, Wolverhampton, WV1 1LD

Membership

Employer Representatives Member Representatives
Mark Smith (Vice-Chair) Julian Allam (Chair) (Unite)
Paul Johnson Stan Ruddock (Unite)

Joe McCormick Adrian Turner (Unison)

lan Martin Terry Dingley (GMB)

Jacqueline Carman
Observer Member
Steve Smith

The Quorum requires, at least one member from each category of member and employer
representatives. If the Chair and Vice Chair are not present a Chair will be nominated by
majority from those in attendance.

Information for the Public

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:

Contact Fabrica Hastings
Tel/Email Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk 01902552699
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’'s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Tel 01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording and use of social media in meetings, copies of
which are displayed in the meeting room.

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.


mailto:Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda

Part 1 — items open to the press and public

Item No.

1
2

10

11

Title
Apologies for Absence
Declaration of Interests

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)
[For approval.]

Matters Arising

Customer Engagement (Pages 11 - 34)

[To provide the Board with an update of the Fund’s customer engagement activity
from 1 April 2023 to 30 June 2023 and to cover future planned customer
engagement activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy.]

Pensions Administration (Pages 35 - 50)
[To inform the Board of the routine operational work undertaken by the Pensions
Administration Service areas during the period 1 April 2023 to 30 June 2023.]

Risk and Assurance (Pages 51 - 64)
[To provide the Board with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well
governed scheme.]

Annual Report and Accounts (Pages 65 - 100)
[To update the Board on the Fund’s audit and preparation of the annual report for
the year ending 31 March 2023, ahead of publication on the Fund’s website.]

Investment Governance (Pages 101 - 106)
[To provide an update on investment related matters, an update on responsible

investment activities, together with the ongoing development of the Local

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Central Investment Pool.]

Regulatory Update (Pages 107 - 112)

[To provide the Board with an update on the regulatory environment in which the
Fund is operating and the work being undertaken to stay informed and prepared for
change.]

Corporate Plan Monitoring (Pages 113 - 116)
[To provide an update on the work of the Fund in achieving its deliverables and
targets set out in the Corporate Plan.]



12

13

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Exclusion of press and public
[To pass the following resolution:

That, in accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business

as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 3
of Schedule 12A to the Act.]

Pensions Administration System Transition (Pages
117 - 126)

[To provide an update on the progress of the transition Information relating to the

of the pension administration system to the new financial or business affairs of

provider.] any parhcglar person (including
the authority holding that
information) Para (3)



This page is intentionally left blank



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

woveayx o~ | Pensions Board
CouNncilL Minutes - 4 July 2023  Agendaltem No: 3

Attendance
Members of the Pensions Board

Employer Representatives
Paul johnson — Virtual Attendee
Joe McCormick

lan Martin

Mark Smith (Vice-Chair)

Member Representatives
Julian Allam (Chair)

Stan Ruddock

Adrian turner

Terry Dingley — Virtual Attendee

Observer Member

Steve Smith

Employees

Rachel Howe Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance

Amanda MacDonald Audit Business Partner — City of Wolverhampton Council
Chris Manning Head of Finance

Paul Nevin Assistant Director - Investment Strategy

Hayley Reid Regulatory Governance Manager

Simon Taylor Assistant Director — Pensions

Amy Regler Head of Operations

Part 1 — items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Election of Local Pensions Board Chair
At the start of the meeting the outgoing Chair, Paul Johnson, held a minute’s silence
to pay respect on the passing of City of Wolverhampton Council Leader, Councillor
lan Brookfield.

Paul Johnson, outgoing Local Pensions Board Chair welcomed Board members to
the first meeting of the municipal year and requested nominations for the election of
the Chair of the Pensions Board for the remainder of the municipal year. Stan
Ruddock, Member Representative, nominated the current Vice Chair Julian Allam,
the nomination was seconded by Adrian Turner. The new Chair thanked everyone
for their support.

Page 5



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

It was noted that the election of a Member Representative was in line with the Fund’s
Representation Policy of alternate representations sitting as Chair.

Election of Local Pensions Board Vice Chair

Mark Smith, Employer Representative, nominated himself for the position of Vice
Chair for the municipal year. The nomination was seconded by Joe McCormick,
Employer Representative.

Apologies for Absence
Apologies were received from Jacqueline Carman, Employer Representative.

Declaration of Interests
There were no declarations of interests.

Minutes of Previous Meeting
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a correct record.

Matters Arising
There were no matters arising.

LPB Annual Governance Paper

Hayley Reid, Regulatory Governance Manager, presented the annual governance
paper, including the revised terms of reference which had been reviewed and
updated ahead of the 2023/24 municipal year.

Resolved:
1. That the revised Terms of Reference for the Local Pensions Board be
approved.
2. That the dates and time of Local Pension Board meetings for the 2023/24
municipal year be noted.
3. That the update on the annual cycle of nominations and changes to Board
membership be noted.

Risk and Assurance
Rachel Howe, Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance, presented the report
providing an update of the work of the Fund to deliver a well governed scheme.

It was noted that the Fund continued to wait for regulatory guidance on several key
issues, including the Scheme Advisory Board’s Good Governance Review,
implementation of the McCloud remedy and Investment pooling, all of which have the
potential to increase reporting and oversight requirements. The Head of Governance,
Risk and Assurance highlighted the McCloud Remedy Consultation which had been
published on 30 May 2023.

It was noted that the Fund had undertaken its 3-year reaccreditation of Investors In
People, retaining the Gold Standard accreditation for the 9th year running.

In response to a question from Adrian Turner with regards to the application of the
McCloud remedy, the Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance confirmed that the
Fund were still awaiting guidance on the application of the remedy. With regards to a
question regarding the financial ilggg_agcéoéMcCloud, the Head of Operations



10

11

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

confirmed that the McCloud Remedy had been considered as part of the actuarial
valuation.

Resolved:

1. That the latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in
the current environment be noted.

2. That the fund’s Key Performance Indicator’s (KPI's) and action taken to
support service delivery be noted.

3. The compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter be noted.

4. That the Fund’s reaccreditation of Investors in People Gold Standard be
noted.

Internal Audit Report 2022/23

Amanda McDonald, Audit Business Partner, provided an overview of the internal
audit work carried out during the year. Confirming that based on the work
undertaken, internal audit had provided reasonable assurance that the Fund had
adequate and effective internal control and governance arrangements in place.

Resolved:
1. That the internal audit report for 2022-2023 be noted.

Statement of Accounts

Chris Manning, Head of Finance, presented the report providing an update on the
preparation, approval, and audit of the statement of accounts for the year ending
March 2023.

In response to a question from Adrian Turner with regards to the Fund'’s value, the
Head of Finance confirmed that there were no concerns and that the change in value
had been driven by changes in asset values.

In a response to a question from Paul Johnson with regards to an anticipated
increase in investment costs, the Head of Finance confirmed that the increase
related to transactional costs associated with changes in the Fund’s investment
strategy.

Resolved:
1. That the process for preparing the Fund’s 2023 Statement of Accounts and
Annual Report together with the process for approval and external audit be
noted.

Investment Governance
Paul Nevin, Assistant Director Investment Strategy, presented the report and
provided an update on routine investment matters.

Resolved:
1. That the update on investment governance matters, including those in relation
to responsible investment and pooling be noted.
2. That the publication of the Fund’s Annual Stewardship Report 2023 outlining
the Fund’s stewardship activities during 2022 aligned with the 2020
stewardship code be note'g.g.age 7



12

13

14

15

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Pensions Administration Report to 31 March 2023

Amy Regler, Head of Operations, presented the report on the routine operational
work undertaken by the Pensions Administration services during the period 1
January — 31 March 2023, noting that the Fund’s Administering Authority Statement
had been reviewed and approved by the Pensions Committee.

In response to a question regarding transfers out undertaken during the previous
year, the Head of Operations confirmed that an appropriate level of due diligence is
undertaken on all transfers in line with the Fund’s compliance with the Pension
Regulator’s pension scam pledge.

Resolved:

1. That the development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers
be noted.

2. That the performance and workloads of the key pension administration
functions be noted.

3. That the five applications from employers into the Fund approved by the
Pensions Committee be noted.

4. That the review and approval of the Fund’s Administering Authority statement
by the Pensions committee be noted.

5. That the progress of the transition to the new pensions administration system
be noted.

Customer Engagement Update
Simon Taylor, Assistant Director of Pensions, presented the report covering the
Fund’s customer engagement activity for the period 1 January — 31 March 2023.

It was noted that the Fund had achieved Customer Service Excellence re-
accreditation following an assessment undertaken in May 2023. The Assistant
Director of Pensions highlighted that the Fund had achieved a compliance plus rating
in five of the areas being assessed.

Resolved:
1. The engagement activity and informed service development undertaken by
the Fund be noted.
2. The outcomes of the Customer Services Excellence re-accreditation be
noted.

Exclusion of press and public

Resolved: That in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within the
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

CEM Benchmarking

Amy Regler, Head of Operations, and Paul Nevin, Assistant Director Investment
Strategy, presented the report providing Board members with an overview of the
benchmarking exercise undertaken in relation to the 2021/22 scheme year.

Page 8



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Resolved:
1. The results and key outcomes of the independent benchmarking exercises
undertaken for the 2021/22 scheme year for the Fund’s Pension
Administration Services and Investment Management be noted.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

CITY or

WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

A (| 14 Nl |
AyYcCTIiUd 1clirNO. o

Pensions Board
17 October 2023

Report Title
Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Customer Engagement Update

Pension Services

Simon Taylor Assistant Director (Pensions)

Email Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Rachel Executive Director of Pensions

Brothwood Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Email

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. The engagement activity and informed service development.

Page 11



mailto:Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

This report is PUBLIC
Purpose

To provide Board with an update of the Fund’s customer engagement activity from 1st
April 2023 to 30t June 2023 and to cover future planned customer engagement activity
in the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy.

Background

One of the Fund’s key objectives is to engage to improve outcomes for our customers. In
line with this objective, the Fund has published, and keeps under review, a Customer
Engagement Strategy, to review satisfaction and help inform improvements to its pension
services.

Member Engagement & Communication

The Member Services team continues to deliver member support via hybrid channels
including member webinars, face to face presentations and following up with individual
consultations as required. During this reporting period 1,005 members attended our
presentations, webinars, workshops and other events. These were followed by 378
individual member consultations. Our events are delivered at various times throughout
the day to accommodate attendance around member and work commitments. This
delivery and the associated feedback is summarised in Appendix A.

During this reporting period the Member Services team delivered events to district police
stations, housing organisations and Local Education Authority schools and provided 7
satellite support events to 66 hard to reach members. These are members who may not
normally be able to access our services due to the nature of their work and location,
which might include access to web-based delivery (i.e., computer facilities), working
hours or ‘satellite’ locations.

Through the “Be Pension Smart & Take Control of your benefits” campaign, the Fund
continues to encourage members to view and manage their pension record online using
the pensions portal. During this reporting period registrations increased by 3,097 bringing
the total to 133,022 at the end of June 2023.

The new transition to the new Pensions Administration System brings a new and
improved Pension Portal, with increased security to protecting members data by
introducing 2 factor authentication and new and improved dashboards to display
members’ information and benefits. To ensure members benefit from the increased
security, each member is required to register for the new Pensions Portal and the Fund
has a rolling communications plan to support this approach. The roll out of this campaign
started in the summer and will continue to be monitored, with the engagement campaign
revisited in 2024 once initial onboarding has completed.

The Fund continues to promote aspects of our work via the social media platform
LinkedIn. Since the last reporting period a further 11,595 people have interacted with our

Page 12



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

This report is PUBLIC

variety of articles from purpose pension videos, member engagement events and
recruitment. This is 1,942 more interactions since the last reporting period.

The Fund roadshow vehicle was back out on tour across the region, visiting educational
establishments. During this reporting period we visited 7 locations and saw 233
members. Feedback from these events was 90% rated excellent, 9% rated very good
and 1% good.

“Planning your retirement” workshops remain popular with members who are over the
age of 55. During this quarter the Member Services team delivered 6 workshops to active
members which helped 132 attendees with their retirement planning.

During this reporting period the Fund’s member video suite, providing on-demand
support and guidance to members, has been expanded to include new videos such as a
tutorial video to explain the annual benefits statement 2023 and re-vamping our pensions
portal registration video.

One of our focuses during this period has been to update the Fund’s website with revised
publications and forms, this has included a brief guide to the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS), 50:50 section, building up extra savings, planning for your retirement,
bereavement guide and new portal guidance booklets.

7 “Tea & Teach” events were delivered in May & June with the objective to bring
pensioners together face to face and join us for refreshments and give them the chance
to talk about any pension concerns which they may have. We partnered with local
organisations to provide as much support and literature as possible for our pensioners.
334 pensioners attended these events and 69% rated them as excellent, 28% as good
and 3% as satisfactory.

Following the success of the Pensioner Engagement forum over the years, the team has
extended this engagement to our active members. In June the Fund launched its first
Active member engagement forum, the objective of this forum was to share new
initiatives which the Fund is currently working on, such as member website, the new
pensions portal and reviewing member communications. This first event was a success
and provided the team with valuable feedback to enhance member support and expand
our communication offerings, feedback from this event was very positive. We will now be
holding this event on an annual basis and extending it further to target our deferred
members.

In May the Fund produced 102,047 annual benefits statements for deferred members,
this was followed up with bulk emails and text messages to members where we hold a
valid email address and mobile number to notify members that their statement was
available on the portal.

In June the Fund produced 76,742 annual benefits statements for active members, this

was followed up in July with a personalised letter to highlight that their annual statement
is online and details of how to access it on the Fund’s new Pensions Portal.

Page 13



3.14

3.15

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

This report is PUBLIC

Website content continues to be updated and there have been 247,741 web page views
in this quarter.

Customer feedback is key to understanding our customer’s journey, highlighting our
strengths and any gaps in the service we deliver so that we can continually improve the
services we offer. Following a review of our ‘Post Event’ surveys to scheme members
and the creation of a customer feedback dashboard, post-event surveys are now being
issued to members regularly. The overall customer feedback Key Performance Indicator
for this quarter is 84.85%.

Customer Services

An overview of our front-line customer contact activity is shown in Appendix C. This
outlines the variety and volume of support provided by the Fund to address members’
pension queries. An indication of the statistics for the previous year is included within the
charts as a comparative measure.

The most popular queries to our contact centre remain as follows:

o Customers following up on an existing Fund process
¢ Requests for Pensions Portal support

e Enquiries about accessing pension benefits

¢ Request for support with a Fund letter/form

e Members updating their personal details

Contact volumes were higher than usual over the April - June period when increased
member communications were issued, which included Be Smart newsletter, aged 55
campaign, Investment Survey, deferred benefit statement notification emails and text
messages. The team have continued to work closely with Member Services to stagger
mailings sent to members, which smooths the impact on the contact centre and reduces
call queues/written response times, allowing us to better serve our customers and reduce
the number of chaser requests received. In addition, the Fund saw an increase in calls
due to the payment of pension increase and the impact this had on individual member
tax codes.

Complaints

The Fund has a complaint monitoring framework, which enables regular monitoring and
review of trends impacting performance. Where a complaint highlights an improvement
area, this is investigated and monitored to help shape future services and improve overall
customer satisfaction going forward. This mirrors the process undertaken for general
customer feedback.

Complaint numbers were higher than the previous quarter, and is higher compared to
previous years. However, overall the number of complaints received by the Fund is
proportionally low compared to the number of scheme members, with 57 complaints
received for the last quarter. Of those complaints, 40% were upheld and lessons learned
were incorporated in training and process development. The percentage of upheld

Page 14



6.0

6.1

6.1.1

This report is PUBLIC

complaints has increased from the previous quarter by 15% due to change in Scheme-
wide calculation factors leading to the Fund having to put casework on hold, resulting in
increased processing times for transfers and refunds.

Employer Engagement
Employer Peer Group

The first session of the Fund’s Employer Peer Group cycle for 2023/24 took place in
June, with 17 out of the 21 registered employer representatives present. The content for
the meeting included:

e Expectations for the new group:

The Fund invited all attendees to contribute and shape the content of future sessions by
suggesting topical/relevant items to be discussed to help inform the content and format of
engagement over the year and, where appropriate, to shape service development and
improvements.

¢ Review of the Fund's new website:

Aligned to the change of software provider, a review of the employer pages on the
Fund’s website is ongoing. Key website changes in relation to the updated and new
guidance made available for employers regarding the exchange of information and data
via the new administration system interfaces were outlined to the group, and useful
employer feedback was gained.

e Mid-Year Review:

The Mid-Year Review Meeting was discussed, and employers were asked to provide
feedback on the 2023 meeting. It was agreed that the meetings are always very
informative and that employers find value in attending.

e EQ transition (Go Live support telephone messaging script):

To support the system transition, the employer helpline was split into two lines to assist
with direction of system related queries and business as usual queries, to ensure the
caller reaches the appropriate agent to resolve the query. A demonstration of the
proposed script for the helpline (heard by callers before reaching an agent) was provided
to the group to enable comment and feedback to ensure it was clear and understandable
to external callers. The messaging has been a success and we are seeing calls being
directed to the correct lines.

e Member Engagement:

A reminder was given to the group of the Fund’s offering with regards to supporting
employers in servicing members through direct signposting of Fund information, guides
and reference materials. Attendees raised several queries regarding where to find useful
information for their members and received real time support (direction to the best areas
of the website, e.g., for retirement documentation) further increasing employer
awareness and familiarisation with new material.

Page 15



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

7.0

71

7.1.1

7.1.2

This report is PUBLIC

Employer Webinars

To support the roll out of the new Pensions Administration System the Employer
Services team delivered a programme of employer education focusing on the new
platform for Employers over the last quarter and beyond. Further details of these
sessions can be found in section 5 below, which covers the Pension Administration
System transition.

Whilst regular employer coaching/webinars have been paused temporarily to free up
resource for direct support of employers, a programme of support for 2024 onwards will
be proposed for consultation with the group at future meetings.

Employer Engagement and Performance

Utilising the virtual working arrangements currently in place, the Employer Services team
have continued to hold performance meetings with various employers throughout the
period, albeit at a reduced level to enable additional support to be directed towards the
system transition project. Employer performance is assessed in line with the Fund'’s
Pension Administration Strategy (PAS).

During the period the Fund held 5 meetings with organisations representing 18
employers. Collectively these employers are responsible for submitting data and
payments for over 6,400 members.

Work continued over the period, ahead of the system transition to target both the
submission of outstanding leaver paperwork and responses to queries raised as a result
of those leaver submissions.

Pension Administration System Transition- self-service platforms
Member Self-Service

The new Pension Administration System brings a new and improved Pensions Portal for
members. To use this new self-service platform, members are required to complete a
new registration process which now includes two-step authentication to increase security
for members. Letters have been issued to all members to communicate the launch,
highlight the benefits of the new portal and to provide them with the personal
identification code required to register.

A new member portal support package has been designed to assist members to register

and navigate the new portal, this comprises of step-by-step guidance booklets, a
registration video and Q&A and support on the website.

Page 16



7.2

7.2.1

71.2.2

7.2.3

71.24

7.2.5

7.2.6

8.0

8.1

This report is PUBLIC
Employer Self-Service

Employer Self-Service (ESS) is our new pension administration platform that offers
comprehensive data management and management information to our employers and
payroll providers. Rolled out to our existing Employer Hub users on 27th July 2023, ESS
users are already seeing the benefits of an improved, speedier method for the
submission of data. Member updates are actioned immediately, with no intervention
required from Fund officers. All earnings and contributions data, member changes, and
scheme leavers are submitted to the Fund via interface files, allowing the bulk upload of
more data and removing the requirement to submit individual leaver notifications and
member changes.

Employers also have the benefit of improved management information and reporting
capabilities, putting membership and case statistics at their fingertips.

In total, 27 online training sessions have been delivered to employers as part of the
transition. Across the 27 sessions we have seen over 640 attendees, from 179
organisations (both employers and payroll providers) representing more than 600
employers and over 97,000 active members within the Fund. The sessions covered the
following topics:

e ESS General Navigation
e Reporting and Workflows
e Data Submission

e Estimates

Feedback received following the sessions was that over 95% of attendees were either
satisfied or very satisfied with the structure, pace and clarity of the delivery.

The team are currently responding to the 20-40 employer emails each day relating
specifically to support with ESS. They have also held over 20 virtual meetings with
employers following ESS go live to provide bespoke one to one support. A plan is also in
progress to identify and reach out to more employers/payroll providers that we believe
need greater support in these initial stages of go live.

In addition to online training sessions a number of communications have been issued to
employers providing guidance documents and videos to assist with navigation, many of
which can also be found on the Fund’s website. A Frequently Asked Questions document
has also been published following analysis of common queries raised by employers post
go live. The Employer Services team will continue to monitor the queries raised by ESS
users and will adjust and adapt the support offered where appropriate.

Future Engagement

From July to September 2023 the focus of the hard-to-reach project is providing face to
face support to fire stations, LEA schools and leisure centres across the region.

Page 17



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.0

10.1

11.0

12.0

This report is PUBLIC

The Member Services team delivered 7 roadshows at district locations with the objective
to support members to register for the new pensions portal and to explain members’
annual statements.

To encourage the take-up of the new self-serve function, the Fund is developing portal
promotion events which will assist members to register and navigate around the new
portal. This campaign will consist of invites to webinars, face to face support at locations
across the region and engagement with employers to increase their members’ portal sign
up rate.

The Fund is due to hold its next pensioner engagement forum on the 25th October 2023.
This forum was designed for pensioner members to provide their feedback and thoughts
to enhance a member’s retirement journey for the future. Compton Care have agreed to
be a guest speaker. The event is also supported by Pension Age and Alzheimers UK
who will be providing literature. The feedback and actions from this event will be
published in the next report and also details in the “You said, we did” part of the 2023
pensioner newsletter.

Each year Pension Saving Statements are sent to members by the 5 October who have
exceeded the annual allowance limit. The Member Services team are following up these
with offering recipients the chance to book on Pension Tax Webinars. Further details will
follow in the next reporting period.

Larger Fund Events

HR 360, the Coventry Bursars group, requested a member presentation at their schools
and academies business meeting on the 30 June 2023. This was our first face to face
delivery at this event since the pandemic. Feedback was very positive and also led to
several school business managers booking further support to assist their members.

The Fund delivered its employer Mid-Year Review 2023, on the 4t July 2023. The event
covered a variety of updates for employers and also an interactive employer panel.
Feedback can be found in Appendix B.

Preparation is underway to plan the Fund’s Annual General Meeting which will be held at
i9 towards the end of the year.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Legal Implications

There are no legal implications associated with this report.

Equalities Implications

Page 18



121

13.0

13.1

14.0

141

15.0

15.1

15.2

15.3

This report is PUBLIC
The report contains no direct equalities implications.
Other Implications
There are no other implications.
Background papers
Customer Engagement Strategy — Committee report September 2022

(Public Pack)Appendix B — Customer Engagement Strateqy Agenda Supplement for
Pensions Committee, 21/09/2022 10:00 (moderngov.co.uk)

Appendices

Appendix A - Review of feedback from member presentations and individual pension
consultations

Appendix B — Summary of MYR feedback

Appendix C — Customer services statistics

Page 19


https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/b63055/Appendix%20B%20Customer%20Engagement%20Strategy%2021st-Sep-2022%2010.00%20Pensions%20Committee.pdf?T=9
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/b63055/Appendix%20B%20Customer%20Engagement%20Strategy%2021st-Sep-2022%2010.00%20Pensions%20Committee.pdf?T=9

This page is intentionally left blank



Aiojoejsneg @ poos) @ Jus|jeox] @

(%€L) 69 —_

S (%82) v2

I (%2) Z

guney Jo1uasalid

Alooejsnes @ poos) @ Jue||eox3 @

(%+9) 19 —_

Page 21

~— (%¥e) 28

L (%2) 2

guney 1uaAg

€20C 2UNf ,,0€ -€20C [11dY ;T - )PEqPIa] UOREIUISIJ WED] 9INIDS JOqUISIA

V Xlpuaddy

ees

eeescos0
s8ssase

#8000

pun4 uoisuad spue|piin umuk._cn H
Sses

sessses
e a0



paysijessip Aio\ @ paysiessiq® paysiessip Jou paysies joyjoN ® palsies ® paysies Lo\ @ pausiessiQ® psysnessip lou paysies JsyjisN @ paysies ® paysies fiop @

Page 22

(%85) 66 ——
(%9%) €6 —— —— (%g¢g) 18

(%¢gg) 1e

\— (%6) 6 L a-_ (%9
V@.E (%L) L

EVFENIERINES guney uonoeiaiu]

V Xlpuaddy



Aoyoejsiies @ poos) @ Jus|[9oX] @ Aio1oelSeS @ poos) @ 1Us|[eox] @

(%62) L€ —\

(%.2) 0E —%

Page 23

| i
N (%81) L . (%l2) 8

L (%¢€) L L (%€) L

guney Jojuasald guney 1uaAg

suoljeljnsuo) uoisuad |enpiaipuj

€20C 2UNf ,,0€ — £20C MUY T - )PEqPIa] WES] 99IAISS JOqUIDIA

pun4 UoISUa4 SPUB|PIA IS

V Xlpuaddy



paysiessiq® peysies® paysies Aiop @

(%+9) 62 —_

~— (%¢ge) €1

o (9%¢g) L

EVFCNIERINES

V Xlpuaddy

palisijessip Jou palsnes JaylieN @ palsnes @ paisies As) @

(%zL) 82 —_

S (%92) 01

o (%¢g) 1

guney uonoeiaiu|

Page 24



EVENT FEEDBACK

Page 25



[
_

%7€ ‘6 'poog

1U3|[20%3 u

pooo =

Alo1deisnes u

Iood =

%89

6T u9|[99%3

g Xipuaddy

0 100d

o) Aojoejsnes

§) pooK)

ol ETE e

SHAIN @Y1 91e4 NOA pjnom MOH

Page 26



WI[ENI = pOOS) s AJOPIBSOES n 1004 = W3R = poog e Aiolieisnes s Joog s

’ %502
Sebd BT We|2ax3
~'TT ‘IuajE0n3
WIT 9 'pooD iy

%PT '+ 'PO0D N~

uonesiuediQ N

uoljewJojuj Jo >t_m3,0 ’ ’ (D)

(@)

WSEoxg v poosy s AIOIIBISIES = 004w ©

WIfEIMI = pooS = AIODESHES s 1004 = o

HEd
&7 1uE|2axg
%89

N 51 uzEng

%522 '6 'poOD 9/ T s ‘poog

uolyeJ3siday Jo ase]

Sulwi] pue 3ulnpayas

:JUBAS 9] JO S109dse SuIMo||0) 8yl 1.l asea|d

g Xipuaddy



WRENI = poog s AI0PDBISHeS .

W3[[20x3 = poOSy e AJOIDBISOES © 1004 =

%Ig
R cT wu=|Ena

%ET 'S P00 ~
SIUBWIYSD4}2Y pue poo4

ERUEY

1004 =

%6 8

i

%68

‘57 "W2(130%3

WUI|[EMI = pooDy = ASDOIRJSNES

poog

92ed pue sJa1uasald

1004 =

0
(q\|
()]
(@)]
©
o
T/
R\ 07 wsEmg

:JUBAS 8Y] JO s109dse uimo||0) ay] a1el ases|d

g Xipuaddy



ek TT 'POOS

W3jex3 v pooD e AUDPDBISIIES w004 ®

54
5T " waEaxa
_
®oF £ ‘poOS
(@]
AN
wEwpm\»m uolleJisiviupy o
2[Rk s poog e AopRSRES = 004 . o))
|wmcm£U jeuonjewJsojsued | wajExa e poon = AoesOes s i0og s <
o
%29
%ES ‘BT ‘13|z
‘5T 3|33 )
%6z '8 ‘poon’
St S%GE
T ‘Aaonesies” ‘T 'Ao1Rjsnes
JUSWUOJIAUY SdOT Iualin) 9yl M3IADY Ul SYIUO|A XIS-3WO0I[D/\\

MBAIBp pue 91A1s ‘Allue|d 01 piegal ul mojaq Sa1do] ayl a1kl NOA pjnNOM MOH

g Xipuaddy



WIjjE0K] * Po0Si=  AIOPIBSIES = 004 =

%I
‘91 ' waema
%8¢ 0T ‘po0g
WX« pooS e AIOIIBSHES = K004 v JUR[IEII v  poOD s AIDIDIEJSEG = 004w
SonjeA pue UolISIA pun4 o
(40]
(O]
(@))
©
o
%89
g 6T 1u2][=0x3 %l9

! T upRaxg

%7¢ ‘5 ‘poog il
%es 1T 'poos

(uolissas aAdeIaUI)

s1epdn juswisanul diysiaulied ul SupjIopn :[aued JaAkojdw]

¢MBAIBP pue 91A1s ‘Allue|d 01 paegal ul Mojaqg So1do] ayl 91ke) NOA pjnNOM MOH

g Xipuaddy



%00°001L-|%00°00}- %0000}~ 1%00°00}-|%00°00}- |%00°00L- [%8L°LL  [%cCl Ll |%8E€¢C %l€ - %86° - %€0" -
%82 'GL |%EC 69 |%L1'C |%LSSL [%80V. |%SL 6.
0¥S¢ 6199 Gov. 8ee. L¥99 L1129 434 09G. €28 €878 120. \v.l.
0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥199 0€19 €29 €619 8609 909
0 0 0 0 0 0 LEG. 7588 128 c0¢Z8 2889 1992
29( AON 190 dag bny Ine unp Aepy ady Je\ qo4 uepr
70T P340 S|[BD ==m £TOT PRUBMSUY S][ED) M
€¢0C Pa4340 S|[e) mummm 1984e] %G8 M-
Qg AON PO dds 8ny nf  unf Aey udy Jey go4  uer
0
000T
000¢
00o0€
000t
000S
0009
000L
0008
0006
0000T

S||eD Sulwodu|

SO1)S1)e)S S9IIAIG Jawolsn) ) xipuaddy

@sealoul mmmucwo._wn_
(%G8 1061e] ) a1eY Jomsuy
2202 paIayQ s|led
€20¢ palamsuy s|jed
€202 PaIayQ siled

Page 31



%00°001-|%00°001}- %0000}~ |%00°00}- |%00°00}- |%00°00L- |%E0'8C  [%LLVC |%E6'L %¥S Ll %L %80°€E
1961 €c0¢ 991l 1,08l 0981 091¢ G99¢ lv.lC 192 vG.C L€L2 16S¢
0 0 0 0 0 0 434> 0Cre 0862 LETE G9/.¢C 9S¥¢e
29( AON 190 dag bny Ine unp Aepy ady Je\ qo4 uepr
rado YA EINERENECTIE o) €207 POAI929Y S9USND) I
3@ AON PO dds 38ny nr unr Aey udy JeNy  gd4  uer

0

00s

000T

00SsT

000¢

00s¢
N L

salnbug usaNLIAN

SO1)S1)e)S S9IIAIG Jawolsn) ) xipuaddy

(0[0[0}3
00s¢e
(0[0]0) 7

asealoul abejusoiad

¢20¢C paAIgdRY s8llenD
€20¢ PaAIBIBY sausny

Page 32



eve GlLe ¥6¢ 18¢ ZS¢ 89¢ €0¢ 0S¢ 88¢ ¥9¢€ L0€ £6¢€
0 0 0 0 0 0 9¢€L G61 G6 34 101 9¢€L
29( AON 190 deg bny Ine unp Aepy ady Je\ go4 uep

7207 Ul SI0NSIA €20 Ul SJ0YS!/\ mm—

Inr unf Aeln a1dy
0
— o
00T

29 AON 10 das 3ny

0ST
00¢
0S¢
00¢

0S¢

$J03ISIA uolldaoay

SO1JSIje)S SODIAI9G Jawolsnd 9 xipuaddy

¢c0¢ Ul SIOYSIN
€20¢ Ul SIOYSIN

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 6

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Pensions Board
17 October 2023

Report title

Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Pensions Administration to 30 June 2023

Pension Services

Simon Taylor Assistant Director, Pensions
Email Simon.Taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendation for action:

The Pensions Board is recommended to note:

1. The Committee’s approval of the 14 applications for admission from employers into the
Fund as detailed in Section 9 and Appendix E of this report.

2. Performance and workloads of the key pension administration functions.

3. Development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers.

Page 35



mailto:Simon.Taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0
1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

31

3.1.1

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

To inform the Pensions Board of the routine operational work undertaken by the
Pensions Administration Service areas during the period 1 April 2023 — 30 June 2023.

Background

The Fund provides a pension administration service covering employer, customer and
member services, data processing, benefit operations, payroll and systems/technical
support. A report is provided to the Pensions Board on a quarterly basis to assist in
monitoring the activity and performance of these functions during that period.

Scheme Activity
Membership Movement — Main Fund

The total number of scheme member records in the Fund on 30 June 2023 stands at
346,170 with an overall increase since March 2023. This reporting period sees an
increase in the total number of members. The long-term trend in membership continues
to illustrate a move towards a more mature profile whereby, in general, pensioners and
deferred memberships continue to rise.

Membership as at Net Movements Membership as at
31 March 2023 during the period 30 June 2023

Active Members 113,854 -630 113,224

Deferred Members 115,662 9081 116,643

Pensioner Members 115,725 578 116,303

Total Members 345,241 929 346,170

350,000 313,399

300,000 270,317 277°41

346,170

333,934 335101 338591 345241

323,795
302,070

287,874

95,98 104,04 Rg 111,26 115,7 116,30

91,74

250,000 85,55 y
. M,ss 321 !
200,000
150,000
100,000
1
50,000 1 1
0
e e o A D ) ) o YV ¥ O
X & & R S 5 & & S & v
& & & & & & & & & W »
2 2 o 2 2 2 2 2 & - 5
& & & & & £
»Y %Y ' e 5 %Y %Y %Y Y
W Active Members m Deferred Members Pensioner Members

Page 36



3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.4

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

This report is PUBLIC

Workflow Statistics

The process analysis statistics (Appendix A) show details of overall workflow within the
Pensions Administration Service during the period 1 April to 30 June 2023.

During the period covered by this report, 43,184 administrative processes were
commenced and 43,130 processes were completed.

On 30 June 2023 there were 40,921 items of work outstanding. This represents a slight
increase of 290 items outstanding compared to 31 March 2023 (40,631). Of the 40,921
items of work outstanding, 4,164 items are pending as a result of information awaited
from a third-party e.g. scheme members, employers or transferring authorities, and
36,757 processes are now either proceeding to the next stage of the process or through
to final completion.

Appendix B provides a summary of the key processes completed by volume across
benefit operational functions e.g. calculating benefits for retirements, pensioner member
data changes as well as the maintenance of updating membership details. The Fund
continues to monitor the level of members opting out of the scheme with an increased
level observed this quarter, above the rate in 2022/23 but not out of line with prior years.

Key Performance Indicators (KPls) — benefit operations

The Fund uses a number of KPIs to measure performance when processing items such
as Transfers In and Out, Retirements and Deferred Retirements.

For the reporting, three KPI’s did not cumulatively achieve the target:

e Retirements - Notification of Estimated Benefits
o The KPI fell short of the 90% target, cumulatively achieving 86%,
however the team processed 41% more cases than the same period
last year, and on average, casework was completed within 17 days
against the target of 15.
e Deferred Retirements —payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record
o The KPI fell short of the 90% target, achieving 87%, due to restricted
timescales for payroll closedown and delayed re-opening. However, on
average, casework was completed within 3 days against the target of 5
over the period.
e Death acknowledgement
o Despite not cumulatively achieving the KPI, the team processed 6%
more cases than the same period last year and on average, casework
was completed within 4 days against the target of 5 over the period.

Further information on the achievement of target KPIs by process by month over the
reporting period and Scheme year is included in Appendix C.

Page 37



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

This report is PUBLIC

Transfer Out — All Casework

In total, 184 individual transfer payments were made during the period 1 April 2023 to 30
June 2023, resulting in a total amount transferred of £9,246,908. This is broken down into
the following categories:

Type of transfer Number of transfer | Value of Transfer
payments Payments (£)
Non Local Government 44 £6,138,361

Pension Scheme (LGPS)

Interfund (LGPS Fund) 138 £3,037,949

Additional Voluntary 2 £70,598
Contributions

Non LGPS Transfers

During the period 1 April 2023 to 30 June 2023, 289 transfer value quotations were
issued to members considering transferring their benefits out of the scheme (in the prior
year 1 April 2022 to 30 June 2022, 388 transfer value quotations were issued to
members). The Fund continues to monitor any trends and increases in demands, as
part of its programme of work to protect members from potential pension scams.

In total, 46 transfer payments were made during the period 1 April 2023 to 30 June
2023 (30 of these were to non public sector schemes) resulting in a total amount
transferred of £ 2,274,706 (in the prior year 1 April 2022 to 30 June 2022 a total of 48
transfer payments were made totalling £ 2.3 million). The payments by value and value
break down are as follows:

Value of Transfer Number of Transfer Number of
Payments Payments to Public Transfer
Sector Schemes Payments to

Other Schemes

0 to £30,000 10 21
£30,001 to £100,000 4 2
£100,001 to £200,000 1 4
£200,001 to £300,000 0 2
£300,001 to £400,000 0 0
£400,001 to £500,000 1 0
Above £500,001 0 1
Total 16 30

5.2.3 This reporting period the Fund has seen a decrease in the number of requests from

members for transfer out quotes, however the number of members electing to progress

Page 38



This report is PUBLIC

with the transfer of their benefits out of the Fund remains stable, seeing an increase in
the conversion rate to 15%. This peak in conversion rate for this reporting period is
higher compared to the same period the previous year (12.11%). This is shown in the
graph below:

450 18.00%
TVOUT Quote vs Payments

400 15.92% 16.00%
350 14.00%
300 12.11% 12.00%
250 10.00%
200 8.00%
150 6.00%
100 4.00%

0 0.00%

Ap-June 2022 April - June 2023
mmm Quotes NN Payments % Paid vs Quoted

5.2.4 Analysis has been undertaken of the Transfer out requests to non-public sector or

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

occupational schemes over the period of April to June 2023 to review the volume and
trends. During the period, a total of 26 non-public sector or occupational scheme transfer
out reviews were undertaken by the transfer panel, to a total of 12 different receiving
schemes. There were 16 transfers under £30,000 in value, meaning members were able
to transfer these payments without a requirement to take financial advice. The average
age of members transferring out was 52 years with the main reasons for members
transferring out was either to consolidate their benefits into one provider or release
cash/flexible draw down (members over 55).

Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) Casework
For the reporting period, four cases have been referred to Stage One (two partially

upheld and two are under investigation). Four employer cases have progressed to Stage
Two (one was not upheld and three are under investigation).

Pensions in Payment
The gross annual value of pensions in payment to June 2023 was £641m, £15.8m of

which (£8.9m for pensions increase and £6.9m for added year’s compensation) was
recovered from employing authorities and other bodies as the expenditure was incurred.

Page 39



This report is PUBLIC

7.2 Monthly payroll details were:

Month Number Value (£)
April 2023

93,863 44,838,489
May 2023

94,000 46,036,222
June 2023

105,825 47,284,136

The June figure includes pensioners paid on a quarterly basis.
Employer Membership

8.1  During the period, the Fund has seen an increase in employer numbers, with the overall
number of employers registered with the Fund standing at 813 at 30 June 2023. Overall,
there has been an 94% increase since March 2014 as shown in the graph below,
however, for 2022/23 the rate of increase has slowed relative to previous years, and it is
anticipated that a more moderate increase will continue to be observed going forward.

743 ° :
. 704
612 |G 2
s 073

March March March March March March March March March March  June
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2023

900
800
70

o

60

o

50

o

40

o

30

o

20

o

10

o

M No. of employers

Page 40



8.2

8.3

9.0

9.1

9.2

10.0

10.1

10.2

11.0

This report is PUBLIC

The employer base at 30 June 2023 is categorised into the following employer types:

600
500
400
300

200

Scheduled body (inc. Admitted bodies Academy
district councils,
parish councils,

Universities, colleges)

The level of on-going work being processed at the end of the period is as follows:

. 59 admission agreements
. 14 academies
. 95 employer terminations

Application for Admission Body Status

Organisations must satisfy one or more of the admission criteria before they can be
admitted to the Fund following approval of applications. Where applications need to be
progressed outside of the Committee meeting cycle, Pensions Committee has delegated
responsibility for approving such applications to the Executive Director of Pensions in
consultation with the Chair or Vice Chair of Pensions Committee.

There are 14 approvals requested from Committee in regard to applications for
admission to the West Midlands Pension Fund, these are detailed in Appendix D.

Financial Implications
The report contains financial information which should be noted.

Employees of organisations who become members of the LGPS will contribute the
percentage of their pensionable pay as specified in the Regulations.

Legal Implications

The Fund, on behalf of the City of Wolverhampton Council will enter into a legally binding
contract with organisations applying to join the LGPS under an admission agreement.

Page 41



12.0

121

13.0

13.1

14.0

141

15.0

15.1

15.2

15.3

18.5

This report is PUBLIC

Equalities Implications

There are no direct equalities implications.

All Other Implications

There are no other potential implications.
Schedule of Background Papers

None.

Schedule of Appendices

Appendix A: Workflow Summary

Appendix B: Detailed Process Analysis
Appendix C: Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Appendix D: Admitted Body Applications

Page 42



po13|dwo) S9SS0Id W PIMIRIS S9SSIV04d W

€¢0caunfrog ccogdunfrog €20z AeIN T€ zzoz Ren 1€ €207 |1dV 0€ 720z |4dy 0€

_uwu.w_n_EOU $95S9J30.4d SA p3liels S9ssad0id |er10ol

o

000¢

000v

0009

0008

0000T

000¢T

000vT

0009T

0008T

0000¢

Vv Xipuaddy

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Pension Committee Statistical Report

Detailed Process Analysis

Appendix B
2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 ] 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 ] 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 April May June 2023/24

Active & Deferred members
Process type
Joiners and Rejoiners (Bulk) 8,763] 6,403] 11,138] 13,558| 9,816] 16,688] 20,227] 17755 25509 19939 17479 16533 19841 651 1892 1480 4023
Changes in circumstances eg change in hours 18,759] 15,303] 12,385] 11,273 6,391 8,752 6,370 5386 5725 6658 5161 4542 4685 284 298 400 982
Deferments 5939 7,818] 5,741] 6,728| 5,664 8,340 8,178 8629 15934 11994 9444 10950 12178 867 921 1727 3515
Active Retirements (Employer retirements) 3,317] 3,950] 2,475] 2,279] 2,351 2,775 2,593 2676 2280 2112 1908 2198 2520 260 204 251 715
Deferred Retirements 3,332) 2,970 2,971 2,726] 2,301 3,421 3,652 4429 4814 5071 4844 5507 5511 399 381 456 1236
Deaths of members 295 262 287 285 230 379 399 470 429 441 570 452 415 27 29 41 97
Refund 6877 4499 5036 6367 428 489 858 1775
Opt Outs 3585 1228 1228 734 38 78 233 349
Amalgamations 11682 8841 8098 13944 346 685 592 1623
PensT@ler members

Q
Procddsl type
Chang\]:els in circumstances:-
Data @?Passwords, NI Numbers 1,310f 1,804] 1,865 2,017 2,604 4,548 2,427 3105 2694 1953 1761 2457 2646 140 252 241 633
ChangTas of Address 2,420] 2,681 2,131) 1,732 1,733 2,237 2,589 3004 2628 2423 2448 2886 2790 203 389 254 846
Changes of Bank 2,927 2,531 2,783] 3,420] 3,281 1,573 2,272 2214 1957 1874 1593 2057 2118 168 185 176 529
Deaths of pensioners 2,085 2,145] 2,101] 2,546| 2,454 1,702 2,813 2919 2793 2650 3886 3226 3647 238 397 296 931
Payroll
Actual number paid 792,724] 837,189] 870,804] 895,018] 913,864] 888,954| 915,275] 945,196] 979,819]1,019,295|1,094,949]1,105,423]1,163,140] 93,863] 94,000f 105,825| 293,688




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C

KPI performance April - June 2023
3
&
&
Q

90
80
0
60
0
0
0
0
10
0
=

100
7
5
4
3
2

B Apr-23 H® May-23 ®Jun-23



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D Application for admission body status

Employer name Guarantee Status No. of employees Status
(Agreement) (Scheme members) (Approved/pending
Agreement type approval)
Compass Contract Sandwell MBC 10 Pending approval
Services (UK) Limited (10)
(Smethwick) Closed
The Futures Trust 3 Pending approval
Taylor Shaw Ltd (The 3)
Futures Trust) Closed
Compass Contract 2 Pending approval
Services (U.K.) Manor Hall MAT 2)
(Castlewood School) Closed
Tenon FM Limited Finham Park MAT 9 Pending approval
(Finham Park MAT) (9)
Open
Priory Park Community Dudley MBC 3 Pending approval
School CIC (3)
Closed
Pendergate Ltd (Stoke The Futures Trust 11 Pending approval
Park School) (13)
Closed
Sodexo Ltd (Oasis Oasis Community 5 Pending approval
Academy Hobmoor, Learning Trust) (5)
Foundry & Blakenhale) Closed
Cleantec Services Ltd Birmingham CC 1 Pending approval
(Queensbridge School) (1)
Closed
Sodexo Ltd (Oasis Oasis Community 5 Pending approval
Academy Hobmoor, Learning Trust) (5)
Foundry & Blakenhale) Closed
Cleantec Services Ltd Birmingham CC 1 Pending approval
(Queensbridge School) (1)
Closed
Caterlink Ltd ( Langley Solihull MBC 4 Pending approval
Primary School) (4)
Closed
St John Bosco MAT 13 Pending Approval
Miquill Catering Ltd (St (13)
John Bosco MAT) Closed

Page 49




Solo Service Group Ltd
(Walsall School)

The Mercian Trust

1
(1)

Pending approval

Closed
Dolce Ltd (Park Hall Infant | The Loriners MAT 1 Pending approval
Academy) (1)
Closed
Alliance in Partnership Bartley Green SAT 5 Pending approval
(Bartley Green) (5)
Closed
Innovate Services Ltd Sandwell MBC 2 Pending approval
(The Phoenix Collegiate, 2)
Sandwell) Closed

Page 50




This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Iltem No: 7

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Pensions Board
17 October 2023

Report title

Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Risk and Assurance

Pension Services

Rachel Howe Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance
Email Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. The latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in the current

environment.

2. The Fund’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and action taken to support service

delivery.

W

The compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter.
The statutory delivery of members’ 2023 Annual Benefit Statements.

Page 51



mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

To provide the Pensions Board with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well
governed scheme.

Risk Register

The Risk Register captures the potential for impact in the Fund’s service delivery as a
forward-looking review, together with horizon scanning for changes which may impact or
require change to the Fund’s processes and delivery model. As such, the risks are
refreshed each quarter and the directional arrows therefore reflect the trend on the risk
assessment pre and post actions and mitigations (as opposed to quarter-by-quarter
comparison).

This quarter the Fund continues to be alive to the potential for change across the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), noting the launch and potential outcome of a
number of industry wide consultations, together with the potential impact that change has
on both the Fund’s ability to resource, train and develop our people, linked with the
industry wide issue of resourcing and retention across key skill roles. This in turn having
an impact on the Fund’s customer base who are also needing to keep pace with the
change. Further information on the potential regulatory changes are outlined in the
Regulatory Update paper.

With the potential for change also comes the focus on knowledge and skills of those
charged with governance and decision making. The Fund has always taken a proactive
approach to supporting the knowledge and skills of its governing bodies as well as its
officers and continues to evolve its training and development offering to ensure the
knowledge and skill of the Fund evolves with the environment in which we operate.

As the Fund continues to review the outcome of the triennial valuation, it is working with
its appointed advisors to review and test its assumptions to ensure a robust strategy
resilient to any future events.

The risk register is attached at appendix A.
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
Attached at Appendix B are the Fund’s KPIs, as at 2023/24 - Quarter 1.

The Fund adopts Key Performance Indicators based on regulatory standards with a look
across operational performance on key functions. The monitoring, undertaken by the
Compliance team, reviews the potential for risks and failures in internal controls in the
delivery of those functions and seeks to provide assurance of the adequacy of the
systems and controls adopted by the Fund. There are no breaches to report this quarter.
Further details with regards to the Fund’s Benefit Operational Processes and Pensions
Services KPIs are covered in both the Pension Administration and Customer
Engagement Reports.

Page 52



3.3

3.4

4.0

41

411

4.2

4.2.1

4.3

4.3.1

This report is PUBLIC

Contact with the Fund’s customer call centre continues to be high, noting the increasing
complexity in the scheme rules as members seek to understand their pension benefit
options, with call durations increasing over the period thereby increasing call waiting time
for members. The Fund continues to review its resource to support the call centre, in light
of ongoing capacity constraints, with this being an area of monitoring by the Compliance
team in context of the increasing pension awareness together with the Fund’s own and
wider regulatory change.

The Fund continues to respond to information requests in accordance with statutory
deadlines. Additional time is taken in relation to some requests to fully validate
information prior to issuing responses with timelines communicated to requestors in line
with statutory requirements.

Compliance Monitoring
Data Protection

This quarter the Fund are reporting ten data breaches, an increase of two on the
previous quarter. Analysis of breaches identified determined that each was considered of
low risk to the individual, meaning subsequent risk of fraud was low due to the nature of
personal information released.

The Governance team continue to monitor breaches and identify actions to improve
controls. The Fund hasn’t identified any systemic issues in the management of its data
and the Governance team continues to work with service areas to implement ongoing
enhancements in systems and individual knowledge. The root cause of breaches during
the quarter was human error. Where errors have occurred, feedback and, if necessary
additional training, is provided to Managers and Fund employees by the Governance
team.

Freedom of Information (FOI) Requests

The Fund received four FOI requests during the quarter, all requests received by the
Fund have been responded to within the statutory deadline. Information requests this
quarter have focussed on the Fund'’s investment activity and asset holdings.

Subject Access Requests (SARs)

The number of SAR requests received continued to increase, with twelve requests
received in total and the statutory deadline for responses was met in all instances. Nine
of the requests received were from third parties, relating to members that had previously
transferred out of the LGPS. As reported previously to Board, members are always made
aware of third-party requests for personal data and the Fund always obtain consent from
the member prior to releasing information to third parties. The Fund is a signatory to the
Pension Regulator’s pension scam pledge and seeks to provide support to members in
cases of suspected pension scams.

Page 53



5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

This report is PUBLIC

Annual Benefit Statements

The Fund has completed the statutory delivery of Annual Benefit Statements for both
Deferred and Active members, achieving coverage of member benefit records at 92% for
deferred members and 85% for active members. All statements have been published on
member pension portals in advance of the statutory deadline of 31 August. Analysis is
currently being undertaken on the reasons for non-production of ABS and engagement
with employers is ongoing to support their understanding of data requirements. Reasons
for non-production are generally related to outstanding data queries or rectification
together with current active processes which prevent the ABS being produced (for
example, where a member is pending a transfer to an alternative pension provider, are in
the process of retiring or amalgamating pension records).

This year the creation of Annual Benefit Statements was particularly challenging with
planned early production in place to ensure the production of statements ahead of the
administration system transition. This was done in mitigation of risk on meeting key
disclosure deadlines and information points for members.

Financial Implications

Effective monitoring of the management arrangements, facilitated by timely disclosure of
information, is required to ensure the Fund is well placed to ensure the delivery of its
administration, funding and investment strategy. Poor management of the Fund’s data,
financial information and assets can result in additional costs and detract from
investment returns.

Failure by the Fund to meet statutory requirements of effective governance and
administration could result in fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator (tPR).

Legal Implications

Failure by the Fund to comply with legislation and/or statutory guidance can result in
enforcement action and fines from both tPR and the Courts via judicial review.

Equalities Implications

There are no direct equalities implications.
Other Potential Implications

There are no other potential implications.
Schedule of Background Papers

Pensions Committee KPls from September 2022.

Page 54


https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s220554/Appendix%20D%20Key%20Performance%20Indicators%20-%20new.pdf

This report is PUBLIC

11.0 Schedule of Appendices
11.1  Appendix A: Strategic Risk Register

11.2 Appendix B: Key Performance Indicators

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



dav

H0H

'ssao0.d

ay} ul Aousioie dojonap

0} sdnoub JaAojdwa sy yum
AJoAI}BIOgE||00 SHIOM pue
aoueInsse apirold 0} papasu
sjuswaiinbai 8y} puejsiapun
0} slojipne siakojdwa

pue umo s} ‘10}09s

ay} yum sabebua pung ay|

1V

uoioy Joy
a|qisuodsal
(s)1=20u0
Jolusas

Vv Xipuaddy

‘sjuswialinbal

Buinjons Bunesw ul pie

0} buluue(d ainyny spoddns
yoiym saapiwwod Aajjod pue
sdno.b Buiyiom |euoneu uo
ajedioiued s1eoyjO "saIpoq
apeJ) pue [euoissajold

10 XIW B Jo slaquiaw aJe pue
swisijeloads [enpiAlpul 8AeY
sJabeuep Joluag s,pund ayl

"AjoAnoaye sa|ol

wuopad o} eoualiadxs pue
abpajmouy| 9A1109]|00 MaIABI
Ajdunnol pue swwelboud
Buiuiesy painjonus

e aAey saipog Bujuianon

‘palinbal asuodsai

pue abueyo |ejusiod ayy

0] 92I0A pue jybisul aAnoeod
e Buiney Agasay) ‘sasuodsal
UOI}B}NSU0Y 0} S)NQLIIUO0D

0} Jojoas-suoisuad Japim

pue Sd97 8y} ypm abebus o)
Ajunpoddo ayy Bupey Ajaioe
‘uonique Aioyenbal pue
Aoljod Buidojensp Jojuow

0} S9NUUOD pun4 a8y

suoneBnIN/suonoY

|0J3U0D
1sod
awo9IN0
Sy

JUSWISSaSSy
ISty
09 1s0d

JUSWISSaSSY
sy
00-8ld

sJswosny pue ajdoad

sy pue soueldwo)

Jo} abusjjeyd pasealoul
0} Buipes| pue BuiAlp os|y

"SaI}IAIJOB pUn4 Ul S810UBIdIYBUI
s9)eald sjulelisuod Ayoeded
pue Aauajsisuooul ‘ebueyd
apIM-Wa)sAs AQ UBALIP YIOM
Jpne [eusaxa ul Aejap buiobup

8oueINSSE [BUIBIXD
JO uoisiaoid pue Jipny

sJswosny pue ajdoad
)siy pue soueldwo)

2oual|isay |euoneladQ

Aioud ayesodio)

"'€20Z AInp payoune| ainyno

pue Ajjigedes aajsnJy uoisuad
uo 92UdPIAS 10} ||eD | INH/JAMA
'SdO1

BU} UIYIM S|IINS pue abpajmou|
Joj yJomawelH pue apod vV4dID
8y} Ul 10 }8s suswalinbal

10 Majaal 0) payull Buipuelsiapun
pue abpajmouy Jo [9A3] 8y}

uo Joje|nbay suoisuad ay} pue
(avs) pleog Alosiapy swayog
wou} aouepinb pue uoienbal o}

sabueyo uo uoneyNsuod Buipusd

S19910 ST
pue saipog BuiuieroD
Y10q ssoJoe juswalinbal
SIS pue aBpajmouy
uo snooy Buisealou)

(suonouny

uojjessiuiwpe uoisuad pue
JUBW}SAAU| SSOJOB) Seale 9DIAI9S
10 Jaquinu e Bunoedw! abueyo
Buibuel-apim ul }nsas Aew asay}
aJaym wua) Jabuo| pue poys

8} Ul pun4 8y} Jo} sanss| Ay au}
uo Buisnooy ‘uoneynsuod oioads
-Sd91 pue sawayy Ansnpul
Buipno-sso.o yjoq oy puodsal
puUB M8IABI 0} PBaU ||IM pun4 ay |

slaALq JuaLIng

sajuoyIny
Buus)siuiwpy

Sd91 Jo} aouepinb
pasinal pue abueyd
Aioyeinbai ul jnsal

0} |enuajod ay} aney
yoiym Ajne ur payoune)
a1om (Sdo7 Buipnpour)
J0}08S JUBWISdAUI

pue suoisuad ay}

0) JUBAS|3J SUOIJE}NSUOD
Jo Jaquinu ¥

SML XS

Page 57/

Aioje|nbay
/ 80UBUISAOD) L

104
awayl ysiy sty

€20z Joqwaydagsnbny
13)s163Yy Ys1y 2163jeI)g — pung UoISUdd SPUe|pPIN ISOM



v

‘pund ayy

o Juswdojanap aininy pue
ymolb aakojdwa [enpiaipul
a|geus 0} palojie} pue
pajabie) si Buiuies] ojohoay)
aakojdwa ayy ssouoe

s|ns pue abpajmouy dojaasp
0} sjuawyedsp |e ssoloe
Buniom Ajpaioe si pung ay |

v

‘uonua}al
PUE JUSW}INJIOSI IO} SISALP
Aoy Bulaqg se jusweabebua

aafojdwae pue juswdojarap
‘ainyno [euonesiuebio
Bunou Buiayo s

1oy ew ued I skem Buimainal
Aj@Anoe si pun4 ay]

slawojsno pue ajdoad

aousal|isal [euonelsadQ

‘abueyo

0} Buipuodsal Ajaaizoays pue
spiepue)s sa2IAIas Buluiejuiew
0} Aoy aq |m Buiagjem

pue Ajjibe ainsua 0} pun4 ay} Jo
Aljige ay) ‘ebueyo Alojejnbal pue
ssauisng Bujobuo pue sjuiensuod
Buloinosal Jo 1x8ju0d uj

‘uiejal
pue ‘ulel} ‘a0inosal
‘Aleyenbape o} Ajjiqe
Ino pue |eyded uewny
INo uj 8dualjisal 8y

v

‘diyspsemas pue Bupuodeay
ajewl|n abueyo ‘syosfoid
Bunoddns uo snooj jualind
ypm ‘asodind a|diyinw 198w
0} S}9S UOJjew.ojul / ejep pue
s|oo} Bunuodau sy 9oueyUS
0} S9nNUUOD pun4 ay ]

aousal|isal [euoneladQ

sJawosny pue ajdoad

"UOI}O8[9S pUB }SBIB)U| S)EpIPUEBD
1oedwi 0) anuiuod ‘sedijoeld
Buiyiom ur Ayjiqixs|y pue sjyauaq
Asejjioue yym Jayieboy ‘syoadsold
pue aoualadxe aakoldwsa ‘sjes
[I}S puewap-ul pue adualadxa
Jo abeyioys 0} anp aAnedwod
sulewal jayJew juswAhojdwg

anedwod

Alybiy ebpsimouy pue
s||s A8 Jo} JuswinIoal
Buyew Assnpul Joyoas
juswisanul/suoisuad
pue Sd97 8y yoedu|

0} Buinuiuo9 sjuleI}SUOD
Buioinosal apim Aiysnpuj

9oual|Isay
|euoneladQO

"Sjunoooe
pua Jeah zz0gz jo uonajdwod
By} UO UojUIoY] JuelS)

pue [19uno) uoldweylaA|opn
10 AID ypm abebua

0} S9NURUOD pun4 ay ]

ysil pue soueldwo?d

"Aouaiolye asealoul

pue spuewsap Buibiawas }9aw 0}
s|o0} Buiuodal pue ejep asueyua
Jaypny o} pasinbai aq Aew
901n0sal |euonippy ‘sasod.ind
aoueINsse pue Juswabeuew

Joj pun4 8y} 0} [nyjasn

Buiuodas yum Aouedauosip Joy
|enuajod pue spiepuels Aisnpul
uowiwod payiwll yum ‘Buioinies
Jawolsno ‘Buipuny ‘ayew|o
‘JUBWISAAU] JO SEdJE U] SBIPOq
|leuoneu/Aioyeinbal wouy Buiwooul
sjsenbau Buijiodas pasealou|

‘Buipiodal

pue aoueulanob o}
spJepuejs BUIAjOAS yym
jybBisiano pue Buiodal
uo snooy Buisealou|

aoueInsse juapuadapul
Bupjeas sioyipne siahojdwo

Page 58

uonoYy Joy |0JjU0D
8|qisuodsal 1s0d JuBWSSESSY JUBWISSASSY

(s)1902130 awooINQ %siy o

Joluss suonebiip/suonoy NN uo? 1sod uoo-ald Aoud syelodio) slaALq JuaLIng a1l sy away] sty  Ysiy




dav

pue juswuolinua buibueyo
9y} 0} 9|qixa|} A1aAlap 921NI8S
syl ul Ayjibe ypm spuewap
Buibueyo oy aigeydepe si 1
Bulnsus Bulayo Jawoisno sy
MBIABI 0} SBNUIIUOD pun4 ay |

v

'SaI}IAI}OR pappe anjeA

10 AJanijap juaiolye ainsua

0} $992IAJ8S JO Juswdolanap
pue malAal aAjoays Bulgeus
‘way) 0} JUBA3|al SanssI

uo pun4 ay} abebus 0}
sJawo)snd 4oy sanjiunyoddo
sapinoid os[e Ing ‘s1awo}sno
poddns 0 syeas Ajuo jou
1ey} swwelboud juswabebus
SAIJOB UB U)IM SWEea) S90IAIS
Jafojdwe pue Joquiaw

psjeoipap sey pund ayL

VHOH
SdOH

‘sjealy) [eusaixa |enuajod

0} Buipuodsau pue BuiAyuapl
J0 9|qedeod ale e buunsus
‘ssaliddns pue swajsAs

11 S¥ ||e jo swweliboud
Bunsa) pue aouelinsse [enuue
ue sayeuapun pund ayl

v

pun4 8y} 0} S8JIAISS

Ayjenb ybiy pue psppe

anjeA ainsua 0) 9|qe ale am
‘aouewuopad Jaiddns pue
sjoequo ‘sdiysuoljejal Aay
Buibeuew AjaAnoays ybnoiy

uopoYy 10}
a|qisuodsal
(s)1902130
Joluas

‘Juawdojaaap J1ay}

ul papoddns a.e seafojdwa
Buninsua uj pre syoayo
Bulaqem pue ssaooud
|esieiddy ‘sjuswaiinbai
Buioinosau Jo mainal Buiobuo
yum ‘sannoalqo ajelsodion
yum aulj Ul paspioud

aJe saAneniul abueyn

suonebiip/suonoy

|0J3U0D
1sod
awo9INO
JSiy

JuswsSsassy
Sy
[0U0D 1s0d

JUBWISSSSY
sy
uoo-ald

aousl|isay |euonelado

siswosny pue ajdoad

‘sjuswalinbau

Buioinlas Jawolsno 198w

0} 8|geun ag pun4 ay} pjnoys
abewep |euonejnda. |enusjod

‘suoljejoadxa

Jawoysno Buimolb 1oaw
0] 9AJOAS pue Ulejulew
0} pund jo Aliqy

sy pue soueldwo)

sJawosny pue ajdoad

‘puN4 8y} Y)IMm JoeJajul JI8W0}Snd
Aem ay) abueyo oy |enusjod ay)
aney yoiym sassaooud abueyo
ssauIsng Japim pue Asisnpul
wloJ} Yjoq uoziioy ayj uo ale
sabueyo |enuajod Jo Jaquinu

sJawoisnd uo joedw
Buniwi aiym abueyd
10 aoed Bujuieyuiepy

psppy anjep €

Buloiniesg

slawojsno pue ajdoad

aousl|isal [euoneladQ

"AJaAIjBp 921AI8S JNO Ul AJINUIBUOD
apinoid 0} JOA0D8I pue JS)SESIP
puejsyym ueo siaiddns uno jo
asoy) pue swajsAs Jno Bulnsug

Alanooay
Jaisesiq pue JaghD

Page 59

sJawojsno pue ajdoad

8oual|isal [euoneladQ

‘poddns Aep-0}-Aep a|qeljal
apisbuoje ‘syuswalinbal Buiobuo
pue juswdojaAap Jno }oawW
0] 9|ge aJe siouued uno Buunsug

sJaljddns Aped-paiyy
JIno jo aoual|Isal 8y

Aoud syelodio)

slaALq JuaLIng

S S

19y
awayl ysiy sty



dav iav

‘Bunew

uoisioap pue juswdojarap
Aoijod 10) papasu

JX8}U0D JapIM pue suone)wi|
ay} Bunou ‘aoueljal jopow
pue 9oua|[ISal }$8) 0} JapJo

Ul SOLIEUSIS |BJUSWIUOIIAUS
puE 2]Wou02d ainyny

M3IABI pue sawod)no Buipuny
pUB JUSWI]SOAUI 1S9} SSaJ}S
‘suondwinsse Bupjoo|-pJemioy
MBIABI 0} sJasiape pajuiodde
UHM SHIOM pund 8y L

1av

"Juswalels
ABojeng Juswisanu|
€20¢ 3y} ul pajoajal

Buraq sajepdn yum uonenjea
[elen)oe |eluuall) ay}

yum uonounfuoo ui Abajesis
JUBWISAAUI S} JO MBIABI
[ejuswepUN) B USYEeHapun
Sey pue sjaylew Japeolq
pue Buiuonisod josse sy
sJojuowl AjaAoe pun ay |

“Auiejon

Joyew widj-Hoys jo joedul
ay} ebeuew djay 0} Japio

Ul oljojiiod jJuswisaAul ay}
ssoJoe a2udl|isal Buipjing pue
uoljeoo||e Jasse 0} yoeoudde
oib6ajels e Bupye) Jojsanul
wJa)-6uo| e s pun4 ay

uopoYy 10}
a|qisuodsal
(s)1902130
Joluas

"90IN0sal 9|qIXal}
pue pajs jo Juswdojarap
‘Buiobuo yym abueyo

uonoe pue aje|(|0d ‘eyedpnue
0} Juswabebus pajabie) pue
Jenbas Buipnjoul pun4 ayy
JO [0JjUOD BY} BPISINO SJUBAD

suonebiip/suonoy

|0J3U0D
1sod
awo9INO
JSiy

JuswsSsassy
Sy
[0U0D 1s0d

JUBWISSSSY
sy
uoo-ald

sJawojsho pue
a|doad ‘diyspiemayls
‘uonejuswaidwy
JUBWISAAU|

uonnjond
Buipuny pue suinjal JUBWISOAUI
uo joedwi 8y} pue sjusns
Buibiews ainydeo Ajgyenbape
0} |1e} sjepow pue suopduwnsse
[eroueuy ‘pung ayy Aq
paJo}UOW SJOJEDIPUI DILIOUODT

ysu
[opow pue Bupseosslo

diyspiemals
aoual|Isay |euoneladQ

uoneyuswadwi
JusW}SaAU|

")oo|}no wua} Jabuo)

Bunoedwi pue Ajjie|oA wis)-loys
u1 Buiynsal SUoIIPUOD DILIOUODD
Buibiswa pue sanssi |eonjjodoab
0} Bunoeal sjeyew |eqojo

Auinejon yaxe

JuswiuolIAUg
olWoU00]

pue Buipun ¥

Aoud syelodio)

slaALq JuaLIng

S S

19y
awayl ysiy sty

Page 60




dav

‘siofojdwo

yym Juswabebus wiojul

0} ,sllyolem, e Buluiejuiew
‘Jueuanod Jakojdwa Jojuow
0} S9NURUOD pun4 a8y

‘JIxa Jokojdwa

pauueld jo juswabeuew
poddns 0} maiaal Japun si
uoljessad uo Aojjod Buipuny
‘suonessad pauayybiay
Jo/pue suolNquUIuod

10 JuswAed-uou ybnoiyy
salligel| uo jnejap Jakoidwa
lenuajod Jo ysi ay) abeuew
AjaAioe 0) syj98s pund ay
‘awwelboud juswabebus
peo.q e sulejujew

pue siaAojdwsa Buioe} sanssi
2y} Jo ssaualeme sulejulew
pue s)aas pun4 ay]

adueuld Jo peaH 40H
2ouelINssy
pUEB XSIY ‘90UBUIBAOY) JO peSaH VHOH
suolesadQ Jo pesH SdOH
SUOISUSd 1030311 JUE)SISSY dav
diyspiemals pue juswabeuep
JUBWISAAU| JOJoBUI( JUBISISSY SINIaY
S)UBWISaAU| J0}081IJ JUE)SISSY 1av
SUOISUS( JO J0J0a1IJ 9AINJSX] do0a3

uonoy Joj a|qisuodsay sJaoO

uopoYy 10}
a|qisuodsal
(s)1902130
Joluas

"GZ0z Iudy o} buluuni ¢

pue g sda}s 10} paouswwod
sey Buiuueld pue ssaiboud
ul sl €20¢ JequiadsQd

pua 0} Bujuuni ueld

au} o | dejs "Sg| pasinal
ay) Juswa|dwi 0} ue|d days-¢
e 9oe(d ul }nd sey pun4 ayl

suoneBniN/suonoy

ysil pue soueldwod

siswosny pue ajdoad

sMmojjyseo
joedwi 0 |eijuajod ay} aAey
uoIuM (SO dU3 Ulypm spuny
uaamjaq siajsuel) o} Buipesy)
S8INJONJ)SBI/)IXS/UOHBUILIS)

10 ¥su 0} Buipes| ‘JuswuoliAUS
juaund ay} ul Buipuny sahojdwg

ysiy Jakojdwg

Page 61

JUOD
1sod
awo9INO
JSiy

JuswsSsassy
Sy
09 1sod

JUBWISSSSY
sy
00-8l1d

uonejuswadwi
JUBW}SaAU|

Ajioud ajesodio)

‘ABajelis mau ay}
juswa|dwi 0} palinbal sebueyd
3y} JO 9|edS pue snooj ay |

slaALq JuaLIng

ABajeng Juswisanu|

S S

$9d

awayl ysiy sty




This page is intentionally left blank



Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

West Midlands Pension Fund - Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

West Midlands Pension Fund
s

Benefit Operations Processes

Reportin Target
KPI Summary KPI Description porting 8
Frequency Summary
R<80%
Refund Notification Notify member of Refund within 10 days of receiving required information Monthly A <90% 94%
G>=90%
R<80%
Refund Payment Refund payments processed within 5 days of receiving required information Monthly A <90% 98%
G>=90%
Transfer notification of transferred in membership to be notified to the R <80%
[Transfer In Payment o - P Monthly A<90% 100%
scheme member within 10 days of receiving payment G>=90%
Transfer in quotations processed within 10 days of receiving all the required R <80%
[Transfer In Quote | N 4 e o g el Monthly A<90% 99%
information G>=90%
Transfer out payments processed within 20 days of receiving required R <80%
[Transfer Out Payment A ) pay P v 8 req Monthly A<90% 100%
information G>=90%
5 P P q R <80%
Transfer out quotations processed within 20 days of receiving required
[Transfer Out Quote | ) g P v 8 red Monthly A<90% 100%
information G>=90%
e—— e e P o R<80%
Notificati f the actual benefits within 5 d: f by ti
Retiroment Notifeaton otification of the actual benefits within 5 days of receiving member option Monthly A<o0% 29%
form (Retirement Notification) G>=90%
. P R<80%
Payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record within 5 days of
Retirement Payment v iving electi P B . pay v Monthly A<90% 97%
receiving election form (Retirement) G>=90%
R<80%
Retirement Quote Notification of Estimated Benefits within 15 days of retirement date Monthly A <90% 98%
G>=90%
Deferred Retirement Notification of the actual benefits within 5 days of receiving member option Monthi Z:gx 98%
Notification form (Deferred Retirement Notification) v G >=90%
Payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record within 5 days of R <80%
Deferred Retirement Payment Y L N P 'p M Y Monthly A<90% 94%
receiving election form (Deferred Retirement) G >=90%
Issue quote letter within 30 days of the members eligible payment date or R <80%
Deferred Retirement Quote ) q o B Monthly A<90% 92%
receipt of request from member G >=90%
R <80%
Deaths of a death within 5 days of receiving the notification Monthly A<90% 97%
G>=90%
[Deaths Notification of Benefits |Notification of benefits payable to dependents will be issued within 5 days of]| Monthly :jgx 99%
Payable receiving the required information G>=90%
. P A R<80%
Payment of death lump sum will be made within 10 days of receipt of all the
[Deaths Payment U . ) N D v © Monthly A<90% 94%
required information G>=90%

KPI Summary

KPI Description

Reporting
Frequency

Target
Summary

In accordance with PAS >85% of calls to received to the Customer helpline to

[Customer Services Calls B Monthly R <85% 75%
be answered G>=85%
In accordance with PAS>85% of calls to received t o the Customer helpline to

Employer Services Calls e P Monthly R <85 97%
be answered G>=85%

KPI Summary

Customer Satisfaction

KPI Description

Customer satisfaction - feedback from events and interaction with members

Reporting
Frequency

Quarterly

Target
Summary

A<90% 90%
G>=90%

Reporti T: t
KPI Summary KPI Description eporting arge
Frequency Summary
[Member Complaints In.ac.cordance \f/ith the PAS all rnember complaints to be responded to Monthly Z:gx 91%
(within 20 working days of receipt G >=90%
st @amis In.ac.cordance v}/ith the PAS all ?mplover complaints to be responded to Monthly Z:gx N/A
(within 20 working days of receipt G >=90%

KPI Summary

Customer Engagement and Communication

KPI Description

Reporting
Frequency

Target
Summary

I Employer Portal to be available 95% of the time (based on working hours as R <95%
[Employer Portal Availability ) Monthly G>= 95% 100%
Web Portal Availability Pens.lons Portal to be available 95% of the time (based on working hours as Monthly x<_55% 100%
monitored) G>=85%

Risk

Governance and

Reportin| Target
KPI Summary KPI Description i B B
Frequency Summary
— R<80%
[Statutory Timeliness - Data
0 All Fund reports to be submitted in line with statutory deadlines Monthly A<90% 100%
Breaches G>=90%
R<80%
Statutory Timeliness - FOI's All Fund responses to be submitted in line with statutory deadlines Monthly A <90% 100%
G>=90%
R<80%
|Statutory Timeliness - SAR's All Fund responses to be submitted in line with statutory deadlines Monthly A <90% 100%
G>=90%

KPI Summary

[Common Data

KPI Description

Common Data

Reporting
Frequency

Monthly

Target

Summary
R <80%
A<90% 98%
G >=90%

Data Management and
Reporting

KPI Summary KPI Description Reporting Target
Frequency Summary
R<80%
|ABS [ABS produced for 100% of eligible active member records Annually A<90% 91%
G>=90%
R<80%
DBS DBS produced for 100% of eligible deferred member records Annually A <90% 100%
G>=90%

Page 63

oe



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 8

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Pensions Board
17 October 2023

Report title

Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Annual Report and Accounts 2022-23

Pension Services
Christopher Manning Head of Finance

Email christopher.manning@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
Email rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. Delegation of the authority to the Chair to approve; the final Statement of Accounts, once
the audit is completed, and the final publication of the Fund’s 2022-23 Annual Report,
agreed by the Committee in June 2023.

2. The External Audit plan issued by Grant Thornton and previously circulated to the

Committee.

3. An update on the Fund’s External Audit from Grant Thornton.

Page 65



mailto:christopher.manning@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

41

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to update the Board on the external audit and finalisation of
the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the Annual Report for
the 2022/23 year.

Background

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds are required by law to produce an
Annual Statement of Accounts. These form part of the wider Administering Local
Authority’s accounts and are subject to Local Government Accounts and Audit
regulations and publication deadlines. They are also included within the Fund’s own
Annual Report and Accounts for audit and publication by 1 December each year.

In preparing their accounts, Funds must have regard to proper practice and to any
guidance which has the effective standing of ‘statutory guidance’. These are, for the
Statement of Accounts, “The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2022/23” as published by CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance &
Accountancy) (‘the Code’).

In line with the above, as well as being published in the Fund’s own Annual Report, the
accounts for WMPF are included in the Statement of Accounts of City of Wolverhampton
Council. In line with the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2009, the transactions and balances of the Fund are separate and managed separately
to those of the Administering Authority. Monies held by the Fund are for the purposes of
the pension fund only.

Audit Findings

At the time of writing and subject to the final review finalisation of audit processes, it is
anticipated that Grant Thornton, the Fund’s External Auditor (appointed by the
Administering Authority), will issue an unqualified audit opinion.

Final sign-off of the accounts and issue of the final audit opinion is dependent on the
completion of the Administrating Authority’s audit and the Fund will continue to work with
the Authority to ensure the completion of these processes.

In accordance with International Auditing Standards, the Fund is required to confirm to
the external auditor that it has complied with all relevant requirements and provided all
relevant information to the auditor. This takes the form of a Management Representation
letter, signed by the Chair and the Executive Director of Pensions on behalf of the Fund.

Publication
The Fund’s draft Annual Report and Accounts will be finalised in consultation with the

Chair and circulated to members of the Committee for comment prior to approval. The
approved Annual Report will be placed on the Fund’s website at the following link:

Page 66



4.2

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

This report is PUBLIC

https://www.wmpfonline.com/about-us/corporate-information

The consolidated Scheme Annual Report for the LGPS in England & Wales will be
published by the Scheme Advisory Board in due course, expected late Spring 2024.

Financial Implications

The financial implications are discussed in the body of the report.
Legal Implications

This report contains no direct legal implications.

Equalities Implications

This report has no equalities implications.

Other Implications

This report contains no other implications.

Schedule of Background Papers

Statement of Accounts 2022/23, Report to Pensions Committee, 21 June 2023
Statement of Accounts 2022-23.pdf (moderngov.co.uk)

Schedule of Appendices
Appendix A — Grant Thornton External Audit Plan 2022/23

Appendix B — Audit Progress Report — September 2023

Page 67


https://www.wmpfonline.com/about-us/corporate-information
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s244410/Statement%20of%20Accounts%202022-23.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



(®))
©

(O]
£202/€0/\&
pun- uoisuad spup|pIn Hmm\%.

£202 Y2IDW |g Buipus Joag

upjd }Ipnp |PUIIX]

uojuloy | Jueli) o

Vv Xipuaddy



o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiD £202 @

*SUOISSILLIO JO 190 § JSYJ0UD SUC 10} S[¢0| 10U 810 PUD JsL30uo auo *9308i|go 10U op puo ‘o s1usBo Jou suo swul Jaqusw 81| PUD 7|15 'swul Jequisw au) Ag paiaaep a1 sso1aieg diysisuliod spimpliom o
10U 8D S JaqluaL ay} pue (15 *(1119) PI] [PUCHDUISIU| UCIUIOY | JUBRIS) 4O WY JaqWsLU D 8| 477 ) uoluioy | upisy ‘Aioying 1enpuos |piounul sy Ag paipinBal pup pasuoying s{ 7] 3N UOIUIoY | 3UDIL) *8DIH0
palaysiBai ino woly 8|qo|IbAD §| Slaquisw 10 131 ¥ "OY| Y203 ‘Uocpuc ‘aipnbg Aingsuid gg teowo palsysiBay ‘2+//0800 0N $8|opn pup puo|Bug ul paisysiBai diysiaupund Rujigo)| payiLul 0 sl 4717 M Uoluloy | uoaes)

asodind Jayjo Aup oy papuaiul
Jou ‘104 paundaid Jou som yodsl
siy3} so “podal siy3 Jo JUSU0D
ays Jo sispq ay} uo Buyoo

wody Buiuiouyel so ‘Bunop Aupd
paiy} Aup o3 psuoispooo sso| Aup
104 Ayjiqisuodsel Aup 3deoon
JOU Op 9AA JUSSUOO usPLM Joud
4no 3noyym pd ul 1o sjoym

ui pejonb aq jou pjnoys pup
yyauaq anoh soy Ajsjos paindaid
usaq spy podau siy) 's|o13u00
jpuisyul anof ur sessaupem

[|© 40 pun4 uoisuad ayj

108440 Aow Yyoiym sysu 8y} 4o ||
Purpodau ioy nofi 0y sjgisuodsau
play aq Jouupnd am Jojnaipd

ul pup “aBupyo o3 Joslqns

aq Apw Yyoiym ‘siepowl JUDAS|S.
ay} ||o Jo piooal aaisuayaidwod
D Jou si 3| 'ssadoid Bujuup|d
Hpnp ano jo uod sp nof

0} papodal aq 0} pasu analjaq
8M UDIUM ‘UO[IUSJID INO O} SWO0D
aADY yoiym siayzpw ayy oy Ajuo
aypjas podau siy} JO SJUSU00 Y|

Vv Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD

le
6l
8l

74

9l
Gl
cl

H
oL

abpy

aoupuiarob
yim pabioyo asoy} Yim Sisjpw JIpND O UORDOIUNWWOY)

89098 ﬁﬁjU:COC UCU QOCMUC®Q®UC_
sa0} 3PNy

pasiaal

glLe vS| Buipnjour spippupis Bunipno pajopdn pup sasj Jipny
woa} pup sonsiBo| Jipny

ABeyong 1pny ||

Ryjpusyow o3 yopoiddp unQ

suonppuswwooal Jpaf Joud 3suipBo ssaiboiy
sJ9)IPW PUD SYSU JBYIO

payynuap sysi JupolIuBIg

Saul|pPaY pUb UOONPOIIU|

sieppw Aay)

uornoag

SjuUauU0)

wooByn@uosuanslstuaqg J
000h2le 1elo L
18Boupyy 1uDySISSY

UOSUDAD}S Uag

woo 3B yn®ARsjmorpiabp 3
Ge2sgeeelelo 1
19BpuD)y

fisymoy piang

woo1BN@PMmasipyoryliey J
1906/8€ 1210 L
18Bouppy 1PNy

DMasIDYD YHa)

Woo 1D NU0sial}od’™q-iubib J
000Hh 22 1210 1

Jaupnd ypny fey

UO0S19}}Dd JuUDiD)

194D Si9qUIaW WD3)}
uojuioy] Juni fiax anog

¥

ooo

Page 70



£ o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiD £202 @

*10}08s 8y} ssolop Buipodal |proupul) 81piN00D pup Juslsisuod poddns 0} sjual|o JaYlo Yiim syul| Bupiomisu 81peio pup spadxe Ao Ypm
senss| ssnosip ¢ uonpjaidisiul puo souppinb |PoIUYDs) 188)D| 8y} SS800D 0) S}USI|D JNo 4o} sdoyssiom Buiiodal |pioubuly [PNUUD PlOY 8AN

S10}DIUBWIWOD J0}OS8S J8Y10 pup s80.1Nn0s Jo abupi D Woif sanss| uo ybBisul
1no Buipiroid seyopdn 10308s Yim (eeniwwoD ysiy PUR 3PNy 8y} pup] 8spiwwio) suoisuad Jnof pup nof epircid o3 enupuoo |Im spp

"a0UDUlH JO POBH 8y} Yim paalbp usaq spy ‘Ub|d HpNY JNO Ul J8yiny 3NO }8s sp
‘@) pup yiom pasodoud INO 10308s JUsWUIBA0B [poo] By Ul Bupuodal jproupuly pup Ayjpnb 3PN 03 pepiwwos Rjginjosgo aup em ‘wuly o sy

sasuodsay inQ

"S80UDISWNOII0
pup sysu inof 03 paio|ipy si yoiym swwpiBoid jpnp [poo] B Bulubissp ul 1x83U00 SIY} JO JUNOOOD X0} [|Im am “JpnD Jno Buiuuod uj

"SJUBWISAAUL § pUn4 8y} aBoubw o} (y04) Riuoyiny 1onpuog) [piounul{ ay) ypm suosiad

sedoud pup yj uipwal Rayy Yy pub Buuojuow soupijdwoos ajgpyins Buiwiopad sip Rayy oY) 4jasy Ajsipos 0} steBoupw puny [puiaixe pup py]
[0J3ua]) Sd97 Buriojiuow sepnjoul yoiym swwpibolid Bunojiuow soupijdwos b sby 0S| pun4 8y ‘swpse) Juspuadspisiul SSOI00 S81}1|IGPIUN00D
pup sseooid Jo maiass ybBnoayy sjosuoo [pussiul Bujoubyus pup saiijigpdoo Buijunooon puny jo Jusuwdojarsp 0} pa| spy siy} a3pp 0] sesseooid
puD S|0J3U00 s} dojaAsp puR oULYUD ‘ejppdn 0} ZZOZ Ul Paprls yoiym woiboid uonpuwioisupay ay) Buinuiuoo s| uooUN 80UDUIH 8Y |
‘RBaypsys Buipuny s puny

8y} }98W 0} SUINSI JUBWISBAU| WUS)-19BuU0o| 8y} Bulisaljap uo pasnooy 186103 uinial b BuiuibIUIDW 18|IYM 3SI JUSWISSAUL JO S|SAB| ||DISAC B0NpPal
0} 8.IS8P 8Y) PUD UONDN|DA [DLIDNMOD 3y} Wouj uonisod Buipuny pasocidwi ayy Bunosiya. ‘syasso (s 1amoy) Buisi|igqols pup syesso Bulonpoud
awooul 0} uoioo||b diBsIL.S By} espaIOUl 0} BuinuRuoo pub s18ssD YIMmoub o) uonpoo||b 18610 By} onpPal sylng 0} puny UL ayY3 Joy (SS))
Jusweyyg Abeynulg JUsWISaAU| BY} UIYIM SUORDOO| D 18ssb o|Bajnis Asy ayy ul sabupyo o} Buipos| s UOIIDN|DA [DILUUSLY 2202 @Y} J0 uona|dwod
ay} apisBuop s1y| *es 0} snuURUD sdiysiagquisw palisisp pub sisuojsusd ‘jpisushb ul *Rgaiaym s|14oid sinjpw SI0W O SPIOMO} BAOW D 83ASN||I
03 Buinuuoo diysiequisw u) pouad paf Z| b 1eA0 pualy wiey-Buo| ayy Yypm molB 0} sanuijuoo pund ayj Ulyiim siaquiaul jo Jaquinu ayy ‘[|pien0
‘uoiisod 18U ayy 03 396 03 uoip|yUl 1NNy JBYBIY PUD SUIN}aI JUSWISSAUI 8UN3N4 3SD0a.04 Ul suoponpal Aig papbiiw ussq eaby suipb esay |
‘Apasbuoy ul syuswanoidwi peyoadxa ul sesbeloep pup polad ayy Jero pearoadxe uby) sespe.soul Jijauaq Ja||Pws apisbuojp suin}al Juswisaaul
pejosdxe Upbyy Jenneq ueaq aADY siy} 4o stealp Aex 8y 220z Yoir 1P (Pepun} 94e0L) snidins We/93 © 03 (Pepuny 9% hé) 6102 YOIPA 30

Holep Ugh|Q'LI © wouy Bulnow pun4 syl moys uoion|RA |pIUUSL] 2202 Pale|dwoo Apusdal ay) jo synsal ay) ‘Ajjpoo epposp ISp| U3 48A0 04001
4O $880xX@ U UIN}al b pejpieusb eAby spuny awog syessp uo suinjal Buolys jo esnpoeq Buisu usaq aaby sjeas| Buipuny g497 ‘sipef usoal u|
'sjUsWIHWWOD Jiayy eBoupbw Ajploubuly 03 subsw b sp gg @b Jeyp uoisuad J18y)}

0} 558000 Rjubs 10§ s1s9Nbal siow aAle0a. Abw spuny I NOIIP SIY} S8 bW sUoINGIUoS ashiojdwa punolo suomawniy Ri0INo)s 8y} IS|IYM ‘puD
sysenbal jno 1do aiow aaleoal Abw pun4 eyl ‘eoupisul 104 81500 Rjyjuow L1y} uo 3ong Buino jo Aom b sb suoiNUIUOD uoisuad 118y} 30 00|
P|N0D s1aqWaW 3D} SUISOUOD Pas|bl BADY SWodU|l pjoyasnoy uo sainssaid ay| uawfojdws ul esoyy Buipnjoul ‘diyspioy [pioupuly pup Apeaod
ojui spjoyasnoy Aupw Buiysnd si jany puo pooy ‘Abisus sp yons seijipouwwod P10 104 dojnomund ul ‘uonpyul Buisu ‘uonpindod |pisusb ayy 104

}X8]U0D |DOO| PUD |DUOIIDN

Page 71

sianapbw 9y

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD

"paspg su SI pUD ssauIsng
s pun4 uoisuaq a8y} jo Buipupysiapun
yBnoioyy b uo paspq si yoooiddo jipno InQ

‘saijijiqisuodsa

asayy Bul||ij|n} si pun4 uoisuay

3y} MOY PaJapISuod 8ADY A\ 04 PEIUNCOOD
Rladoud pup papipnbayps si Rauow

o1|gnd 3oy} pup ‘ssauisng s} JO }ONPUOD By}
10} @0p|d ui aup spuswebup.iip sadoid 1oy
2INsSua 0} pun4 uoisuad ay} o Ryjjiqisuodsau
ay} si 3| "saiyjiqisuodsau unof jo eapiwwo)
suoisuaq ay} 4o Juswabpubw aAs)|ai Jou
S0P S}UBWISYD}S [DIOUDULL 8y} JO HPND 8y |

‘(esniwwo) 31y 3 3pny ayi) eoupuianch
yym pabipyo asoyi Jo §jpyaq uo pup

Joj ‘eapiwwio)) suolsuad ay} jo ybisianc ayy
ypm juswebBoubw Ag paindaid useq aany
10y} SJUBWIS}D]S [PIoUDUL S puUN4 Uoisuad

a3 uo uoluido up Buissaidxs pup Buiw.oy 1oy
a|qisuodsau aup app "(3In) (sys|) Bunipny uo
SPJDPUD]G |DUOIIDUISIU| PUD 8POD) 3y} YHM
30UDPPIODOD Ul 39S SI }PND UNo Jo 8doos ay |

}pnD 1no jo adoog

o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiD £202 @

"S)UBWNDOP 858y} JO
yjoq 0} uoiuspL INoR Mpip app "puN4
uoIsuad SPUDPI ISSAN 4O J03pND
so sn Bunuioddop Joj s|gisuodsal ipoq
ay3 ‘(yvSd) swuswiuioddy 3ipny Jojoeg
ol|qnd Ag penssi senijigisuodsay
}JO JUBWaA}P)g puD JuswWyuloddy
Jo suwd| 8y} ul pasibo ay3 ul 3no
}os 0S|D 81D saiji|igqisuodsal sAnoadsal
anQ "Apoqg pa1ipnp ayy wouy pajoadxe
S| JDYM pup pus pup uiBaq sio}pnp 4O
sanl|iqisuodsal sy} a1aym SaSLDWWNS
siy| “(,epoD ays,) @oR0OPId HPNY 4O
BP0 P31IIUS JUBWNDOOP D Panssi s
(LOVN 8W,) 221340 ¥pPNY [PUCKPN m:._n%u

san|iqisuodsau m>3_omawm%

"20uDPUIBN0B Yypm pabipyo asoy}

10} [ pun4 uoisuad ay},) pun4 uoisusq
SPUD|PIA 1S8MA 40 BpND Rioyniois

a3 Jo Buiwi pup adoos pauunid ay)
O MBIAIBAO UD sapiAcid Juswnoop siy |

asodiung

saul|ppay pubp uoi}dNpoJuj



o

‘up|d s1yy ul

4910 _Umk__—n___,um‘_ }40M Bl uo |Iplsp
ajow apiroid app .HﬂcmEBEm
[DIoUDUL JO HPND UD Ul

pnpJj 0} Bunpjai sanijigisuodsal
SJOHPND YY) Ohg

VS| pup TcmEmyEmm_E [oLIB}OW
4O S2jsl ayl mc_mwwwwnv pup
Buifiynuspy) gle yg| a1 esay |
upaf siyy payppdn Ajjupoiyiubis
uaaq aAPY Y2IYM SpIDpUD]S
Bunipno omy aip auay|

spiopup}g Bunjipny map

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD

"SJUBWISLDIS |PIDUDULY
ay3 uo uoluido aApoalqo up ssaidxe

0} 8|qp 21D pub Juspuadapul aio

aM 3Dy} WIJuod ‘uosiad paisnod yoos
PUD ‘Wl} D SD aMm puDp (p10Z Pasiral)
pJopuUP]g [POIYRT s [1ounoy) Bunoday
[pIoUDUI 8y} Y3Im paljdwoo aapby spp
"siadod

Bupjiom pup sjuswelols [DIOUDULY JO
}8s poob b BulsAljep pun4 uoisuad sy}
03 308[gns ‘pun4 uoisuaq ay3 404 [(Og1)

98h'893 - @84 40af Joud] 049°1/3
aq [|!M }Ipnp 8y} Joj 884 pasodoud unQ

.tOQMW_ |PnuuUy s J0lipny 418yl JO tUQ sSp

dn o1d 0} pasu Aay; syulod Rsuow oy
anjpA Rub aup aisyy J1 18PISUOD OS|D |[IM
Joyipno s,Auoyiny Buusysiuiwpy ay |
"Hoday sBuipui{ 3ipny Jno pup upj|d
Hpny siy} ado sa|qoUsAlisp mmx NO
'£202 4890300 03 AN woiy sop|d axo)
|iA3ISTA JRULANG PUD E2()F YRR PUR
Rionige ul 2op[d %003 JISIA WLBUI INO

sonsiBo| yipny

"WIG/Z'E3F 30 185 Usaq spyY [PIALY
Alupa|D 'g2/c0/1E pepua toafi ayy oy
ainjpuadxa |D}O} S PUN UOISUS 8Y}

JO 94,GY O} s8}pnba yolym suonopsup.Ly

JUNOJDY pund 1o} WGG'GoJ aq O}
AyiipLeIpW paulwIslep OS|D 8ADY SAA

'(WOLF Ad) WG H'63 1P 398 Usaq

soy |piALY Ape|D "eoupuIaA0B Yiim
pabipyo asoyy 0y |piaLy Aupajo, 2o
YoIyM 9SOy} UDY] JOYJO SJUSWS}0]SsIW
JO SUOISSIWO Pa}oaiiodun podal

0} pabi|qo aio BpA "£202/E/1E 3P SP
$}28SD JUBW)SaAUl SSOIB s pun4 uoisuaq
3y} JO 94,G/4°0 ©1 se1pnba yoiym ‘pun
uoisuad oy} 404 (WQOZF Ad) WG68L3
aqg 0} Q¥N @Y1 uo AyjpLslbw sulpoay
PaUIWLID}BP SADY 8M SIUNCOOD }DIP
paysijgnd Ajpusoai ayy uodn paspg

‘(y4) 3unoooy

pun4 8y} pup (SN JusWen}g 18ssy
19N 8y} 104 sjans| Aypusybw sypindss
Bumes Aqg upah siyy Rypusiow

0} yopouddp uno pabubyd aany app

Ry pusjppy

o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiD £202 @

‘Hodsy

(092 vsl1) sBuipui4 3ipny

ano u1 nofi 03 JIpND 8y} wouy
Buisup siepw Jupoubis
say3o Rup sp [|jom s spaip
asay} uo sbuipuly Jupoiyiubis
9}0OIUNWIWOD |[IM BAA

‘(9 eBod sss) uoniubooa.
anuanal LOH_. v_m_h mum_.tjmwwgﬂ_
ay} payngaJ aApY SN
‘SJUBWIISAAUI € [9AS] J8L30 )
pup sbBuipjoy Apadoud ™~

Joadip JO uonpnbA ay | %

"S|0J}UOD JO BPLIIBAOC %
Juswaboubw - OHZ VS|
ISD paljjuap! Useqg ADY
10413 JUBWSID]S [DIOUDULY
|RHESB D JOiRo0gl1 o4l

8y} ssaippp 0} sainpaooid
PUD UOCIDIBPISUOD HPND
|p1oads Buninbau sysu esoy |

sysu JupoiubIg

saul|ppay pubp uoi}dNpoJuj



@ "1 AN Uotuioy | RIS E208 @

(s1e (In) vs1) Rjuippsoun Juswainspaw JuboIUBIS sI 818y} Yolym 10) s81pwnsa Buipunooon
jo juawdojansp ay3 epnoul Aibw sieppw PUswWBpnp *Ajjusnbaijul 1Nooo 8i0j8i8Y} JDY) PUD ‘BINJOU JO BZIS JBY}S O} anp ‘|pnsnun aip
1Dy} SUOIIODSUDI} SID SUOIFODSUDIY BUIINOI-UOY ‘sisppw |piuswbpn| pub suoopsupa) suinol-uou Juboliubis 0} 81bjal Us}o sysu JUDOIUBIG,

"a|p}da00pUN SO US3S a1D PND.J JO SWIOY [|D JDY} UpaW ‘Ipunoy) uoidwpyiaajopn jo AiD
‘pun4 sy} Joj Ruoyino Buusisiuiwpo ay) Buipnjoul ‘sailIOYIND [DOO| JO SHIOMBWDIY [POIY}S PUD BIN}ND 8y} -

"aUIODUI JUBWIISSAUI PUNOID

As1 8y Buionpau sapnp jo uonpipdss Buous Aiaa b epirocid (jpausd §497 Yyum pejood asoyy Buipnjou)
s1aBpupjy pun4 sy pup Riplisoda(] ay) ‘pun sy} usamiaq sanjiqisuodsal jo yids ayy ‘Ajjpouoisiy -

'spuny

Buialeoas pup Buiiaisunay sy} usamjaq jJuswaaibp 0} 30a(gns si Yoiym pup pailajsupiy ag pjNoys yoiym
JunowD a8y} 4o UoRPN|PA |PLIBNOD Juspuadapul ub Ag papoddns o aup swayos uoisuad ayj ojul s19ysuUDL} -

‘Rjayjijun uoniuBooal

sadosdwi Aup Bupjpw Aod ssoub 0} ajqpinqupo Aposuip aup pup sajnpayos juss Ajsypiodss Ag pspoddns ‘SNUBAS. M
21D pPUD SBIPOQ Pa|NPaYDSs / PARHIWPD WO} si8jsupiy junq 3oa4ip g eppw aib suolynquiuoo snusAal - 4o uoniuBooal D)
"SUOI}ODSUDI} YSDO sedoidwi ayy w
aAjoAu) fjjpiauab jou saop pup ajgpioipasd RjaAnp|al sjoadsas Rubw ul si anuaAal s pun4 sy} Jo ainou ayy - 0} aNp pP33R)ssiu o
‘pariwi| Ausa aup uoniuBooal sinjipuadxa pup anuaiss eypndiupw o} saiiunpoddo - el o
o o ' ’ o 1Py} ysu pawnsaud
uoniubooas ainjipusdxa pub anuaaal a1pjndiubw 0} 8AUBOUI 31| SI BJBY} - a|qoNNgal ysu
:9snpoaq ‘papIngal aq upd uoliubooas anuana. DSl 8J8y}  BnuaAal

wouy Buisb pnouy Jo ysi 83 104} PaUiWIBISP SADY 8M (JHZ S| Ul IN0 38 $1030D4 3s1 8y} paisplisuod Buiaby  oxz (BIN) YSI 4epun 0h2vs|

}su a8y} o0} asuodsai pasodoud uno jo sjoadso fay uoniPoIIUSPI ysiy
)SIJ 10} UOSDIY

"JUSWS1D}SSIW |[DlB}oW JOo 3su JaybBiy p aApy 10y} $)s14 8SOY} 84D SYSI JUDDIHUBIg
‘pPooyl|aXl| S} pub ‘Juawslp}ssiw Jo apmiubBow jpipuajod ayj “isi 8y} 4O 8UNIDU Y} JaPISUOD SWDa) }IPND ‘sysit Buifjnuepi
u| ‘uoppIapisuoo }pnD |pjoads ainbal Yoypnp ayy jo Juswabpnl ayy ul Joy; sysu so (HN) syS| Ag paulysp sip sysu JuPoRIUBIS

payuap! sysu JupolIubis

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiD £202 @

‘suoidwnssp asoy} poddns 01 aouapias 3senbai pup suopdwnsso

s Juswabpubw sbuaj|pyo 03 swpa) J0adxa pjnoys Juswabpubw sjUBWSILIS [PIOUDUY 8y} Jo uonpipdaid ay) Ul pasn auD SS}DWIRSS SIBYAA

‘0}249Y)} saBupyo J0 SPIPPUD)S
Bununooop 0y psoualtsyal saidljod Bununooson Asy o) pejdopp aapy Asyy yopoiddo syl pup sjuswbBpn( ey} 1oddns o) souspirs Juaiolyyns
Yim swpay juswebobus o} apiroid o3 j0adxe osjp pjnoys juswaboup)y *spaip Jpjiwis pub saypwinss Buiunooop 1o) aspo ayy aq Aow
yoiym |pyuswbpnl Aybiy Jo jupoyiubis ‘xa|dwos sip 3oy} spaip ul Juswasboubw sbus|pyo 0] swps) JuswaboBus joadxa pjnoys Juswabouby

"PUN4 UOISUSY SPUD|PIA 1S8AA 404 YSLI JUDOLIUBIS D 8q 0} SIY} JOPISUOD JOU OpP BI043UBY} SAA

‘Ajddp uoniubooas snusaal 0y Buno|as ¢ aBod uo pa)si| si0}oDy
[01INgaJ swps a8y} so ‘Aupssaoau si uonubooal aunjipuadxe 0} Bunpbjas 3su JupoUBIS 8ypipdas ou 1DY) PaulWIB}epP SADY
BM ‘SWDa1S ain}puadxa JUDAS|SL 8Y} PUD PuUN UOISUSH SPUD|PIA ISSAA O} JUDAS|24 SI0}OD) 3SI BY} PaispIsuod BUIADH

's3abup} [pIoupuly

}8aw 0} patinbau s1 3oy} Aue up Ajpioadss ‘palspisuoo aqg 0} spasu uoiubooas ainjipuadxs jo uonpNdiubWw 8y} WOy
asup Aow yoyy Bunuodal |ploupuly JUB|INPNDIY O} BNP JUBWS}D]SSIW |DLISIDW JO }SU Y] 3Py} s3sabbns | 810N 20110D.4d

(peningad)
uonubooau
ainjipuadxa

ul U:Eu_k/u
[b)

"SUOI}ODSUD.) [oNSNUN JUDOLIUBIS 10 sa)1PWIlse UBWS}DISSIW o
.wm_o__On_ mC_wCJOOOU ul m&WCULU Rup 10} s|puonpl ayj} a1pNn|PbAa - [olB}oW O ysU “_.CDU_tme_m D SP ssaulsng Jo %
PUD {80USPIAS BAIJDIOC0LI0D 0} PinBal Y}IM Ssaus|qouosDal 98INOV 3} SPISINC SUONODSUDI} PUD S81DWIRSS
18y} Japisuod pup juswaboupw Aq paijddo syuswabpn| yuswaboupw ‘sppuinof upjnopupd i fjosuoo Jo
|DO1}LI0 PUD s8)pWIse Buiunooon ayy jJo Buipupbysiapun up uPB - apLIan0 Juswaboubw paijijusp! 8104818y} S\
fUO1}010qO.I00 pub ssauayplidoiddp soy abBo}s sunoooD "soupuliopiad
}pip ayy 1ayp pup Jpah ay) Bulnp papiooal sjpuinol [pnsnun 1s8) - podau fiayy moy Jo swiey ur aunssaid
ssyouanol jonsnum sy yBiy snpun Jspun juswabpupbw sop|d Ajjpiusiod
Bunosjas Joj pusjLIo 8y} sulwialep pup Bunsi| sjpuinol ayy asAjpup - 5 A S e ek . 3., et o
uipuads sy jo Aunnios |pusalxe seop4 puNn
*s|puinof uoIsuad 8y| "seniua || ul yuasaid si 5|0sU0D S|0J3u0D
19/0 $|013U0D JUBWSBDUDW JO SSEUBARORYHS UBISEP By} B}ONIPAS - Jo aplIaA0 JUBWabBoubW 3Oy} Yysu pawnsaid JO BpL-1aA0
HITNE=TIN a|gpRINgaI-uou o st aiayy ‘0hz (MIN) VSI 4epun JusWwabBUD
}su ayj o} asuodsai pasodoud uno jo sjoadso Ray UOI}DOIJIJUSPI JSLI JOJ UOSDIY ys1y

panunuod) paljiuapl sysi yund1ubig

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiD £202 @

{$)S1I O]WoU093 JUPDIUBIS Jayjo Jo ojwepupnd ay} 03 ainsodxa |plusjod
Yim slassp Rup O} uonp|ad ul mmcm__of_nu pup Ew_U_u.QmwOw _UCO_wmmu_.O._O_
jo uefip| jpuonippw up Buifjddp Yojoss Ag sBuip|oy s puny ayy ashjpuo

"saoup|pq Buiso|o pup Buiuado
ay} Jo uoipI|1PUoDal Jno poddns 0} polad 8y} SS0IOD UOIIDIUSWNDOOP
swud o} sa|ps pup saspyoind jo Bunss) sjdwps sje|dwoo

"S]UBWISYD]S |DIOUDULY PS}IPND

1S91D| *3|qD|IDAD 8I8UM ‘PuUD SI8BDUDW JUBWISOAUI WOL) SSOUD|D]
|0}dPO Jo uopLUWLIUOD JoalIp 0} (1peh ay) Jo Jappnb pUl BY) Ul
SJUSWSAOW YSDO UMOUY 10} pajsnipp ajqD|IpAD Juawa)pn}s [pHdDO 1s83D)|
3y} ‘s}assD an|PA 0} JBPIDY JO 8SPO By} Ul Jo ‘aypp Bunuodal ayj 1o sp
jusweyp}s JojsaAul uo paspq AjjpoidAy) 1eBpaq pisuss) sy sed uonoNPA
ay} Buupdwoo Ag uonon|pA sy} s8] ‘sjuBWISaAUl Jo a|dwps D 10}

"8oupPpINB B|qD|IPAD U8l

1sow 4oy payppdn ‘syooq uonpn|pA ey ul ABojopoyiaw (Jus|pAinbs
10] (A3dI) uonpnpp [pydpY ainjua) pup Ayinb3 sypALy [pUCRDUISIU|
aypudoiddp jo asn Buuinsus uo snooy |puoIIPPL UL YiM ‘siabpupw
JUSWISAAUI WO suonpuLijuoo pus upsh ysenbau Rpuspuadapu

‘Jowl

alp apod 8y} 4o syuswalinbai ayy ainsus 0} JuswisaAul jo sadfy asayy
10} papiroid suoipn|pA pua upafi ay} JaAo spy Juswebpubw soupINSSD
JOUM JSPISUOD PUD SBN|DA PA}DWIISa JO SISO PUD BINJOU B} MBIAS.

"SJUBUWILSBAUL £ |9AZ mC_J_U__) 404 sassaoold w.#EmEmm_UCU_.,C 210N|PAS

jSU JUDORIUBIS D SD SJUBWISIAUI
€ |9A7 JO UORDN|PA PalJIIUSP] 810jaiaY} SAN

"S}9SSD 9S8} JO SAN|DA 11D}
3y} 83pwisa 0} spadxs uonpn|oA sp s1abpupw
JUSWISOAUL JO S9DIAIDS BY} BSI|1IIN JuBWaBDUDN

‘pua 1paf

10 uonon|PA aypLdoiddp ub yopal o3 Juswabpn|
jo a@a1Bap Jupoiubis o aiinbai ainypu Riea

119y3 Aq spuswiisaaul ¢ |aAa] 'siapipw [pjuswabpn|
PUD SUOIOPSUDI] BURNOI-UOU JUDDIIUBIS

01 81bjas usyo sysu JupoIubIs Glg 3| Japun

'suondwnssp fisy ayy ul sabupyo 0} aypwinss

s1y} Jo RYIAljIsUaS a8y} pup PaAjoAul siequinu

ay3 JO 8zIs 8y} 0} ANP SIUBWSYD]S [PIDUDULL BY} U
Juswabpupw Aq sypwnss yuboiubis b Juasaidau
al10ja1ay3 suonpn|pA asay| syndul a|qoAIasqo
>OD| SUOIIDN|DA JUSWISBAUI § [9A3] 81njpu Jisy} Ag

"9}DP SJUBWS}D]S |DIDUDULY
BU} 30 aN|DA 110§ By} Wodly Jusiayip Rjjpusiow
jJou st anjoA Buifuoo ayy 3oy} ainsus 0} sispq
- |PNUUD UD UO S]USWISSAUI S} SaN|DAS) pun ay |

Page 76

(uonpnipAaL
|pnuuy)
SJUBWISaAUI

£ e
+O COE.UJ_U\/

}su ey} 0} asuodsal pasodoud uno jo syoadsp Ray

UOIIDOIIUBPI YSI JOf UOSDIY

1=

panunuod) paljiuapl sysi yund1ubig

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiD £202 @

"poday sBuipul

ypny 4no ui nofi o} 3pnp ayy wouj Buisup siepow Jupoiiubis Jayjo Aup sp [[om sp spaip asay} uo sBulpul} JUDDIUBIS 8}POIUNWWOD [|IM S\

(g1e (IN) ¥SI) sweys o Bulpupisispun up UIDIQO ||PYS JOHPND SY3F PUD }IPND 843 O} JUDAS|S4 81D S3SlI YONs JBAC S|03u00 s Aipus a3
‘SOSDO YONS U| "UOIUSAISIUI [PNUDW OU 10 a3}| Yim Buissasoid peypwoino RyBiy juwued usyjo yolym Jo $013s1i9}onIoyd 8y} *s82up|og JUNCOOD
40 SU0OPsUDI] JO S8SSD|0 #CUU&._Cmmmw pup suinod 1o me:uLOOmP_ mﬁ.@_QEDUCM 40 81p.INd0DUl 8yj o} slpjad Row S)sl yong .wmng_nummUOLn_ aAIUDIsSgNs
wouy Rjuo souspias Jipnp sypudoiddp Juaiolyyns uipigo oy a|qpononid Jo s|qissod jou si 31 1oy3 abpnl Abw Joypno 8y} ‘sysu swos Jo Joadsal uj,

"S|0JJUOD JUDAB|AU JO SSBUBAIROaYD ubisap
uo podal Jo}IpnD 901AISS J8BPUDW JUSWISSAU| BU} MBIASI *B|qD|IDAD 818UM

‘Buipupysispun ano ypm Rousysisuoo pun sssusls|dwos
ssassp 0} Jan|pA sy} fig pasn suoidwnsso pup uonpwiojul ay3 abusyjpyo

‘uonon|pA ayy
uidispun 3oy3 suoidwnssp pup mmo_OUocumE oy} pup podal s aan|pA pun
a3y} Y8N|PA S pun4 8y} O} SUOI3ONJISU] 8Y3 SSBSSD O} JaN|PA UMO INo abobus

oW aup apo) Y4d|D 243 4o sjuswalinbal syj 3pY] 8insus 0} N0
PaILIDD SDM UOIIDN|DA 843 Y2IYM UO SISD] 943 WUIJUOD 0} JSN|DA 843 O} 9}lUM

‘uedxe

uonpN|oA 3y} jo Ayanoalqo pup saijigodoo ‘eousiadwod ayy a)oN|AS
*1aBoupw

JUSWISAAUI BY} WO SUCIDWLIUOD pus-1paf 1sanbai Appuspuadapul
DoMUYy

jo adoos ay} pup spadxe UOKDN|PA O} PaNSSI SUCIHONIISUI BY) ‘8}PWINSS By}
+0 COE.U_JU_UU mr:. LOH_. mCOE.D::CJmmU ﬂuCU wwwmw,UOLQ m.uC&E@WUCUE wu.U_J_U)w

isu
JuPo2IIUBIS D sp ‘spuswIPdWI PUD SUOIIDN|DASI
Alpnoiupd ‘syessp Apadoud play Aposup

JO UOIDN|DA PaIJIIUSPI 81048194} SADY SAN
"oljojpiod ay} 4o} JebpuUDW JUBWISBAUI UD SD [[aM
SD 9}Dp }99YSs 20UD|DG By} }O AN|DA By} S}PWISd
0} JBN|DA D JO $82IAI8S 3y} abBpBus Juswabouppy
‘suondwnssp

Ray ur sebupbyo o} apwisa siyy jo Ayanisuss

oy} pup (910p 398Ys 9oUD|DJ BY} 10 UG F PUNOID
oq 0} payoadxa) paAjoAUl sIaqUINU By} JO 9ZIS 8y}
0} aNp SjUBWSYD]S |PIDUDUL 3y} Ul Juswabpubw
Aq sypwinsa Jupolyiubis o syussaidas uonPN|PA
SIy | "9}OP SIUBWSID]S [DIOUDULL Y} 3O SN|DA

J104 84} wolf Jusiayyip Ajjouaipw Jou s anjoA
BuiRiipo ay3 3oy} 2unsus 0} sispq [PNUUD UD

uo Apadoud pjay fipoauip s31 senjpaas pung ay|

Page 77

(uonpn|oABL
|onuuy)
(Juswiysanu|
g 19897)
Aypadouy
PIeH Apoauq

4O uoRPN|DA

)su oy} 0} asuodsal pasodoud uno jo syoadso Ray

UOI}DOIJIFUSPI YSI 1O} UOSDIY

b il

panuijuod) paijiuapl sysi yupdjiubig

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



a "1 AN Uotuioy | RIS E208 @

“HpPno 'SJUNODOD PuUN4 PalIPND 3y} Ym podal [pnuup puny uoisuad ayy Ul papn|oul sjuUaWs}b}s
£2/2202 @Y 40 Hrd sp pajonpuoo aq ||im pup [o1oupuly puny uoisuad ayj jo Aouslsisuod sy} Uo saA|9sINO fysijos 03 J40M 1IN0 AP AN
sapah sa4yy Aiane suaddoy suom siy| “puny
ay3 jo spiooas Bulfzspun ayy yjim jus)sisuoo
s1 Aupnjop By} 0} papIWgNs UCHDWLIOUI
a3 1oy} soupinssp uiph o) pasinbai aup

"JOY 38U} JO 42 Uo}0ag Jspun aoijou Aiosiapp upb Buinss|
10 110y 83 4O | £ uonoag Japun maiaal [pioipnl b Joj Jo gz uoiosg Japun
MD| 0} AIDJIUOD S JUNODDD JO WS} UD DY} UOIIDID[OSP D J0j PN0D 8y} 0} uoipolddy .

9\ "S}uUNooop Jafojdwa pub s pun ayy UIYIMm 2101 Jo Aipyasoag ayy 0} paidod oy 8y} JO H2 Uonoes
$3INSO[OSIP PIOMIOS ||04 92SYI/61SY| suldispun Japun pun ayj} 0} SUCIIDPUSWIWODSI USHLIM Jo 3saisjul oljgnd sy Ul podsi b Jo 8Nss| .
SIU} 10} PIPP 8Y] "£202 [4dy/YoIDN Ul {SUBWIBYD]S |PIOUDULY

paysi|gnd s1am SUORPN|DA [DIUUBLY 2202 BY L £2/2202 @Y 03 uonp|al Ul paAieoal suoioslqo Aupb uodn epiosp pup Jepisuod ‘sjuswalp}s
"podal iUy Ul paiyuspl sys 8y 4oy paydopn [p1oupul £2/2202 4nofi Inogp suopsenb asipa 03 Ayunpioddo syy sioyosie Buial
mmtzbmoo\_a B3] SD SAISUSIXS SO 84 JOU |[IM “mc_ﬂz_oc_ “_ow‘__z_uw‘_ Usym pup sp ‘8po]) ayj pup co_yc_w_mm_ Japun sannp 4ayjo JN0 I8PISUOD SAN
sainpeooid Sy} Y8ABMO} "PRIPND 84 210jaisy} ‘RyLIOYINY BU 40 BBPBIMOU INO UHA JUSISISUOD S|
i SuDads deRSLEUDY PUD §89UDIBY pup uoiuido up sAIB aMm Y2IYm UO S}USWIS}D]S [DIDUDUL) PUN UOISUS U3} Y}M JUS)SISUOD SI 3 3Dy}

|PLSIBU ISUIO Iy 7, 9INSOJOSIP PUB 89UDIRY 44515 o) syuswisypys [pioupuly s 19UNoy) auy apisBuojb paysijgnd uopwiIOjul JaLY30 AUD PoaI SAN
JUNOYOD ‘SUOIIODSUDIY JO SSD[O [DLIS}DW

yooa 404 sainpaooid aAiuLIsqns wiopad ISP YoNs ‘pun4 uoisuad ay} jo }oadsal ul Moj|of 0S|D saljljigisuodsal EQJ@
pup ubisap ||PYs JO}PND 2y} ‘JUSWS}D]SSIW 4830 JO JaquINuU D 821300.1d JO 8pOL) 8y} Japun sanjjiqisuodsal [piausb uno sp ||am SO ‘a10}a18Yg)
_U_._mﬁ.UE .._.0 wv_w_._ Umwwmwa mr_u. +0 w}_womﬁwm._.: (@)
. . : ! 'SJUBWIBID]S |PIDUDULS S |IoUN0)) Y} JO Hbd WIo) SJUNCOOD § puUn{ UOISUd
.mC_H_UJd‘ uo mULUUCwa _UCO_H—UCL_GU_.C_ l_mmu_.._D " ¢ r%
o : ayj pup ‘( [1ouno, ayy] |1ounoy) uoydwnyisajop) 4o Ay Ag paisisiuiwpo si pung uoisuad 8
SUOI}ODSUDI} PUD S82UD|DQ |DIIBIDW JBaYIO JIOM 18430
.CO_H.UJ_U> C_lmjﬂ ®UCU.:.._wC_ T.:L_.._H_ 4._-_ mr_u. JaAD a2UupINsSsD QU_>OLQ 0l ELUJH_.UU _UC‘_m“_._..__ mn_.._r:_n_ m_{_u. mmUmcm °
pup ‘padxa ay} Jo sanljigodoo pup sous}adwod sy} JO JUSWSSaSSD UL pawiopad .
(wWhyL3
}|[IM BAN "BN|DA BY} BujuLIB}ep O} Hadxa [pUIsXe UD sD ‘uospiagoy supwhy ‘Aionjoy sisyy abBoBus yuswebouow ‘anjoa >n: WGGLT
mFI. m_,.___.._..__L_Q.._.mmu 0“_. l_m—ULO _,.__ .m“_.JQC_ m_ﬂU\CmmﬂO +O v_"UU_ D Ou. mjmu @)E.Umw_.ﬂjw m_fm_r_ m_ QUEU_UQ mr_“_. “_.DQ _U_L_mu_.UC.._ mec.u_ oul m_ _..__-DDQ - COB.U—..__U}

siy| "wniwaud Jjo-suo p 1oj uinjal ui [|0g Isnbny || 30 |joifind ayy uo sisuoisusd "PY] [9AR4| SPUR|PIN 1S9\ O} Buiipjas seiyijigol  ul-Ang soupunsu)
ainyn} sy} Bunesw Jo ysu 8y} sajuMIBPUN JA0D siYy| uabiaw ayy Buimo|jo} pun{ uoisusq SPUB|PI ISSAA 8Y3 0} pailajsuni} pun4 ajpiodag
mou spoy siy] “ABsyoays ysu s puny uoisusd || @y o uod so g1 /210g Ul @oo(d ul ind som ul-fing soubinsul Rjinuup 3|nq v Rpog peniwpy

jsu 8y} 0} asuodsas pasodoud ino jo s}oadsp fay pub uonDOIIIUBPI YSII 10} UOSDIY ys1y

S19}1bW pup S)SII 1BY10

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



U "1 AN Uotuioy | RIS E208 @

'sainpaosolid uononpoud sjunooop fAjuespupnb BuioBuo

“dompjai4 Ino Buunp papiaoid jo uod so uonpwioul xepul Buiuoddns Bulfijzspun
aq [|!m siy] ‘siy} Juswa|dwi 0y puajul Aayy paypolpul 0} S3ul| 31 unsua 0} paulal pub Rpepupnb paipdaid s
aApY Juswabpoupw Buiuup|d Buunp pjay suoIssNosIp U]  8|NP8YOS UCI}DIOCOLIOD 8} 8INSUS PINOYS JUSWSBDUDA ssalboud uj

"pua Jpaf |ploUDUL BY3 IO} 3|NPaY0s

JuawisaAul payppdn upb spy pun4 ayy [Iun pajuswsajdui 'sisoq olpouad b uo n_N
aq jou |[Im siy| ‘siy} Jusws|dwi o} puajul Rayy paypolpul  Buiisi| 39ssp s31 0} S3003U0O JaBPUDW JUBWISBAUI JO 3SI| SH o
aApYy Juswaboupw Bujuuoid Buunp pjay suoissnosip u]  Buijiouooal jo Rorjod p Jusws|dwi pjnoys JuswabouD) ssaJboud :@
o

anss| 8y} SSaIppPD 0} UdYD} SUOROD uo a3opd( pajooiunwwods Ajsnoiraid ysu pup anss) JUBWISSAsSSY

Hoday sBuipuiq ypny z2z/1202 4no ul papodas Buieq
SUOIIDPUSWIWIODS) OM} Ul Pa}Nsal Yolym ‘sjuswiajbls |PIoUDUl §puUnd uoisusd 8y Jo PN 2z/1202 Ano ul senss| Buimo||o) sy paijizuspl apn

suonppuUdaWIWODdL
}pno apah Jorid ysuipbp ssaiboag

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



at T AN Yooy | JUBD P02 ©
‘Ayjpusowl suljpoay 4o 945G pup 969
o 385 Usaq aApY |PIALY Apoeo pup AipLIB}PW BOUDWLIOLSH JUNODDY pUN4
3y} o4 "paijddp aq ||Im 8joym D SO SJUBLIBIDIS [DIDUDUL 8y} 4o} RyjpLiIsyow
YOIYM 104 ‘SUOIODSUDIY JUBWIISAAUL 104 3d89X8 ‘SUOIIODSUDI} JUNOOOD
puny ||o jo 3pnp ay3 o3 siyy Ajddp [jim app 1unoooy pun4 ay3 ul aunyipuadxa
ssoub jo 04Ggy 01 jus|pAINba s1 YoIym wGgGg'geF Jo Ryjpusipw o s BADY
3\ "oljojiiod Juswysaul sy wody pauap Apoaiip Jou si yoiym sjusws)nys
|DIOUDULY 8Y} JO S18SN 104 SNO0J JO DAL Aay D PalspPISUOD 81D 8SBY) SO *|aAI
Rypusyow Jamo) b Ajddo [jIm am sisym pup uoisioaid usypailb Buuinbai ‘SjUBWSIDYS
SWa}l SO JUNODDY PUN 8Y} UIY}M SUOIIODSUDI} PaUIWISISP SADY 8AA  |DISUDUIL 8} UO 109448 [DLIS}OW D SADY O} PaiapIsuod
‘paiinbau si uoisioaid usypaib uaym saoupysul aq 0} abup| aq 0} aAbY R|LOSSE08U JoU SBOP WY Uy
108}4b Apw 31 ausym ainjou Aq |pusipw aq o} paiapisuod aq Abw way uy $1019D4 J8Y30 2

S}UBWa}DYS [DIOUDULY AY}
ul sjuswapissiw Ajsyl] pup umous| Jo 10848 ay} Bunpn|pAs U 1sISSD  —
pup sazis ajdwps sulWIS}ep —

"AjpoLs3ow suljpoay
JO 944G PUD 940/ 30 39S Usaq aADY [PIALY Apsjo
pup Rypusyow soubwIopad "6202/E/LE ¥ SD §198SD

sisa} JuswsaAul ssoib s pun uolsuad ayi Jo 94G/4°0 O} o
UpPno puo JuswaBoBus ypnp uno jo adoos sy Bulysigpise i 3sisso — saypnba yoiym ‘wggglJ st ipno uno jo abpys Buiuup|d o
SjUBWaID]S |DIDUDUL) Y} ay3 3o Aypusio "puny uoisusd ayi 1o} £202/€/1€ n%u
JO sISDQ Y} UO U8y D] §19SN JO SUOISIDaP DILOUODS Sy} @9Uan|jul 0} 1o sp s3asso ssolb ayy jo uouodoid p uo paspq mua
pajoadxs aq Ajgpuospai pjnoo JUsWS}P)SSIW JO [SAS] IDYM YSI|qpIse — AjijpLIsIDW JUBWa}P]S |PIDUDUL} PAUIWLISISP SADY SAA
:0} JapJo U] Aypusiow Buiuup|d sulwis}sp spA uoIIDUIWIS}3(] L
sainpaooud J1pnp pauupb|d uonduoss(q  JSNDWN

‘MD| 8|qoj|ddn pup
aoiropud Bununooon s|gpidecop 03 sousiaypp pup sjuswsaiinbai ainsojosip 03 Os|P INg sjuswapyssiw Aipjeuow ayy o3 Ajuo
jou sai|ddp pup ssaooud JpnND ay} pup sjusWwa}p]s [plouDUY 8y} o uonpiodaid ayy 01 [pIUBWDPUNS S| AYjpuBsIowW Jo ydasuos ay|

Rypaa3pw 03 yoanouddn 1nQ

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiD £202 @

‘saljljigisuodsal soupuiaob Jtayy Buijjiyng ui 31 3sISsp 0}

29IWWIOY) JSIY G UPNY PUD 931IWILIOY) SUOISUSH 9y} 0} PAPOIUNWILIOD 8()
P|NOYS SUOI}081I0D SSOY} JOYIBYM JSPISUOD [|IM OM “}IPND 8y} JO 8SIN0D 8y}
Buunp paijiuspl sjusWa)DISSIW |DLIS}DW P8}08lI0D SADY JUswaboubuw §|
“WGLZET HPHL 988 5]

M J1 [o1AL} Rpa)o aq 0} patapisuod aq Ajjpwiou pjnoo soualayip [PNPIAIPUL
‘JUNoo2Yy pun4 ayy o4 [ane| Ay piaLy @3pindes b jes os|o aaby B\ “(WOLF Ad)
WG/H'63 UbYy ss9| s i [pIAL Rupajo aq 03 pasepisuoo aq Ajjpwiou pjnoo
80UBIaJ4Ip |PNPIAIPUI UD 10y} 8sodoid am ‘pun4 UoISUSH 8y} JO JX8JU0D 8y} U|
“ydom ipnp uno Ag paiyuep!

2JD 9S8y} IDY} JUSIXS S} O} SJUNOWD I8SS3| JO SjUBWa}L)SsIw pajsnipoun
Rupb sapiwwoy ysiy 3 JpPNY PUD 89}1IWWOYL) SUOISUsd 8y} 0} podas app

‘OISO 8AlOY|PND U0

annpiuonb Ruo Aq pabpnl isyieaym pup sypbaibbo u)
10 Rjjenpiaiput uaxoy Jayjaym ‘joiusnbasuooul Aps|o
21D Jpy} s1enpw so piALy Appsjo, seulyep (3N) 092
yS| "eoupuianrob yim pabioyo asoyy 0y |oiALy Aps)o,
21D YDIYM 9SOy} UDY} IS0 SIUDWS}D)SSIW 4O SUOISSIWO
pajoatiooun Jodau 0} pabiqo aup am ¢ soupuisrch
Yam pabipyo esoyy yym uonpouNwwog), (3N)

092 VS| Jepun »iom 1ipno ano Aqg palyiuspl aip asayy
}DY} JUSIX8 8y} O} SJUNOWD I8SS3| JO SpUBWSID)SSIW
pajsnlpoun Rub ssyiwwo)) ypny ay3 03 podal
SS8|OYHOABU M “B|OUYM D SD SJUSBWS}D]S |PIOUDULL 84}
uo uoluido INo 0} |DLIB}DW 81D YOIYM S}USISIDISSIW
Auspi 03 pauBisap aip saunpasoid JpND INOo IS[IYAA
29)IWwwo)) Hpny ay} o3 podal |[1m

am fAyipusipw 03 Bupjas suoRDOIUNWWOD JIBYIQ

‘Ayjousipw Bujuupid Jo uoDUILLIS}BP JUSISLIP D S)DW O} SN PasSNDO SADY
PINOM 1DY3 SSOUDISWNOIIO PUD S}OD JO SIDMD SW029q am ‘Juawabobus
}ipnp uno jo asinod ay} Buunp 1 Ayjousiow Bujuup|d Japisuooas app

‘ssaooud Jpnp ayy 1noybnoiyy
MaIraL Japun 1dey si RyljpLslpw Jo JUBWSSasSD INQO

R1pl1s1DW JO JUBWISSOSSDAY

sainpaooud }Ipnp pauub|d

uonduosa(g

Page 81

€

19110\

Rypaa3pw 03 yoanouddn 1nQ

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



‘mp| 3|gpo||ddn pup sopopid Buiunooson a|qoidecon 0} sousIaYPP puUB sjUsWalINbas 81NSO[osIP 0} 0S|D JNC| SJUSWS}D)SS

"1 AN Uotuioy | RIS E208 @

‘paonpal aq o} Aypleiow alinbau

pINOM 10U} Paljijuspl Usaq 8ADY S8IHAIJISUSS 18J0 ON "WG 6813
10 paddoo usaq soy AjipusoW JUNODDY pun4 siy} Jesw

0} JBP4O U| "JUNODOD O}U| U L] S| 84PYs J8sso s, Apoq peyiwpo
ayy souo Aypusiow s oypno Apogq papRiwpo UD pesoxe

JOU P|NOYS 8joYyM D SO SJUBWSIDYS |PlouDUL 8y} o4 Ayijpusiow
soupw.opiad souppinb s w4 ayy 4ad so ‘os|y ‘siepoal 0}
182181l JO 8q ||IM Yoiym (94G2-02) Syusuwiseaul g1 jo uoptodoud
ybiy AjeAnpias b 8ADY 0} SBNURUOD PUN4 8U} SBIHAISUSS JaYI0

“JUSWUOLIAUS |0J3UOD BU} O}
UOI3P|aJ Ul Peljijuspl U8aq 8ADY SBNSS| OU :JUBWUOIIAUS [0J3U0D)
‘supaf

JUS08J JSA0 SBIJIAIJOD SSBUISNG S 4O ainyou ayy Ul sebupyo
JuDOoRIUBIS Usag Jou SDY 818y} PUD JUBWUOIIAUS B|QDIS D UM
seyplado puny uoisuad ayy ‘siexom J030as oljgnd jo suoisuad
ay3 Buusysiuiwpe Apoq ojiqnd © s ainjou s} 03 8N “PaAjoAUl
s| Ajlpue 8y} yoiym ui sesseooud ssauisng 8100 maj pup xa|dwoo
sse| aip Ryue ey o suonpiedo ey} :JuBWIUOIIAUS SSBUISNG

‘Bujoupuyy
1gep Rup eapy jou seop puny uoisuad ay) :syuswebBupuip 3geq

(4emo) 31 Buppw Aq

Ryijousiow 10840 pinoo siepjoysuoys Ag diysisumo ‘saunjonys
dno.B) sopjd ui aumonuys dnoub ou si siay) ‘siepjoysipys

Aq paumo jou s Ayjus ayy :diysiaumo JO UOIFDIIUBOUOD)

"‘WGGe g9 3 :(auncooy
pun4) syuswiseaul
upy} 18Yyjo spauy

‘WG A8LF (SIUBWISOAU|

Page 82

:Ryjousiop

paiapisuod s1010D] mu)_u—U“_.__Ujo

mmu junouwy

I

Ripysuow

a3 0} Ajuo jou salddo pup sseooid JIpND 8y} puUD SjUBWSIPIS |PIOUDUY 3y} o uonpindaid sy o} [pUswWDpuUNny si Rjjpusibw jo jdaouoos ey

Ryl plaa1pw 03 yonouddo JnQO

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiD £202 @

Lo

(Wdn)

JuawabpuDy
(£1 ebpd (sjusweynss [proupuly suolsuad
0} 80UB19)al Y PW 08|P] MaIABS D£) || PBUIWDSIS PIDMIO-||0Y  HPIP UO paspq) wy/ 22/ 3 a|gqpfnd sjiyauag |DSIBAIUN
(£1 ebrd ‘payopdu)
0} 90UBI9}3] S DW 0S|D] MaIABL D] | PAUIWDSIS PIDMIOS-||OY 81D s80UD|D] [|P - /N Burpodau [ploupul{  ploMm wmwc_wjmﬂo
JUSWISSASSD }IPND || |[9A8| pBUUD|d awoou|/puadg DaID Jpny wa)shs Fﬂ
(@)
@©
(ol

:}UDWISSASSD JO |9A9| PAYDDIPUI 8y} wuopad ||Im am

yopoiddp Jipnp jJuswalpys |ploubuly pauup|d ay3 uo paspq pup }pnp Jno 1o} adooas ul aq 0} pabpn| uaaq aapy swaeysAs || Buimojjoy ay|
/| @Bpd uo pasiray gLg S| Inogp aiow Abs app 'S5 | | JUDAS|a4 JO uopuBwWa|dw! pup

uBisep ayy jo Juswssasso up Buns|dwoo apnjoul [m yipno UNQ ‘(809 |) s|o4uoo pisush || “e11 swelshs (]|) ABojouyos] uonbwIoU| JULAS|DA
1an0 Bunpiado sjouuoo ayy jo Buipupysiepun up uipIgqo am siy} jo ppd sy "ssuodsau ul sainpaocoid ypnp sypLdoiddp ubisep pup sysi JUDAS|aU
ypne Aup Ryuepl 0} paunidoo uonpwioUl By} JopISUOD O} palinbal Os|p 21D A\ JUBWUOIIAUS || By} ulyim aypsado jpyy sessaoold ayy jo
S|ID}OP PUD SINJONIISDIUI [DOIUYOS) PUD || JUDAS|aA 8y} o Buipupisispun up uipiqo o} paiinbai aip em ‘pasiasy gIe (N VS| YHMm 80UDPI0OD U

Rbajipays 1ipno ||

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



g 'saenb 1pno 03 Ajeipnbeapp pup Apdwoid puodsas .

JPND 8y} JO UO[DINP 8y} JBAO Paiojiuow aq |IM yoiym aop|d uj upjd D aApy am - JIpNo
ay} jo poued pauunid ay} (paeiBo esimiayio sp Jo) InoyBnouy 81is uo a|gp|IAD aib yo3s epuidoiddp || 1poyy Binsue .

ssaiBoud ul Ipnp Ing pejos|es aq 03 se|dwps ajgpua 0} palinbai sUORPOIID|O BUIOS UBa] BADY
aiay) ‘paAleoal usaq aapy siadod Bupjiom - Bunsal 1o sajdwps Jo UOIIOB|SS INO 91D}[IOD) O} J9PIO Ul *SIUNODDD By}
Ul SaN|DA 8y} 0} PaJIOUODaI 81D PUD IPND By} 4O 1D3S 8y} 1D SN 0} 8|qp|IDAD a1p sjodau PIDP paalbo ayj Jpyy ainsua .

Jauupw Rjawn o ul passelppp aq 03 pasu |Im 1oyl ypnp ayl Bulinp sisenbau BujoB-uo
aq ||Im 21343 INg paAlaoal usaqg aapy siadod Bupiom - nofi yym paipys aAby am 1oy} 8|npayos syuawalinbai sadpd
Buppom syl yum soupploooD Ul *PUPND &y} 4O LIS 8y} 310 8|gp|ipAD 8ip siadod Buppom Ayjonb pooBb joyy sunsue .

sauljawi} paaiBp yim aul| ul asayl pailaoal sAby am — sajou ||o Buipnjoul
‘sn ypm paaibp aapy fayy sulppep ayy Ag Ryjonb poob jo syuswaepys [ploupuly Youp sonpoud fayy 3oyy sinsus .

: 0} peau sual|o ||p ‘Upnp pafinjap o 4o 3su 8yl asiwIuIW O]

syuawalinbai ing

‘S99 JIPND |DUOIHIPPD INJUL ||IM

syipno pafinjap ‘uonippr u| 'se|posawiy paalbip ayj 03 JIpnP ay} jo Aiaalep eyl esjupionb o} ajgp jou 24P am suol3pbijqo
118y Buipeaw jou fAyue up 03 anp }IpnD 8y} 838|dW 0D 0} papeau aip S8IN0Ssal [PUCHIPPL alaym AlIo|iWwIg *81is uo wWpa}
D UJDIUIDUI O} 8|gP 8q jou [|Im am suoipbijqo sy Buizesw jou Ayue up 03 anp peaibp 1py) spasoxa JpnD U 8)8|dwoo

01 aw} pesdoje ayy assypy "siuaio sayio Buibojupaposip figaiay *ewn jo Junown eypuoipodoidsip p qiosqp Jo Aypnb
}pne uo Jopdw Jou SEOoP S|y} IDY} 8INSuU8 0} pasu am ‘paaibp ajgniawi} 8y} 0} J8AljOP JOU Op Sal}IUa Pa}IpND aJaypA

sanliqisuodsau Ajyug paupny

"1 AN Uotuioy | RIS E208 @

“}i0M
1pno ayj Jo Buuealp puo juswaboubw Rop
o3 fiop ayy 4oy ajqisuodsal Joojuoo jpno fiay

aBioyo-u| Jipny ‘uUosuaAalg uag

*S19014J0 Jo1uas yiim 1003uos up|nbas Buipnjoul
1pno ayy jo Aioalap ay) seBoubw pup sub|d

(e202 2unp jnun) 1aBoupy Hpny “Asimoy piaog

*S1901440 101UAS Y}m 10D1u00 1p|nBas Buipnjoul
1pno ay) Jo Asaalap ayj seboubw pup supjg

(e202
aunp wouy) 1oBpuDpy 1PNy ‘DMBSIDYD) Yypay

“8130140 J0luas

PUD S99]1IWILWOY) 9DUDUISADL) UM
juawaBpBua upjnBas Buipnjou; 3PED
ayj jo Risaljap ayy jo ybisiaro moﬁ_..,m%“_

Jsupnd 1pny fay ‘uosianog EU@
(ol

JUSWSSISSD YS1d
pup Bujuubig

€20¢ Yoion
pup ARipnugay

UPND Widy|

wpa} pup sansibojjipn

uoiuidQ SH)SL BAIIDOIPU|
upny / poday puD juaWssassy
sBuipuiq yipny 3s1Y UPNY
ay3 Bujwaoyu
“PRIR[RRMD MDDl PNy R
. "£202 4290100 03 fijnp ‘
29IWwWos g£20¢e Yoo
- asnIWWoY)
suoIsuay
suolsuay
V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



£ "1 AN Uotuioy | RIS E208 @

"80UDUIH JO PDaH 8y} Ym pesibp useq spy puD JoajIaAC Pa|in}ep sl ‘E2/2202 4104 884 pup yiom pasodoud ino ‘ercqp sy} JUNooop ojul Bupjo|

*994 4nof uo jonduwil [jIM Yoiym Daap sIY3 Ul Jdom [puoiippr Aup axplspun o} paiinbal aqg am pinoys Jpnp sy}
J0 9s1n00 ay) Buunp mous nof 3a] |IM app 'sseooud Buiuuo|d Jipne sy Ul pnoJy 4o st 8y} 03 sousulwold siow SaAIB pIoPUDIS SIY| *SJUSWSID]S |PIOUDULS JO
Jpno up ul pnoly 0y Bunpjal seljiqisuodsa. s J0IPND BU3 UM S|DBP YoIym OhZ YS| 40 30adsal Ul si £2/2202 Ul spappupig Bunipny o3 sbuoyo Jofow Jeyjo ay)

oy Ayguonb o3 38f sigoun
a1p em ybnoyy|o ‘sioefi aininy ul espeiou| 89} O 1of Juswalinbas Buiobuo up eq o3 Ajey| sI eiey] Bunse) ypno Jeypn) Buuinbal senss| Aub selyjuspl s|0J3UOD
1| pup sasseooid sseulsng| jo yoadsad Ul jiom ano 4 mouy nofi 18 (1M epn "000°E3 4O @SDaIoUl [PI}IUI UD 83pWiIse am ‘ezis Jnofi Jo pun4 D 10} UeASMOH "SP8ID
8AOQD Y} JO Joadsal Ul JIOM JaylN} UsDUSpUN SADY am |jun Jopdwi 88y ||N} 8Y) SUIWIS}BP O} 8|gbun a9 [|IM 8AA 's[oJ3uoo || Jnof pup ‘sesseooud sseuisng
anof jo yoadsas ul Appnomupd ‘uoipjUBWNOOP HPND N0 JO JUsiXe pup ainpu ‘8doos sy} aspaioul O} sn alinbals M yoiym sebupyod jupoyiubis sip ssey|

'suoef snoineud ur uoyy 1eBip)
aq Apw sezis s|dwobs 1IN0 10y} sULBW SIY} YYSII JUBIBYUI Y} 8] [|IM SHI JO JUBLUSSESSD 8y} ‘S|0J3U0D JO SsauaAioaye Buippiado 8y 358} J0U Op am BIaypp

'$|043U00 JUDAS|a4 Jo Buipupisiepun up Buiuinigo jo Jrd so (s59||) sjo3uo0
1] |pseusb ayy pup || jo asn sy} wouy Buisup sysu ayy Ajguspl oy pesu |Im app “seljus [puinol pup sysu JupoyIuBIS J8AC S|OJJUOD 0} pPajiwl| JouU 8D
INg ‘epn|oul 858y | "JIPND 8y} O} JUDAS|AI S|OJJUOD 810 S|OIJUOD 8SOY} o yoiym Ajnuspr pup sseooud ssauisng D ulypm sjoayuod Ajyuap) 03 pasinbas aip app

Page 85

‘S8INSO|OSIP PUD SEOUD|DJ ‘SUOIJONSUDI] JO SOSSD|O SJ0Ul JBAO $8559004d PUS-0}-pPUS §,PUN B} puD)SISpUN
0} sauinbul |jpuonippo wiopsd o) Buipssu sn ul ynsas Apw yoiym ‘jepow sssuisng s pun4 ay) jo Buipupisispun JNO JO UOIIDIUBWNOOP |DUOHIPPY .

:apnjoul seBupbyo Aey "sysu palyuapl asay} o} puodsal o) wiopad em
oM 8} pup s8iNpeood JUBWSSESSD YSL UNO JO JUSIXe pUL aimbu ay) Jopdul ||Im oY) sebBupyo Jupoyiubis Jo Jequinu o aio ai8y] *(GlE VSI,) JusWeILIsSIW
|ouLIOW Jo sysu ay) Buissessp puo Buifjnuep| - (pasiasy) gle (MN) VSI 40 uononponul ayy sl £2/2202 404 3pno uno uo Bunoodw) eBupyo olbw ey)

"sup|d 3pny 4oef Joud uno ees aspald zz/|z0z 01 dn sioaf uo pejorduwl yoiym sebupyo ayy 4o s|iL}ep 104 UPND £2/2202
9y} 104 JUDAS[SJ BID YOIYM S YS| PUR 8po) pesiaal ayy o} uonpjas ul Alpinoniod ‘sjuswdojeasp jo Jequinu © usaq SADY 8oy} ‘dwl} DY} 90UIS ‘9EH/ET
SDM 10DJIUOO 8y} Ul peaibp a8} o|pos ay] "4/8102 WOl 108ye yum uibag o} pung uoisusd SPUD|PIN 1SEAA 404 IPND JO JODAUCD D PIPIOMD YYSd 8102 Ul

pasiAay GLE VS| Buipnjoul
spippunis Bunipny paippdn pup saaj} Jipny

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



gt

o130 UsHuIoy | 3UBiS £202 @

"SPJDPUD]S [DOIYRT puUb |puoissajoid paiinbai sy} 0} 3PND UL JaAlap 0} [|bjs pub awi} ajpudoiddp Ypm Hols pup sisuppd Yim Jpno
ay} Jo Buioinosal ay} a|gpus 0} JUaIDIYNS 834 D 38s IsNW (Jauppd ypny Asy) poa] Juswebobug ayy 1oy3 a3o|ndis Yoiym (4102 PesIASI] pIBpUDIS
BOIUTT 8.0 943 40 2 pup |4 sydoubpind Buipnjoul ‘spappupis [puoissajoid Jupas|al ||b 0} pipbBau ppby aAby am ‘sypwiysa aaj no Buupdaud u|

SpJDpuD)s |puoissajold JUDAS|SY

‘sjuswialols [DIOUDUL) 8Y) UOo MOUQE_ |PLU=1DW D 8ADY PINCO YOIym suolopsupd] jpnsnun Jo xm_QEOU U@wOO_O‘_Q JO @0l1ou m_.:um Mﬂv_.)oca .

sjuswap)s |proupuly ayy Buupdsid

Jo 9s1n02 sy} Buunp sppw syuswabpnl jupoiiubis pup syuswabpn| jponuo || poddns o) souspias pub poddns ‘sisfijpup sypudoiddp spircid .

ypno

3y} Jo up)s 8y} 1o Appal aup yoiym siadod Buppom pajussasd-|jam pup anisusyaidwoo Ag pspoddns ‘syunooop jo 3as Ayljponb poob b aipdaud

JJIIM PUN{ UOISUS 38U} 10U} PAWNSSD SADY M *s38} aA0qD auf} Bumas u|

suoipdwnssy

(0g1) 069°1L3 (0g91) 96h°893 9EL193 (LvA Buipnjoxa) seey 1ipno Aioynyois |0jo|
00093 v/N V/N YO @ouDINSSY PYP( [PIUUSH] ~ £2/22083
0053 v/N v/N HOAA S80UD}SWNDILY J0 8BUPYQ [PUCHIPRY - £2/2204)
000°€3 V/N V/N SIE VSI - €2/2208
(AN

wmu_. Q_UUw ﬁmUEmEG

2hé’1L3 v/N v/N UIY}IM PBUIDIUOD 10U SUOIIDLIDA D3 Jolid Buiobug

.Q\Z OOOnmm .4\2 E.C@Epﬂ@;E m;_ uo x._0>> ﬁCU wm._j_UwOOLQ m#_U:U _UCO_H.__U_UU -

V/N 00S°L3 V/N q4O07 -

suoRPUPA pasodold 2g/1202

V/N 02523 v/N 22/1202 O3ul UaXP} SUORDUDA 43K doud BuloBug

v/N v/N 00/'€23 SUOIIDLIDA 884 |2/0202 sN|d 02/6102 P4omio 3ybnoug

8h2'GhI OEhY/ET 9ch/E3 $98 8|DOG - }PNY pPuUN{ UOIsUsd SPUP|PIN IS8

£2/2202 @24 pasodo.d 22/120g @o4 peypws] 12/0202
S99} lipny
V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



ol "1 AN Uotuioy | RIS E208 @

"pun4 uoisuad 8y} 03 savlales Buipircid suipe} ¢77 HN UoiUIoY | JUPIS ||P J0 seuinbus epow
8ADY &M JPND UNo jo sasodind sy} 104 "pIOPUD}S |POIYIT 8y} JO spuswalinbai sy} 18sw 0} saunpaoold pup seoljod pejuswedw 8ADY SMm JOY} WILUOD SAN

"sa1poq o1jqnd 00| JO SI0}PNE 104 SJUBWaIINba.
|poIyle uo souppinB Ripjuswsiddns no syes yoiym ggOz 4equieides ul panss| | 9}ON S0UDPINS JO)PNY $.90U40 HPNY |PUOHRON 8y} Jo sjuswalinbal
oY) Yam peldwoo aAbY am Uaylng “SjusWeIp)s |DIoubUl 8y} uo uojuido aaoelqo up sseudxe 0} 9|gR 24D pur juspuadepul 84D M DY} WIIJUOD ‘uosied
Pa18A00 Yoba PUD ‘WUl D SO 8M PUD PIDPURIS [POIY}] s [1ounoy) Buitoday |poubul{ ay) yum paljdwoo saby apA ‘uolpualp Jnof o} moip 03 Ysim 4o paiinbau
810 8M 1Dy} SI0HPND s 8duspuadapul JNo uo jopdwi oY} SIS)IOW J0 30D} JupoYIUBIS Ou 81D 848U} JOY} WIIUOD 8M SAOGD YO d 8y} 40 uonpdsoxe ayy m>®_m

110308.1(] Juasayip o Aq pameiral aq ||Im YO d 84l 03 peipjal yiom Aup psjosje@
S| YOd @y} 4| 1eBpuppy ypny ayy Ag usypuspun aq Rjuo |m yoiym Bunsey pyop Jequsw Joy sejdwps Bupoid jo 3oedseu ur paiinbai aq Rjuo |im EEU:@EO@
|PUOIIPPY "8|0d SIU} Ul 8NUIIUOD UDD ppaT] JuawebBopBu3l Juslino ey} pup pesiwoidwod ag JouU PINOM JIPND PuUN4 UOISUSd SPUD|PI 188 8y} Jo @ouspuadapis”
8y} Joy3 sjuswialpls |pIouUDUl 8y} Jo uonpipdaid sy} eousnjjul 0} uonisod D Ul JOU S| YD BY} SO IOy} PauluLs}ep 9ADY OYm WDa| SOIY}J JNO Pajnsuod
9ADY @A "WDS) HPND 8y} Ypim qun_“_ pajoioossy fleso|y uosiad o paepisuod si 8ys PIDPUDLIS [POIYIT S,084 8y} Jepun *(Auoyino Buusysiuiwpo sy jou)
Apoq pejnpayos Aq pshojdwe Buleq ybBnoiyy pun4 uoisuad SPUDIPIN ISSAA 4O JBqUISW D WG 8jim s poa] JuswasbobBug ayy 2zoz 18qWanop | 8y} woi4

"S}USWSD]S |PIOUDULY 8Y3 Uo uoluido aAloslqo up ssaidxa 0} 8|gp ain pup Juspusdapul 810 SN ‘uosiad pPalsnod Yooa PuD ‘Wwily
D SD &M pUD PIOPUD]S [DOIYYT §1ounoy) Buiuoday [proubuly sy Jo syuswalinbas sy} Jesw o3 saunpaosoid pup saioljod pajuswa|dul 8ADY M DU} ULILJUOD SAN

‘siepjow souspuadspul Buipunouns sjuswaBpnljupoiiubis [puoippp a)pw om 4 NOA Ylim SSNOSIP OS|D ||IM SAA SN Y)im sanss| souspuadspul
Jayjo Aup Jo asay) ssnosip o} sn jopjuoo o) nofi ebobinoous app *edouspusdepul Jno o} Buibjas ‘suosiad pPaisAcd 4O WUl 8y} Jo dduspuadepul pup
Ruanoalqo ‘AyubBsiul ayy uodn uoaq Abw oY) sienpW pup s1op4 JULOPIUBIS || Jo aunsojosip Ajawi nofi aAlb 0y sn asinbai 09z (JIN] VS| PUL SPIPPUD)S [POIYI]

aouspuadapul Jo)pny

S9JIAJ3S }IpPND-Uuou pupn aduapuadapul

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



0z "1 AN Uotuioy | RIS E208 @

‘PaLIDA
aq [|Im @3} 8y} uay) sabupbyo siyy §|

'sysenbal || paaieoss em gz /1202 U1 001813 [PI0L
"|ors] ajgpicecon up 0} JPaIY) }S8I8jUI-J|9s paAlsolad
sy} aypbniw || 10300} asaYy | "} 0} JUswa|s Jusbunuod ou s| aisy}
pUD 884 paxl} B Sl 3 48ypN *||DISA0 J8AOUINY ST N UoIUIoY | JUDIS) 1019)
0} 8A1}D|aJ JDNDIKDd Ul PUD 049°1/F 4O 984 HPND 8y} 0} uosupdwoo ypno uad  saipog pspiwpy pup
Ul |[OWS SI 3JOM SIU} 0} 83} 3y} s souspuadapul 0} Jpaiy} JupoiIubis (@94 Bupunoas Q113 puP P9NPaYoS 104 SI913)
D PaJapISUOD JOU SI UMO §}1 U0 Uayp} 98} Bulunoal siyy Jo |aAs] ay | D S| 1y} 8snNpoaq] }saisul-4eS 00093 SOURINSSY SIS,
00

pap[al 1PNy,
)

spipnBajog sypauy| J soa wo_?_w%

HPOR
ayl JO uolsnjouod ayj 1o tDQ&._ m._m_.._:UC_H_ Jpny Ano Ul papnjoul aq [[IM sulli4 daquuaid JdoMlaul palitll |DUoiDuISiu| COHC._OFC. JURIS mﬁ_ _U_:_U dTll
v:.._ COHC._OLI_. JURIS mn_ Sa2IAl8S palbjald Jipnb-uou _U_:_D pajo|ad ”_.mmu_..:u 104 mummL_Ur_O Sa84 ||b JO §|Iblap ||n} pUL mmmEUr_U m_r_d\ upah |RIOUDULL Jjualinod
3Y1 Ul 477 N uojuioy| jupbic) Ag usyppepun ag 0} SIDIAISS JPND-UOU PUD Pa}pjal JPND 4o} 3)pp-0)} Paaibp s88) aip pajip}sp sjUNOWD Y|

‘Paljiluspl alam UOIUIOY | JUDIS mﬂ ﬁm_o_;___ro‘_o_ S80IAl8S 1810 O \mum_“_._“—_r_m_o_ 8lam Uojulioy | Jubic) mn_ ﬁm_o_;___ro‘_ﬁ_ sadlales Uaylo mC_?_;O__O“_. |y

SV NERRETTiTg)

S9JIAJ3S }IpPND-Uuou pupn aduapuadapul

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



‘sapl|igisuodsau

118Y3 40 aoupuanob yyum pabipyo
asoy} 40 Juswabpupw aAal|al Jou S0P
SJUaWaP]s |PIoURUL 83 JO JIPND 8y |

‘aoupulanob

yum pabBipyo asoyy jo ybBisiano

ay} yum yuswebouow Aq paiodaid
u@aq 8ADY IDY} SIUBWAINIS [DIOUBUL BY}
uo uojuido up Buissaidxe pup Bujuwiioy
SpJMO} pajoallp s yalym ‘(3N) syS
Ylim 80UDPI020D Ul JipnD 8y} Bujwiopsd
10} B|qIsuodsal 81D am JIOHPND Sy

sanliqisuodsal aanoadsay

‘wnpupJowsw ssaiBoud ypno up

piA Jo AjjpwJojul Jayya ‘sispq Ajawiy o uo
Hpno ay; Bunoayp sBuipuyy pejoadxaun
10 @siaApR Aup 23P2IUNWIWOD [|IM BAA

‘PeA|osal uaag aApY asay} moy 03 sp
uolipup|dxe up yum Jayyeboy ‘upno ayy
wouy Buisup siappw Jayio pun sbuipuly
‘senss| Aay juasald |Im pup sjuswaelpys
[p1ouDUly 8y} 4o jpaoiddo 0} Joud penssi

aq ||m sBulpul4 ¥pNY 843 8|Iym HpND a3
Janjap o1 upid pup Abeipas upnp ino
SBUIJINO ‘UD|d PNy 8y} ‘Juawnoop siy|

"a1ay a|qn1
Ay} Ul IN0 188 am Yolym pup ‘@oupuitarch
yim pabioyo asoy3 Yiim a1pounwiwios 0y
paJinbal a1p am yo1ym siennw aquosaud

‘(>In) syl 4ay3o so [[]BMm sP ‘092 (MiN) VSI

"1 AN Uotuioy | RIS E208 @

Ja130W Jo sispydws Jo ‘uodad s 103 pNo 8y} 0} SUCHDOLIPOW pajoadx]

SUOISSIUIO 2iNs0|0sIp |DSlDW pUL sjuswalolss|iw Umumj_._u.DCD

suopnBas pub smp| Yim 2oup||dwos-Uop

SJUBLISIDIS |DIOUDULY U3 JO JUBWSIDISSIW [DUBIPW U] 83|NSBl YoIym
lo/pup juswabBoupw Buiajoau) (uopindiupw aypiagiiep ] pnpdy 40 UooIdsSNS 4O UORDOYIIUBP|

soaiupd peypjal Yum uonossuuos ul Buisup sisnpw upoyiuBig

Hpno sy3 Buunp paiijuspl |013U0S [DUISIUL Ul Saiouaiolsp uooIubig

1pnp ay; Buunp paisiunoous ssinoiyip Jupoiubig

1yBnos usaqg
SADY 103 SucipIUssaldal uapim puD 3PN ay3 Bunp Bujsiio enss| pup sieppw Jupoiub)
IRy ! Ligh-pUD D L3 Buknp BUis| P IuBIg

Hpno ayy wody sBuipuly upoubig

Q)
. ulsouos BujoB 0} uopo|ss Ul sielPW JUBSIIUBED

aouspuadapu| 03 s3paiyl o3 pa)ddo spionbaips jo ol ‘pebipyo sea) yum Jayieboy ﬂmE‘_m
JIOMIBU PUD 4T N Uoluloy) 3upis) fig pewuopad yiom jipno-uou jo sjipjaq ‘eouspuadapyD
uo Joaq 03 3yBnoys ag 3yBIW YoIym sienpW Jayio pup sdiysuonpey ‘eouspuadepll
BuipioBau syuswiaiinbad D118 JUDABIRL LM Pal|dWoD BADY BM 1O} JUBWISPIS

suosiad paiaacod Rpyoalipul Jeyio || pup
siaquisw woay JuswaboBus ayy ‘wul ayy jo Auaposlgo pup ssuspuadepul jo uoppUIUOY

sienpp Upny Aay pup sysu jupoubis Bulpnioul sUC)IPOIUNWWOD JO JUBIU0D
|oiouab pajoadxe pup Buiwn ‘wioy Jpno ayy o Bujwi puo adoos pauun|d ayy Jo MaIAIBAQ

. soupuiaaoB yim pabioyo asoyi/auswsebBoubw pup Jo3pNno 4o sal|igisucdsal aAoadsay

sBuipuiy upny

up|d Hpny up|d uonpoOIUNWWOD INQD

aoubuJ4arob yji

pabipys

9SOy} YlIM S1333bw }pND JO UOoIDIIUNWWOoD)

V Xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWIOD



BUOESILG U0 5)00 § ISWIoUD SU0 104 3(00]| J0U 210 pud Jayjoun auo *syoBigo

10U op puo o uabo 10U sio suly laquswl S} pUD 1|15 SiUSNs 0 280l apisoud JoU saop 19 swl equsw sy fig paisasp sio saopaag ‘Rinus obe) sjoindss © 5] wuy Jequisw
Yoo pue |19 diysiauliod SpiMp|Iom D 10U 210 SULIY JEqUWSW 3u pUB LS (T1LS) P [9UDRGLISIL UDILIOY | JUDIC) 40 WK 1B0WEL D 8| 4T ) UsILIaY ) Junsgy sau|nbas xajuos sy s0
“SiLlY SSGUIBLI S0 10 BU0 0F S18)31.10/pub BUSNS Jiay) o) saoiwes Fluosiapo puD xoy *20uninsso sp|snad Sy J80UISLI LOYLIOY | JUCIC) SU L2ILM J2puUn puUDId au) o) SI8jad UojuIdy | Jubig),

dT1 N uoIIoy | 3UDIE) €202 ©

Vv Xipuaddy

yn-oo uojusoypupib

uojuloy | Juels) °

Page 90



-
(o))
(B)
(&)
©

£202 Joquierdsl-

€202 Yo1p\ Lg Buipus apag

Joday ssasboud ypny
pun{ uoisuad SPUB|PIN ISOM

uojuloy | Juelio) o

g xipuaddy



*SUOISS]WO 10 $30D § 18Y}0UD SUO 404 3|qD}|
10U 84D PUP JSYouD SUO ‘93PBI|qo JouU Op pup
‘40 S3UBBD 10U B4D SWIY JeqWSW S} PUD |19
‘swl Jequiew ey} Ag paJanljep a4p seoIAIeg
‘diysisupind apIMpIOM D 10U 840 Sl Jagquiaw
ayy puo 7|19 *(111D) P¥1 [oUonDUISIU| UOJUIOY |
1UDIS) JO WI} JagquiaWl D SI 477 M) UoIuIoy |
1) *Auoyiny 10npuoy) |pioubul4 ayy g
pa1p|NBas puo PeSLIOYIND S| 477 M UoIUIoy |
JUDIS) 90140 Pata)siBal N0 WOy 9|gD|IDAD

S| slequiaWw 4O 3s1| ¥ "Dy YgO3 ‘UopuoT ‘eionbg
Rungsulg og o040 pasasiBey “Z2h//08D0™ON
:s8|PAN PUD pup|Bug ul peusysiBaui diysieunnd
Ryijiqo| peyiwi| B st ¢77 3N UoluIoy | JuDIS

-asodund

Jayzo ARup 1oy papusyul Jou 4oy paiodaid
10U som yiodal siyy so ‘podal siy} 4O JUsU0D
2y} 40 sIsSPQ a3 uo Buion wouy Buiuiniges

J0 ‘Bupop Ayind payy Aup 03 pauoispooo

sso| Rup 1oy Ryjiqisuodsas Aup 3deoop Jou op
9\ JU8SUOD UaRLIM JoLid 1No noyym ipd Ul
10 8joym ui pajonb ag jou piNoys pup 3iyauaq
unof oy Aje|os paindaid ussq spy yiodau
SIY] "S|0J3UOO [DUISYUI INOA Ul sassausoam ||o
10 pun4 uoisuad ay3 30840 Apw yoiym syisu
a3 4o || Buipuodau uoy nofi 03 ajgisuodsau
play 99 30uUDO am Jojnoipd Ul pup ‘eBupyo
01 309[gns aqg Abw Yorym *siep3ow JUDAS|DI
3y} || JO PI0dal aAIsUsyaIdwoo b Iou

s13| *ssa00.d Buiuup|d 3pno 4Nno 4o Jpd so
noR o} payiodau aqg 0} pasu aA31jaq am yoIym
‘UOIJUS)I0 INO O] SWIOD SADY UOIYM SIS]IOW
ayy 0} Ajuo eypja. uodal sy} JO SUBIUOD BY |

g xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWOD

O m = N~

Bog

se|qoIeAleQ HPNY

SUOIJOPUSWIWODSY JDSL JOld O dn mojjo4
sHomplel4 4o sBuipuly

saul|ppaH

uonoag

CTEM Tl Y

“d71 2N UGUIoY] 3URIH 2202 @

wooBN®uosusasys-uaq 3
9825eee 12l0 1

aBupyo-u| ypny
UOSUDA9)g uag

woo By n@oMmasioyo yuey J
1906£8€ 1210 1
JeBoup| PNy

PMESIDYD YHo)|

wooBn®uosienpd-qiupnib 3
9629cee 1elo 1

Jauppd ypny Asy

uosJapbd JuUp.Io

194D sJaquIBW WD}
uojuioy] Juni Rad) anoL

Page 92



€ “d71 2N UGUIoY] 3URIH 2202 @

‘Buiyse) pyop |PIUUBLY 8y} BulpioBai pasioi seanb jo uonnjosas .

PUD SUBWSI0}G S}assy 18N 8y} ul Ajjosiiooul

PaS0|OSIP YSDO JO YHOM WHGT JO UORDOLIIUSPI 8} Yim soljojuiod peyobaibes sy Jo mainal pajiolsp O 1102 10y AN|IGDIUNC00Y

puo 1ipny |DO07 8y} Yim
‘(g ebrd sss) paiyinuspl senssi Buimo||o} 300U00 soupINsUl UI-ANg ey Jo dn moj|0} PUD MBIASI [DUOHIPPD 90UPPIOOOL Ul paipdeid
pup Buizunooon Ayuoyino
[000] UO 901300id 4O 8P0OO

OVVSY1/V4dIO a4 Yim

‘s1ebpupwW JuawlsaAul Yim dn moj|o} woe) Juswsbobus [puoiippo

‘papIroid suoiLN|OA
8y} mainau 0} pebobus usaq soy Jiadxe [pUIBIUL UD 818YM (SBAIIDALISP] SIUBWISBAUL 2 |[9A8] JO UOIIDN|DA o

‘popinoid suonon|oA 8y} malral 0} Jadxe [pulaiul up pabobus aAby 90UDPI0OoD Ul pasndaid
8 "paJpdaid aip sjusWeID]S [DIOUDUL OU 8J8YM (SIUBWINISU] [DIOUDULY) SJUSWISBAUI € |9A8| JO UOIIDN|DA o Apedoud ommn oADY

“Hpno 8y} 4o Aousiolyye Buiroidwi Jo swuay ul puo

JuswaboupW YlIMm UoISSNOSIP Jayun} 0} 108[qns auo esay| "palinbai usaq spy 4o useq eAby swly / sainpaoold ¢ noR puny 8y} Jo pus ayy
1PND [DUORIPPD 8laym (Mo]aq pa|in1ep) Spalb aip 818y} ‘sainpadoid 1pND Uno Jo soupwioped syy Buung 19D S}1JOUS JUBWIISJ "‘20UDUIBA0D
*RIDNJOD Y} PUD PUN4 BY3 Y1IM SI8quinu JagquiaWwl Uo SaouaJtaip uonpljiouooal  pesiwold Aod o3 senijiqoy Ynm pabioyo
paAjosal am so Rpybijs pefipjep som 3| uequisrdag Rupa uj uodn papiodas pup Jajldos uapPBpuUN  UDY} JBY3O ‘Sal}i|igpl| puo 9SOy} JO Uoidno
som 31 sHPND 22/1202 uedo yum seipoq Jefiojdwe 4o} paiinbai os|o som 3Jom INo Jo Juswsle siyy so  SIBSSD §,puny 8y JO 81op 2y} o} £202 r_m‘_vo_z
*JIOABMOH IOM 4| QY| [PNUUD 8y} SO dWI} SWDS 8y} 10 uaplspun Rjjowiou si pup sioah saay} Aiers suaddoy 10y} 30 uoiisodsip puo apua %mm

JJOM SIY]| "pun4 8yl Jo splodal @Emt@tg: 8Y3 Y3IM 1U8)SISUO0D SI Aionyop 9y} 0} paniwgns uolipuLIoul unowo syl JO puo £20¢7 LE PoP

8y} 3oy} 8oup.Insso uIpb 0} palinbai a1 ap) "s3UN00oD Jsfiojdws pup s PuUN4 8y} UIYHM S8INSO|osIp PJOMIO)  YOID |E pPapus ipafi ayy =LR 104 wwcmrc%oyw
1104 92SVI/61SVI suidispun siyy 4oj PIOP 8Y] "€202 |Mdy/YoID Ul paysiignd s1em SUOHON|DA [DIUUSLY 2202 dYL Bunp pun uoisuad sy} [PlouDUL
"SI} 810J8q 98)IWILIOL) SUOISUS BY} Y)IM 81001unwiwod o} Rom 1seq ey uo JusweBoupy pup Joyy 30 SUCRODSUDA Ploubul S pun4 uoisusd ayy

AL JO MeA Jid PUle 2N jo uonpiodaid sy}
0 BAIB SsjUBWS}D]S |PIOUDULY :

s.pung uoisuaq ayy o PUP (.pun4 uoisuaq
*18q0300) 03U [|P4 ADW H40M HPND BUWOS UDBW [|IM YOIYM L3UOW 8Y3 JO PUS B} SPIDMO} wonde  @U3,) PUNS UoISUBY
IUN peyoadxe JoU BID |PIUBD) Sq<)T WOl4 Jodel SI0}PND 80IAISS 83 PUD SIUBWSIDIS [DIOUDUL Pe}PND -uoluido ’ .

93U} YHM 3SIDI| [[IM @M £202 19qWa0a(] [13UN 8NP 10U S| 981} IWWOL) SUOISUSH IXaU 8} USAIL) "981HWWOY) XSy
pup Jipny Jaquisrop s Ayuoyino Buusysiuiwpo ayy 0} papodal aq |im Joday sBulpui4 Jipny JNo 4 nsal b sy

ybBnoyyjo sequieydeg jo pus ay3y Aq juom Hpno aAiRULIsqnNs Jno jo Auolbw ayy Bunejdwoo aypdionun app _om‘_:\,_WMLCM‘H%M\U%MMMMM_M\PMW j0 “mxm_mw_w_www\m
"9}0P 0} PARIUBPI BADY 56100, 4 11pNY 40 BPO .
am sBuipuly pup up|d yipno ano ui peyybijybiy sysu ay3 3suipbo ssauboud ino asupwwns sebod Buimojjos ay | RoDId UPNY 40 9poO (OVN) i), Wad) BRI

S0l HPNY [PUCHPN 8} PUP

"awify siy3 10 poday sBuipulq 3pny Youp o enssi 0} uolisod b ullou (sys|) (MN) 1PNY Jo spippuLIg SI9ROW I9L30

240 M INq epoW useq soy ssalbouid jo Junowo Juooyubis v ‘Ajnp eouls sseuBoud Ul ussq sy oM 3PN INO [puonpuIsu| Jepupn PUP sBuipuly wusul
9y} sesiupwwins
sjuswalpig [PIdubuUl4 m_QOM w_Lu_.

SauUl|pPPaH °|

g xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWOD



h “d71 2N UGUIoY] 3URIH 2202 @

‘PeRNgal 8q P|NOO Y1oq Ul Buisuo pnouy
JO Sl 8Y} 10U} pPaulWIS}ep SADY SN “UoIUBoD8. aunjipuadxa pub anuaAal Yjoq Ul pnoiy 4o

-odai 0} sesseuypem 10adsal ul O] Nd PUD Oh2 VS| Ul IN0 18S SI0}0D4 XSl 8} palapisuod am Buiuup|d uno jo Jod sy

|0J3U0D JO sBulpul} JULOLIUBIS OU BADY aM “@3PpP O] (su upoiubIs) uoniubooss sumipuadxs pub anuaAai ul pno.4

‘uoyyuBWNOOP Buioddns 0} pelse} ueag BADY DaIY [DUISIU|

$S0J£) PUD BWOOU] [D}Ual ‘UOISIaAal/plalfl SO YONs UORD|ND|DD UoRDN|DA 8y} 01 sindu| “Bunss)

‘BU}Se} BAUDISQNS 40§ Jaypny 1oy syesspo 4o ajdwps o Ajuapl 03 s103004 dAIRLYPND JBYI0 puDL UOoPXBPUI Buisn
paubisep som ABajo.ys Jipno Up “jom siyy yuswe|ddns o] “padxe s Juswabpuow Rg pafojdwe

pajos|as ajdwps UNo o} uonpal ul saanb o Jaquinu
||[OWS D JO UOIN|OSal YDMD A “Model 0 sesseuspem suondwnsso pupo ABojopoyaw ayy mairal 03 padxe uonon|pA B Ypm pabobus aaby m>>4

|0J3U00 40 sBuipulj JUDOIIUBIS OU ALY 8M ‘@}PpP O] (s upoyiubis) Auedoliy pleH Apoaiig jo uononPA

(4D)

‘spodad uonpsiupBIo 90IAI8S JOT)

MBIAS PUD SIUBWYSBAUI B} 104 SJUNODOD PB}PND 4O MOIASI ‘SI8BDUDW JUSWISOAU] W04 woo©

Juswabobus ayy Ag Apjosup paulpiqo syuswalpys JoysaAul Apod paiyy 03 Juswabouow m%l
papiroid so sanjpA pua-i0sf Jo JuawsalBp sy} seAjoAul Buiysa | ‘Buiyse) 8AiUDISONS 104 S}OSSD
JUBWISBAUI € [9A8] JO 8|dWIDS D P}0S|8S DALY SM ‘SB|OIYSA JUBWISaAUL Pajood JO 9SO 8y} U|

"SJUBWISAAUL

pajdwos || Uo 3}ioM N pala|dwoo aAbY am

[1un siyy Ayupnb Ajiny 30uupo app “s3UNOODY S pun4
oy} pup syuswe}o}s [pHdDPO JoBoUDW JUBWISOAUL
9} USaM}Oq Se0UBIHIP Bulwi} sWOos paijipuspl
aAbY am julod siyy 3y 'ssaubBoud ul ||i3s si uom InQ) (3su JuDOIUBIS) sJUBWIISAAU| € |[9AS7 JO UOIIDN|DA

‘Buiysay 4oy

sjouinol jo a|dwps O J08|8s 0} SN PAMO||D YOIYM DLISYIO YSi o14109ds uo paspg AbBaipiys Buiyse)
o padojarsp am sseooid sjpuinol ayy jo Buipuoisiepun N BuIMO||0 *S|0JIUOD JO BPLIIBAO
JuswaBoUDW 4O S JUDOLIUBIS 8Y} UO 3JOM JNO 0} UOID|aJ Ul SNOO04 JO DAID UD S| S|PUINOP

‘Buise} eAUDISONS 404
pa1os|es s|dwos uno 0} uonp|aJ Ul salenb Jo Jequinu
[|OWS D 4O UOIIN|OSaL JIDMD SAA "Modal 0} sassaudpam

|0J3U00 JO sBulpul} JULOLIUBIS OU BADY 8M ‘B3P O] (s JupoIUBIS] sjosu0D Jo spliiaAo Juswaboubpy

snp}g spady Jsiy upoiIubis

(230p 03) y4ompjatld Hpny jo sbBuipuiy

g xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWOD



9 “d71 2N UGUIoY] 3URIH 2202 @

Page 95

"SJUSWIB}D)S |PIOUDULY B4}

ul puawp 0} Paailbo aAbY JuswebBoubw Yoiym wel3
Rq pa3pisieno Buieq uoipN|DA 8y} Ul pa}nsal siy |

‘61 S| Aq paJinbai so spuoq aypiodioo Ayjonb ybiy oy
pasoddo s aaIno pjaifi )16 [puiwou pup|Bu] 4o Jubg
oy} 40 juiod upsf-g'g oy} 0} ©oUBIB}8I UM PauUlWIS}ap
som uoipdwinssp 8304 JUNOJSIP By} SO BP0 Y4dID

2y} O spUBWaIINbal 8y} Y3Im 90UDPIOOOD Ul JOU SOM
RBojopoyraw 8y} 4aypin4 'seni|igqol| [OHON}O0 Pa}p|al
a3 Buluiwuayep 1o} pemoyjjo4 Abojopoyraw ay3 yoyow
jou pip ABojopoyiew uoiON|PA By} 3OY} POIOU SAN (w4713 Ad) wiglF - uonon|oa ul-ing soubinsul pun4 a1pipdeg Apog paniwpy

"}0DJU0D Ul-Ang @oupinsul AHINUUD %|Ng 8y} 404 8N|DA PB}OWIISS BY} 4O
uonp|No|PO Juspuadapul ub wiopad o) pub padxs s Juswebouobw Ag pefojdws suondwnsso
pup RBojopoyraw 8y mairal 0} 3sijpIoads SUOIFON|DA [pUISIUI UD paBpbBus aAby apA

snip1g spaJy Jsiy 19410

(230p 03) y4ompjatld Hpny jo sbBuipuiy

g xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWOD



9 “d71 2N UGUIoY] 3URIH 2202 @

"99)}WWOY) SUOIsuad ay3} dn Bupjow siaquisw JO 3si| 843 WO} PAIHWO SOM [[Iydapun pjabuy Jo|1ounod)
(92d @10N) senupd paip|ay
‘padxa ay3 Aq 4o asn apow suondwnsso JupoIUBIS ||o 40 aunjoid
eye|dwoo o Buipiroid snyy Bupiodes soubyus |jim suondwnsso olydoiBowsp sy Jo uoisnjoul *(Gd 810N 88s)
w|6/3 Ag senljigol| jpupN}oo Buisbaiou) Rounjoadxe ol Jequaw Ul aspaJtoul Joaf | o o Joodwi 8y} yum
wz/13 Ag enjoA yusesald |PLIDN}OD By} BSPBIOBP O} SPM UOIION|OA 33} UO Jopdwli 418y} YBnoyyo syuswaio}s
[o1oUDULY 8y} Ul Paso|osip alam suoidwnsso olydoiBowsp ay3 4o sajdwoxe ou Jpafi soud 8y} yim Juslsisuoo
$19ABMOH saBupyo 1ybijs 03 suoidwnsso ay} 4O SBIYIAIJISUSS 0} UOIIPPD Ul PESO[OSIP 240 saspaJloul
uoisuad pup saspaJoul Aod ‘e3oa JUNODsIP sb yons suoiRdWNSSD |PIOUDULY BY} 4O S|I0}B( "SHIBUS] JUBWaIIISI
Jo anjoA juasaid ayy uodn pajopdwi 9ALY sUORAWNSSD |PLION}OD Ul SABUDYD MOY S8SO[OSIP 94 910N o

92 SV| 4o sesodund ayy
1oy spyeueq Juswaiel pesiwold o an|pa jussaid |DLDMOY - (9d I0N) PuN} @Y JO UOKPN|DA [DLDN}OY

"P931084J0 JOU S| SJUSWSYD]S S}BSSD 38U S} Ul S}8SSD JO SN|DA 8Y} PUD J0JI8 8INSO|OSIP O S 8y |
*|P}0} S}OSSD |PIOUDUI} 8Y3} Buip|jul 90UBH *MOjaq dul| ssO| pup }40ad yBnoayy enjoA Jio4 30 S}8SSD [DIOUDULY
-UoN 8y} ul pasojosip Ajeypindas auo yoiym wg' /0013 Jo sbuipjoy Auadoud 10811 s, pun4 sy} pspnjoul
os|o Ajsnosuouie Wi Hgg‘gLF 40 $50| PuD 3joid YBNOoIYY BN|OA JIDJ 1D S18SSD [DIOUDULH 4O} BUl| 8Y] *(g [9AeT]
pUD 2 [8A87 ‘| [9A87) YOUDIBIH 8N|DA 4104 8y} 3sUlnBo pun4 sy} JO S19SSD JUSWISBAUL 8} $8SO0|OSIP /| d 810N .%

(£1d @10oN) Ryoupialy anjoa o )

*aAl}0adsiad }PND UD WOUJ [DIALY S| JUNODOY PUN4 &Y} UO W’ 40 100dWi }aU [|0J8A0 w
8y “(w/'£GE3) 40 49Bpa| pisusb syy Jad |30} BY} YoIOW 30U PIP 3 SO WG'9F Aq peypisieno som (Wz'09ed) A
}JO PaSO[OSIP JUNOWD BY} “S)UBUWYSSAUL JO N|DA Ul 8BUDyd 8y} 404 "Wg'//F 40 1abBpa| |piausb ayy Jad |00}
a3 Yo10oW J0U PIP } SO WH'GJ Ag Pal0}SIan0 SOM WE'28F JO POSO[OSIP JUNOWD BU} “OWO0OUl JUSWISSAUI JO
(3unoooy pun4) syuswisaaul Jo an|pA ul 8BuDYD PUD BWODUI JUBWISAAU|

‘sysodep
ysoo o} pasoddo sp seninbe so pasiubBooas Ajsnosuolie som saopPUDW 8SBYY UIYHM PIPN[OUl YSDO JO YHOM
Wg'EGT '£202 YOIO LS 30 UG 2F 40 8NjOA D Yyim sayopupw payolaibes [pieass sby pun{ uoisusd ay| e

S)UBLIS}0}S |DIOUDUL (3uswepg syessy 19N) seninba sbesianQ

a3} puswb 0} paalbp aAbY JUBWABLUDI SDaJD J9Y]0 Ul Pal}IjUapl SJUSWSLD]SSIW PUD SJUSWAOUDYUS g SI1011d 9INso|osi(

smpig sBuipulj upny 18420

panuijuod - 31pp 0}1) J4ompjal4 Mpny jo sbuipui4

g xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWOD



L “d71 2N UGUIoY] 3URIH 2202 @

‘paulfal g p|nNoo g
spalp pajoadxe ayy ssaippp 0} Joaddo jou seop 1 ‘papiroid sadod sy Jo mainel
WOJ "90U8sqD S} Ul S8INPad0.d 1PND SAI}OUISY D 830}8PUN O} POY M PUD HPND
iNno Jo pus 8y} spdomoy sn 03 papiroid Rjuo som eroqo 0} pailasel s|Npayos ay|

"‘Hodai 8y} UIY}IM UOIIDWIOUI
uonpxapul Apeppnb sy} se3pI0q01100 J0Y} 8|NPayds b Buuodeid Rupinbay

PUD “IDWYOUSJ ISUIDBD $19SSD JUSWISSAUI SNOLIDA 8U} JO 9ouUDW.IOad

saupdwoo yoiym seboupw Juswisaaul ayy Ag paonpoud podas ayy Buimainey N~
:Rq J|esyl seunsso JusweBPUDW 3Dy} POWIOUl BIOM DA\ w
‘Paluspl "Xapul jipwyouaq ay3 3suipBp soupwopad peyoadxe 0y sousieyel w
SOM SOUSISHIP [PUSIOW ON "E20¢ Y9IPIN LE 03 2202 DIA pauloB s1 W8y} J8A0 80UDINSSD 81048J8Y} PUD S8|JIYSA JUBWISBAUI pajood a
YOIBW LE WO} S3BSSD 85843 JO UOHPXSPUL 84} SMOYS pajul xepul A|ipoidA} euo sjessp esay| "syUBWSID}S |PIDUDUL PE}IPND 8oNpo.d
1oy Jadpd Buppiom o yam sn papiroid juswsBouppy 01 juswainbal ou sI 818U} YOIym JO) S8[OIY8A JUBWISBAUL DIA JeBoubw puny
a1opdp  Jojnonupd o Ag paboubw aio s}asso S pun4 uoisuad ay} 4o uqg’ 3 Rjerowixoiddy A
‘seinpeooid 3pnp Jo uoie|dwoo suljwpnaIIs pup passiw Bujsg jou aio
SUO}DOIUNWIWOD 3Dy} JusWeBDUDW 0} BOUDINSSD [DUOIHPPL BpIACId PINOM 0S
'senss| Aup 3yBijyBiy Buloq "3si| s}9SSD S} O} S}OPIUOD J8BOUDW JUBWISBAUI 4O 3SI| S} 8j1oU0Dal RjBuino
30U PIP UORPI|IOUODRI B} JO MBIABI INQ "£20 |H4dY JOU SB0P PUN4 UOISUB 83 10U} POIIIUBPI @M “J4OM SIY} 4O 8S41N00 8y} Buling
8l U0 UORD|IOUCDBI D Yim SN papiroid JuswsBRUD ‘panss| alam sysenbal jo Jaquinu JeBip| yonw b yons sy ‘sesuodsal JeBouow
aopdn  juswiseaul Buluipigo 03 yoooiddo sy pepuswp wWosy UPND |9 8Y3 ‘22/1202 104 P
9Nnss| 9y} ssaJJppbo 0] Uud)Dj} SUoI}db Uo QHU“Q—J paipdiunwuwod m_wsom\rmha J)SIJ PUD 9NSS| JUBWISSISSY

SUOIIDPUDWIOIIY ADIL 40lid Jo dn mo|jo4

g xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWOD



8

“dT1 2N UouIoy ] 3Uni9 2202 ©

€2c0e
JaquIanoN 3183

€2c0e
Jaquisydag 3s3

"SjusWal)s |proupuly s Ayuoyino Bulisisiuiwpo 8y} Ul papn|oul 8soyy
Y}IM JU8)}sIsuoo aup poday [onuuy Jnof ul peonpoadal spuawalois |[PIoUDULL 843 3043} BulwlijuoD Juawelols O anss| 0} palinbal a1 app

juawalo}g Aouaysisuo)

€20e
JaquIanoN 183

€c0e
Jaquisydag 3s3

"SJUBWA}0]S |PIOULUl JNOA uo uoluido sy} sepnjoul siy |

poday sioyipny

€c0c
JaquisAoN 3183

€20¢e
Jaquieydeg 3s3

*SIY} 240497 99HWWOY) SUOISUSY DY} YHM
2}00IUNWWOO 0} M 3889 By} UO JUBWBBDUDI PUD JIDYD) BY} YHM BSIDI| [|IM M £202 4oqWa09(] |I3UN 8NP J0U S| 8911WWOL) SUoisuad
IXOU BY} UBALD) "0aRIWWOY) sl Pup Jpny Jaquanop s Riuoyino Buusisiuiwpo ayy 0} papodas aq [|im Hodey sBuipui4 3ipny ay3 puo
18q0300 Ul Bulysiuly eyodionuo mou em ‘podal ayppdn siyy ul pepodal so Ing £202 1equieidag jo pus ayy Ag y4om Hpno 4no eye|dwoo
0} 8|qp 8q p|nom am oy} [nyadoy a1am apA “£202 41890300 pub Ajnp usamieq payonpuoo Bulag 31om JpND Pemoys up|d Ipny JNQ

Hoday sbuipuiq upny

anp 1o JoN

(e202
Jequerdeg g)

pajo|dwon

€202 1290120
/4equierdeg

gzozsnbny g

‘}J0 paubis aqg 0} syuswalo)s [pIoubUlY Jafojdwe a|qoua 03 JapJo ul sainNpaoosd HPND JUBIDIHNS JO Uoie|dwoo
uodn pajsenbau sp 80130014 1PNy 40 89P0 s OVN a4t Ag paianroo siefojdwa Jaquiaw JO SI0}PND Y} 0} S18)118| SOUDINSSD BNSS| |[IM SN

seoupunssy 4| SY| (£2/2202)aynuuy

‘Rupnjoo 8y} puo pun4 ay} Yyum mmwQEsc

JaquIaW UO $90UBIB4}IP UOIIDI10U0Da. paajosal am so Rjybijs pafipjep som }| “1aiji0e uaynBpPUN SOM 3IOM B8} JO JUBWS|D m_%qz_o:c
22/1202 uado yum seipoq sefiojdwe 1o} paiinbal os|p SOM 31 SD INQ }JOM | S| [PNUUD 8} SD 8WI} SWDS 83} 10 USXDU8PUN ﬁc&oc

s11| "UPND £2/2202 @43 J0 1pd sp pejonpuod eq |jim pup siosh sauyy Aisrs susddoy sjiom siy] ‘pun4 syy jo spiooas Buifigpun syy

Y}M Jus)sisuoo si Aipnion ay) 0} pajiwigns UOIDWIOUL 8} 30y} 8ouninssp ulpb 0} palinbau aio ap) syunooop Jsfojdws pup s pun4 ayy
UIY}IM S8INSO|OSIP PIOMIOY |04 92SYI/61SY] suldiapun siyy 4o} 01op 8y] "£202 |Mdy/YoIDN Ul paysiignd siem suonpN|oA [DIUUBLY 2202 &Y ]
p1oQq diysiaquiapy |pluuau |

spoday @oupinssy 4| SV

pajejdwon

£c0e
Jaquisydeg

"S]UBWSID}S |PIOUDUY £2/22082 S.PUN4 Uoisued ay3 uo uoluido

up aAIb 0} JepJo ul yoooiddo pasodoud uno 3no Bupyes aeiwwo)) suoisuad ayy 0} upid JpND pPa|ib}epP L aNnss| 0} paiinbai aio o
"SJUNODDY PUD Hoday [PNUUY pun4 Uoisuad 8y} Jo uononpoid ay} Bulessiano 4o 8]0J JIaY} Ul 893HWWOY) SUoIsuad ay3 0} Jodes os|o
[|OYS @M 10U} PaUIWIS}IBP SADY SAN "SIUNODOD PUN4 UOISUSH 8y} 9PpN|oul YoIYm S;UNOOOY 4O Juswaiolg s Riuoyino Buusisiuiwpo ayy 4o}
20UDPUIBA0B Y}m paBioyo asoy) paiapisuoo sl 88RIWWOD) ySly PUD HPNY JI8Y} UOIIN}IISUOD S AHIoyINo BULISISIUIWPD 843 J8pun IS[IYAA

uojd pny

sniplg 8lb pauupjd

so|qpJaAlleq €2/2202

g xipuaddy

80UBPYUOD Ul [BIDIBWIWOD

sa|qpJaAljeq HPNY



*SUOISSIWIO 4O SIOD S JBYJ0UD SUO 40§ B|CI01| 10U 810 PUD JSLI0UD BUO ‘830B1jqo

10U Op PUD ‘4O SHUSBD 10U BID SULII JBQUIBW S} PUD T[] £) "S}USI|0 O} S8OIAISS 8pIA0ad J0ou 80P (1S "swuly Jaquaw ay) Ag paisaiep auo seoinisg “Aynus joBa| sypipdes o s1 Wl Jequiaw

yooe pup 7|15 "diysseupod SPIMPLIOM D JOU 84D SWUIY JBGUIBW B4} PUD 1|15 (1]19) P¥] [PUORDUISIU| UOIUIOY] JUDIS) JO Wil J8GUIBW D S| dT7 MM UOIUIOY | JUDIS) 's8uinbai }x83u00 8y} SO
‘SWLII JQUISW 80W 10 BUO 0} 18434 J0/PUD S}USI|O 418} O} S801AI8S AI0SIAPD PUD XD} *80UDINSSD BPIACID SWLIY JOGWIBW UOYUIOY | JUDIL) U} YIIYM J9PUN PUDI] SU} O} S1848] UOJUIOY | JUDIS),

"d 7 5N UOYLIOY] JUPIHZZOZ ©

g xipuaddy

jn-o0o uojuioypupiB

uojuloy | Juels) 0

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 9

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Pensions Board
17 October 2023

Report title

Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Recommendations for action:

Investment Governance

Pension Services

Paul Nevin Assistant Director, Investment Strategy
Email Paul.nevin@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Shiventa Sivanesan Assistant Director, Investment Management &
Stewardship
Email Shiventa.Sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
Email Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. The update on investment governance matters including those in relation to responsible
investment and the implementation of investment strategy.

2. The Fund has retained its signatory status to the UK Stewardship Code, following
submission of its third Annual Stewardship Report to the Financial Reporting Council (FRC)

in May 2023.

Page 101



mailto:Paul.nevin@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Shiventa.Sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose and Background

This report provides an update on investment related matters and an update on responsible
investment activities, together with the ongoing development of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Central Investment Pool in context of the implementation of the
Fund’s investment strategy.

The Fund has a longstanding policy of supporting good corporate governance in the
companies in which it invests. The Fund will also challenge companies who do not meet
either the standards set by their peers or reasonable expectations as measured by best
practice. The Fund’s approach is part of its overall investment management arrangements
and its active Responsible Investment Framework. There are three main pillars to the
framework: selection (of assets), stewardship (of assets), and transparency &
disclosure. The Fund’'s Responsible Investment Framework incorporates four targeted
engagement themes including Climate Change, for which the Fund has developed a policy
framework and risk management strategy.

LGPS Central Ltd (“the Company”) is a jointly owned investment management company
established by West Midlands Pension Fund and seven Partner Funds to deliver
investment pooling for the LGPS Central pool in accordance with the criteria laid down by
the Secretary of State. The pool plays a role in enabling and supporting the implementation
of the Partner Fund Investment Strategies.

Investment products and services to Partner Funds are developed, supported, and
overseen by the governance structures established within the Company and across the
wider investment pool. The Shareholder Forum and Joint Committee each meet at least
twice annually with the Shareholder Forum considering shareholder related matters such as
the Company’s strategic business plan, annual budget and annual report and accounts. The
Joint Committee is focused on the client deliverables of investment pooling, together with
governance and oversight of pooling arrangements.

Investment Strategy and Implementation

The Fund’s Investment Advisory Panel (IAP) plays a key role in supporting
discussion and decision making of the Fund’s officers in undertaking their
delegation from the Pensions Committee to implement the Fund’s investment
strategy. The IAP includes two external advisers, alongside the Executive Director of
Pensions, Assistant Director of Investment Strategy and Assistant Director of
Investment Management and Stewardship. The Panel provides challenge to the
Internal Investment Committee (IIC) on asset allocation and investment strategy as
well as bringing a market view on investment implementation. The Pensions
Committee received an annual report from the IAP, including a review from the external
members, at their meeting on 21 June.

The Pensions Committee approved a revised Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) at
their March meeting. The IIC, with advice from their Investment Consultant and with
input from the IAP, have developed a three-step plan to implement the revised ISS in
the period up to March 2025. Officers are working with LGPS Central to implement the
first phase, progressing phased reduction in the allocation to Liquid Growth assets over
recent months.

Page 102



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

This report is PUBLIC

Responsible Investment

The Fund continues to engage with its investee companies and other key stakeholders
through the partnerships it has in place. The Fund aims to protect and increase shareholder
value by engaging on a range of financially material economic, social and governance
(ESG) investment factors. A significant part of the Fund’s engagement programme is
implemented through partnerships including the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum
(LAPFF), EOS at Federated Hermes (‘EOS’ - via a contract held by LGPS Central Ltd, the
Fund’s investment pool operator), the Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change
(IGCC), Climate Action 100+ (CA 100+), the Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI), and the
Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI).

The Fund’s engagement activity is monitored and reported to the Pensions Committee on a
quarterly basis. Engagement activity includes a number of direct company engagements,
on a range of themes, voting activity and working in partnership with other institutional
investors. Activity and progress are included in published reports from LGPS Central Ltd,
LAPFF and EOS at Federated Hermes.

As previously reported to the Board, the Fund submitted the third iteration of its Annual
Stewardship Report (ASR) to the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) on 31st May 2023. The
report documents the Fund’s stewardship activities over the past year and demonstrates
the Fund’s ambition to be leaders in the active stewardship of its assets and ultimately
deliver improved outcomes and sustainable futures for all. In late August 2023, the Fund
was pleased to learn that it successfully achieved signatory status to the UK Stewardship
Code again, for the third consecutive year.

In May 2023 the Fund launched a pilot Responsible Investment (RI) survey to all scheme
members with a registered email address. The survey was open for three weeks and was
designed to engage members on the topic of Rl and gauge members’ awareness and
understanding of RI.

A response rate of approximately 4% was achieved, with 7,305 individual member responses
received. Almost 50% of responses received were from pensioner members, 34% from active
members, and 18% from deferred members (Figure 1).

Figure 1: Respondents by member type

Member type %
M Active 34
Deferred 18
Pensioner 48

When asked to identify a level of Rl understanding, high level results show that 25% of
members profess to have good Rl understandin% 48% have partial, and 27% have no RI

Page 10


https://www.frc.org.uk/investors/uk-stewardship-code
https://www.frc.org.uk/investors/uk-stewardship-code

This report is PUBLIC

understanding (Figure 2). Analysis indicates that the greater exposure members have to the
Fund’s RI content, accessed through the Fund’s website, RI articles in member newsletters,
Pensions Committee reports and formal RI policies, the greater the members’ RI
understanding.

Figure 2: Level of Rl understanding

RI

Understanding %

B Good 25

W Partial 48
None 27

3.7  On examination of the survey respondents by age (Figure 3), results show that the highest
number of responses received were from members aged between 55 and 64’. The lowest
number of responses received were from members aged '18 and 24’.

Figure 3: Respondents by age category
3000 _

2500

2000 _

1500 _

1000 _

500 _ I
. |

18-24  25-34  35-44 45-54 5564 65-74 75 &over

Count

Age category

3.8  Fund Officers are currently undertaking further analysis of the survey results with a view to
informing and developing an effective Re sible Investment Engagement Strategy. Ke
g ping (i{-}age jR?ﬂ gag gy. Rey



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

This report is PUBLIC

areas of priority are likely to be around review of existing and potential future content available
to members, strategies to increase member engagement and raising awareness and
understanding of Responsible Investment and the Fund’s approach.

LGPS Central Investment Pool Governance

As previously reported to the Board, the governance arrangements for the LGPS Central
pool include a Shareholder Forum (as the group of “owner” representatives) and the Joint
Committee (focused on investment matters and client-side).

The Shareholder Forum meets ahead of Company meetings (General and AGM) held twice
per year. The latest meeting was held on 26 September 2023 with representatives of all
Central Pool Authorities and the Company. Between meetings, the Company may engage
with the Central Pool Authorities via Shareholder Representatives to gain approval to
reserved matters, pertinent to the ongoing operation of the Company, as recommended by
the Board. Each year the Shareholder Forum nominates a Chair and Vice Chair of the
group with Councillor Eric Kerry from Nottinghamshire taking on this role from the WMPF
Executive Director of Pensions at the meeting on 26 September.

At the Company Annual General Meeting Shareholders received a governance update from
the Board and its sub committees and discussed and approved a number of routine items
including:

e Adoption of the Company Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023;
e Approval of external Auditor appointment and remuneration; and
¢ Annual re-election of the Company Directors and Chair.

The Chair of the Pensions Committee is appointed West Midlands’ representative to the
Pool’s Joint Committee, with invite and attendance at the Committee extended to Malcolm
Cantello, Trade Union Representative. The next meeting of the Joint Committee is due to
take place in February 2024.

Board members will continue to receive invites to pool-wide events including stakeholder
days and the Responsible Investment summit, as these are arranged during the year.

The Company’s Annual Report for the Year to 31 March 2023 has been audited and
published (with the link available within the background papers to this report). The Annual
Report summarises progress over 2022/23, noting an increase of £1bn in the value of
pooled assets, launch of the direct property fund and further development of its Responsible
Investment Policy. The report also includes a summary of the work of the Board'’s three
sub-committees and overview of the Company’s risk management and governance
frameworks.

At the end of September, the pool submitted its annual progress report to the Department of
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC), confirming:

- Total forecast cumulative net savings to 2034 of £116.7m on investment products that
were live or close to launch at the time of submitting the return.

- The pool as a whole had transitioned 33% of assets as of 31 March 2023 (50% for
West Midlands), an increase of 4%agretieQDor year.



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

10.0

10.1

This report is PUBLIC

- The latest projection of assets transferred to pool investment vehicles by 31 March
2026 is 52% (69% for West Midlands).

Financial Implications

The cost for setting up and running the jointly owned company is shared equally between
the Partner Funds. There are significant transition costs involved in unwinding and
transferring as investment mandates into new collective investment vehicles. Transition
costs are shared between the Partner Funds on a fair and equitable basis and are incurred
when assets are transitioned.

West Midlands Pension Fund’s share of all costs (including the regulatory capital provided
to LGPS Central Ltd) are met from the Fund, and there is therefore no direct impact on the
administering authority’s revenue or capital budgets and no impact on member benefits.

All cost sharing principles together with financial modelling of the operational costs and
fee models are monitored by Partner Funds.

Legal Implications

The requirement to pool Fund investments is a requirement of law, failure to work
collaboratively and meet the Government’s criteria for delivery may result in Government
intervention.

Equalities Implications

There are no direct equalities implications arising as a result of this report.

All Other Implications

There are no other implications arising as a result of this report.

Schedule of Background Papers

WMPF Annual Stewardship Report 2023: Annual Stewardship Report 2023

LGPS Central Annual Report — Year Ending 31 March 2023: LGPS Central Report &
Accounts 2022/2023 — LGPS Central

Schedule of Appendices

None.

Page 106


https://www.wmpfonline.com/investments/responsible-investment
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/lgps-central-report-accounts-2022-2023/
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/lgps-central-report-accounts-2022-2023/

This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 10

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Pensions Board
17 October 2023

Report title

Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Regulatory Update

Pension Services

Rachel Howe
Email

Rachel Brothwood
Email

Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance
Rachel.howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Executive Director of Pensions
rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. Developments within the current regulatory environment in which the Fund operates.

Page 107



mailto:Rachel.howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

To provide members of the Board with an update on the regulatory environment,
potential forthcoming changes across the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
and the wider pensions industry.

Introduction and Overview

Pension Board will be aware that the LGPS (and wider pensions industry) has been
anticipating a number of regulatory changes and proposed consultations over the last 18
months, all of which have the potential to impact the Fund’s operations and resources in
not only implementing the changes, but also in relation to the training of employees and
providing updated information to members and employers to enable their ability to take
appropriate decisions.

At this time, there is still a range of consultations and/or outcomes pending some of
which are outlined in more detail in this report. The Fund is aware that the Scheme
Advisory Board (SAB) continues to be at the forefront of discussions on behalf of LGPS
Funds and the Fund’s Senior Officers continue to engage through its position on national
discussion groups. Since the Board met in July, the following has emerged:

e Confirmed delay in Government response and requirements on LGPS Funds
following the LGPS climate reporting consultation (Department for Levelling Up,
Housing and Communities (DLUHC))

e Publication of economic activity of public bodies (overseas) bill (DLUHC-
sponsored)

e The Chancellor's Mansion House speech and related consultations and call for
evidence, including to LGPS-specific investment consultation (DLUHC)

e Confirmation that a new and extended longstop date will apply for compliance with
the pensions dashboard requirements (pensions minister)

e Consultation on changes to the lifetime allowance (tax threshold) for pensions
savings

e Delay in finalisation and publication of the single/general code from the Pensions
Regulator

e Publication of regulations relevant to the implementation of the McCloud remedy
within the LGPS (DLUHC)

DLUHC — Next Steps on Investments Consultation

Background
During the Summer budget in 2015, the Chancellor announced his intention to invite
Administering Authorities to bring forward their proposals for pooling investments in the
LGPS, with the aim of achieving 4 set criteria:

1. Asset Pools that achieve the benefits of scale

2. Strong Governance and decision making

3. Reduced costs and excellent value for money

Page 108



3.2

3.3

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

This report is PUBLIC

4. An improved capacity to invest in infrastructure

Since that time and following the publication of regulations and guidance for the LGPS in
2016, LGPS Central Pool has worked collaboratively to achieve the aims set out by
Government; including through the establishment of a pool (Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA) regulated) operator company as outlined as a requirement of Government, by the
Minister for Communities and Local Government in August 2017.

Five years on (and in the absence of further guidance emerging following the
consultation in 2019) it is recognised and accepted that at the outset of pooling, there
were differing views across the LGPS on what pooling would mean and deliver for LGPS
Funds with a varied approach developing across the eight pools, while recognising local
accountability and the overriding objective of the LGPS Administering Authorities in
paying pension benefits to members when they fall due to.

July 2023 Consultation

On the 10" July 2023, the Chancellor set out his Mansion House speech which included
the proposed consultation on investment within the LGPS, the consultation being
published the following day (with a closing date of 2 October 2023).

In his Speech, the Chancellor noted the desire to “accelerate the consolidation of
pension assets by March 2025”, with proposals to increase transparency, cost savings
and the scale of LGPS investment pools while noting that Investment Strategy remained
a decision of the individual Funds.

The five areas considered within in the consultation are set out below:

e Proposals to accelerate and expand investment pooling, with the aim of increasing
the pace of transition, in order to achieve further benefits, improved net returns, more
effective governance, increased savings and access to more asset classes.

e A requirement for Funds to have a plan to invest up to 5% of assets to support
levelling up in the UK.

e Toincrease investment in high growth companies via unlisted equity.

e To propose amendments to the LGPS investment regulations which related to the use
of investment consultants and including a requirement to set out strategic objectives
for those consultants with a formal review every 3 years.

e To make a technical change to the definition of investments in the LGPS regulations
in relation to partnership arrangements so they fall within the definition of
investments.

Following issue of the briefing note to all Governing Body members early September and
discussion at the September Pensions Committee meeting, the Fund submitted its
response by the deadline of 2 October 2023 and this has been shared with members of
the Board. The response was informed by a range of engagement across the industry,
stakeholders and peers including partners within the LGPS Central Pool.

Page 109



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.0

6.1

6.2

This report is PUBLIC

‘Mansion House Consultations’

On 10 July the Chancellor delivered his annual Mansion House speech outlining reforms
to support pension savings and increase investments in UK based business, this
included a number of consultations that were issued over the summer period setting out
the Governments plans to deal with some of the key issues facing the wider pensions
industry.

The speech notes an increasing direction of travel towards (private sector) consolidation
noting evidence submitted over the last 2 years that larger funds are better governed.
The growing focus on knowledge and skills and those with responsibility for making
decisions and managing pension funds is apparent and is reflective of the position taken
in numerous regulatory guidance, including the Charted Institute of Public Finance
Accountancy (CIPFA) Knowledge and Skills and the Scheme Advisory Board’s Good
Governance Review, on which the Fund forms it's Governing Body training policy.

There continues to be a focus on member engagement, knowledge and awareness,
building on the objectives set by the pensions dashboards project enabling members’
decision making on how best to manage and access their pension benefits as well as
member protections. The Board will recall the Fund is a signatory to the Pension
Regulator’s pension scam pledge, together with ensuring members are getting value for
money from their pension (the Fund is engaging in industry wide benchmarking activity
such as CEM to assess its value for money service delivery).

In line with the Pooling consultation, the speech further built on proposals for UK
investment and Levelling Up, driving growth in UK economy.

The Fund continues to monitor the proposals and activity noting that the proposals would
be subject to wide ranging legislation reforms which would likely require further
consultation before being implemented.

McCloud Regulations

On the 8 September, Government issued its response to the consultation ‘McCloud
remedy in the LGPS — supplementary issues and scheme regulations’ which closed on
30 June 2023. This consultation covered proposals around aggregation, club transfers,
flexible retirement, divorce, injury allowances, compensation, interest and excess teacher
service and has been anticipated by Funds to confirm how the remedy would be
implemented across affected members.

Overall, the response confirms that the proposals in the consultation will be implemented
and where it is required, updated Government Actuary’s Department guidance will be
issued as soon as possible, in addition to an updated Public Sector Transfer Club
memorandum. A national working group has been set up to consider the areas where
guidance is needed, and the response sets out some of the areas where guidance will be
statutory and where it will be non-statutory. Statutory guidance will be issued where it is
necessary to have a consistent approach on areas not already achieved through
regulations. This will include the prioritisation of McCloud cases and how to identify which

Page 110



6.3

6.4

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

This report is PUBLIC

members qualify for McCloud protection where there could be earlier service in another
LGPS fund or another public service pension scheme. Other areas will have non-
statutory guidance, such as administrative guidance and complex case examples, and
how to deal with flexible retirement cases. Where a need for guidance is identified, there
will be a technical consultation with selected stakeholders representing those affected.
There are still some areas where additional regulations are needed (particularly for
dealing with excess teacher service) and a further consultation on these will follow in due
course with selected stakeholders.

The only amendment to the original proposals is in the area of interest, where there is a
small change to the way interest will be applied to additional Pension Commencement
Lump Sums.

The implementation of these revised regulations is a major scale project for the Fund,
with the requirement to finalise and collect missing and erroneous data, amend the
system calculations to enable calculations of the new regulations going forward, and also
to undertake rectification calculations on previous casework due to the retrospective
application of the regulations. The Fund are working with the new software supplier on
the changes required to the pension administration system and considering the wider
communications to be issued to our customers.

Abolition of the Lifetime Allowance

As part of a package of reforms announced in the Chancellor's March 2023 budget, the
Pension Lifetime Allowance, designed to cap tax relief on pension saving, was to be
abolished. Government is now seeking to clarify the tax treatment of pension savings and
how limits will apply to pension and lump sums from April 2024. The proposals are
beneficial to members who may be caught by the tax provisions as their payments will
now be taxed on their relevant tax rate (as opposed to the higher rate), however has the
potential to further increase the workloads for pension funds with the need to apply
individual calculations to lump sum payments.

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications.

Legal Implications

There are no legal financial implications.

Equalities Implications

There are no direct equalities implications.

Other Implications

There are no potential other implications.

Page 111



This report is PUBLIC

12.0 Schedule of Background Papers

12.1 LGPS: Next Steps on Investments Consultation: Local Government Pension Scheme
(England and Wales): Next steps on investments - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

12.2 Options for defined benefit schemes: Options for Defined Benefit schemes: a call for
evidence - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

12.3 Pension Trustee Skills, Capability and Culture: Pension trustee skills, capability and
culture: a call for evidence - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

12.4 Abolition of the lifetime allowance:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/abolishing-the-pensions-lifetime-allowance

13.0 Schedule of Appendices

13.1 None.

Page 112


https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments
https://www.gov.uk/government/calls-for-evidence/options-for-defined-benefit-schemes-a-call-for-evidence
https://www.gov.uk/government/calls-for-evidence/options-for-defined-benefit-schemes-a-call-for-evidence
https://www.gov.uk/government/calls-for-evidence/pension-trustee-skills-capability-and-culture-a-call-for-evidence
https://www.gov.uk/government/calls-for-evidence/pension-trustee-skills-capability-and-culture-a-call-for-evidence
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/abolishing-the-pensions-lifetime-allowance

This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 11

CITY orF .
woLvirhamrron | P€nsions Board

COUNCIL 17 October 2023

Report title Corporate Plan Monitoring

Originating service Pension Services

Accountable employee Rachel Howe Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance
Email rachel.howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Report to be/has been Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions

considered by Email rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:
The Pensions Board is asked to note:

1. The work undertaken by the Fund to work towards the goals and ambitions outlined in
the Corporate Plan 2023 — 2028.

Page 113


mailto:rachel.howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

To provide Board with an update on the work of the Fund in achieving its deliverables
and targets set out in the Corporate Plan.

Corporate Plan 2023 — 2028

The Fund adopted its Corporate Plan in March 2023 on reflection of the current issues
and drivers for change across the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and wider
investment industry taking on board learnings over the year about our customer needs,
and evolving operating environment, together with a review of our service offering.
Throughout the year the Fund has been waiting on a number of regulatory changes with
identified themes throughout 2022 continuing into 2023, including the potential for cost of
living pressures to impact savings and the delivery of sustainable pensions in retirement,
together with the continued challenge across the LGPS and wider industry on building
and retaining key skills and knowledge. Responsible and sustainable investment
ambition continues to inform investment strategy and implementation, as the Fund seeks
long term returns, added value for customers and further strengthens operational
resilience through good governance and effective risk management.

During the first half of the year the Fund has remained committed to enhancing service
delivery for our customers with the ongoing development and roll out of the new pension
administration system over Summer 2023. The new platform includes additional self
service functions for members and employers, enabling retirement planning and the
management of benefit records in partnership with Fund employers.

The new system has seen a change to working practices which aim to generate
efficiency in the processing of member pensions with benefits being seen in the
processing times for monthly payroll run. In recognising the change to practices, the
Fund has been committed to its objectives of supporting employee development and
knowledge, with training materials and on hand support available to aid employee
engagement with the new system. As well as developing this knowledge, the Fund is
committed to seeking continual improvement alongside the processing efficiencies as
benefits of the change continue to be developed and realised.

Throughout the programme of transition, the Fund has remained committed to ensuring
improvement in the service offering to our members and employers, with the retention of
Customer Service Excellence being a demonstrative outcome from the Fund’s ongoing
drive to continue to improve customer services, with an increase in areas of compliance
plus (to 5 from 3) noted in the May outcome report.

In building on our focus to engage and inform our customers, the Fund launched its first
responsible investment member engagement survey in May 2023, receiving over 7,300
responses. The survey highlighted the Fund’s responsible investment approach and
sought to understand member awareness and perspectives. The importance of good
stewardship of assets and the Fund’s success in driving progress is highlighted by both
the growth in investment manager and asset owner signatories to the 2020 UK

Page 114



2.6

2.7

2.8

29

3.0

3.1

This report is PUBLIC

Stewardship Code and the Fund’s July 2023 submission, which led to the Fund being
awarded signatory status for the third year running in September 2023.

As the Fund looks to build and shape its service delivery, and in response to the industry
wide challenges on recruitment and retention, the Fund was acknowledged for its role in
developing people and supporting career development through its reaccreditation for
Investors in People Gold standard in June 2023. The Fund continues to build on our
focus of becoming a people development champion and centre of excellence across the
region. For example, earlier this year the Fund received platinum status as an accredited
ACCA employer. The success of these accreditations has supported the Fund'’s objective
to grow and develop talent across the region, with over 70 applications received for
individual graduate roles in this cohort of recruitment.

In building our focus on risk management and operational resilience, the Fund has
completed its second independent Cyber assurance exercise which seeks to challenge
suppliers on their cyber resilience as part of continuing to develop and enhance the
Fund’s own cyber strategy. This in conjunction with a review of the Fund’s Business
Continuity Planning and ongoing development and review of the wider control framework,
aim to provide further assurance to our stakeholders on the resilience of our operations in
the face of a continuity or risk event.

In test and challenge of the Fund’'s Governance and Management and in line with our
objective of continuous improvement and to provide assurance on activities, the Fund
undertakes independent benchmarking, aiding assessment of value for money and
service delivery. This quarter the Fund has completed submissions to CEM
Benchmarking and will be compared with peers across the LGPS and wider pensions
industry.

In September Fund achievements were recognised through awards received for
Investment Innovation and Rising Star within the LGPS industry. Awards received from
the LAPF (Local Authority Pension Fund) Investment Awards 2023 reflect the Fund’s
collaborative and innovative work to support investment within the region and enhance
member engagement in saving and planning for retirement.

Looking Ahead

Over the last quarter, there have been a number of consultations and regulations
launched by Government, including the “Next Steps on Investments”, McCloud guidance
and regulations on the application of remedy to member benefits, together with a number
still pending, including further details on the “reset” of the UK Pensions Dashboards, the
Pension Regulator’s (tPR) single/general code of practice, together with the outcomes
from the LGPS consultation on climate risk reporting. Many of these place an increased
focus on oversight and reporting, building on the theme in our corporate plan of data
culture and information management. Going forward the Fund will need to continue to
enhance its reporting tools and engage in dialogue on the development of standard
reporting to increase efficiency and use to the benefit of the LGPS.

Page 115



3.2

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

This report is PUBLIC

Focus over the next four-six months will be to build on the benefits realised from the new
administration system and reviewing the future Fund development in context of emerging
regulatory change and priorities. The implementation of changes agreed for 2023
investment strategy will continue at pace and be cognisant of the evolving economic and
market environment, working with our partners in LGPS Central pool to create an
environment to enhance long term sustainable returns. In conjunction with this, the Fund
will continue to focus on developing our people, culture and behaviours, fit for a changing
environment and will look to continue to build resilience in our human capital.

Financial Implications

The Fund’s delivery of its Corporate Plan and the initiatives developed to support are
included in the Fund’s budget for 2023/28, an update is provided in the Budget report.
Legal Implications

The Local Government Pension Scheme is governed by a combination of local
government, finance, and occupational pension scheme regulations. The Fund
undertakes a continual review of the legislation governing the management and
administration of the Fund and its investments, ensuring a proactive management of

change and compliance.

Failure by the Fund to comply with legislation and/or statutory guidance can result in
enforcement action and fine from both tPR and the Courts via judicial review.

Equalities Implications

The Fund undertakes Equality Impact Assessments for all new initiatives with
considerations given to Equality and Inclusion in line with guidance from the Employers
Network for Equality and Inclusion (ENEI). There are no implications.

Other Implications

There are no other implications.

Schedule of Background Papers

WMPF Corporate Plan 2023

Schedule of Appendices

There are no appendices to this report.

Page 116


https://www.wmpfonline.com/sites/default/files/2023-06/Corporate%20Plan%202023%20-%202028%20final.pdf

Agenda Item No: 13

Document is Restricted

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Customer Engagement
	Appendix A: Review of feedback from member presentations and individual pension consultations
	Appendix B: Summary of MYR feedback
	Appendix C: Customer services statistics

	6 Pensions Administration
	Appendix A: Workflow Summary
	Appendix B: Detailed Process Analysis
	Appendix C

	Appendix C: Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
	Appendix D: Admitted Body Applications

	7 Risk and Assurance
	Appendix A: Strategic Risk Register
	Appendix B: Key Performance Indicators

	8 Annual Report and Accounts
	Appendix A: Grant Thornton External Audit Plan 2022/23
	Appendix B: Audit Progress Report – September 2023

	9 Investment Governance
	10 Regulatory Update
	11 Corporate Plan Monitoring
	13 Pensions Administration System Transition

